Public Document Pack oo
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ¢ )

Bridgend County Borough Council

Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont, CF31 4WB / Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB RIDGEND

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief

Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich Executive’s Directorate
dewis iaith. Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 /
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 643147 [ 643694
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. Gofynnwch am / Ask for: Mark Anthony Galvin

Ein cyf/ Our ref:
Eich cyf/ Your ref:

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mercher, 11 Rhagfyr 2019

Annwyl Cynghorydd,
CABINET

Cynhelir Cyfarfod Cabinet yn Ystafell Bwyllgora 1/2/3, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd Yr Angel,
Penybont Ar Ogwr ar Dydd Mawrth, 17 Rhagfyr 2019 am 14:30.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau /
Swyddogion yn unol & darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion 3-26
| dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 13/11/19 a 19/11/19

4. Strategaeth Eiddo Gwag 27 - 92

5. Cronfa Her Economi Sylfaenol Llywodraeth Cymru 93-98

6. Canlyniad Ymgynghoriad 'Llunio Dyfodol Pen-y-Bont ar Ogwr' 99 - 144

7. Grant Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol 145 - 148

8. Deddf Trwyddedu 2003, Datganiad Polisi Trwyddedu ac Asesiad o'r Effaith 149 - 180
Gronnol

9. Blaen raglen Waith 181 -194

10. Adroddiadad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi 195 - 200



mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

11. Materion Brys
| ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn

y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol & pharagraff 2.4 (e) o'r Rheolau
Trefn y Cabinet yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol

Dosbarthiad:
Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
HJ David PJ White D Patel

CE Smith HM Williams RE Young



Agenda Iltem 3

CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALIWYD YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR,
SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PENYBONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB DYDD
MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019, AM 14:30

Presennol
Y Cynghorydd HJ David — Cadeirydd
CE Smith PJ White HM Williams RE Young

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

D Patel, CA Green

Swyddogion:

Tracy Watson Swyddog Cymorth Craffu
Kelly Watson Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol a Swyddog Monitro
Mark Shephard  Prif Weithredwr

Mark Galvin Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Zak Shell Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth
Guy Smith Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol

429. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Dim.

430. GALW | MEWN PENDERFYNIAD Y CABINET: CAEAU CHWARAE, CYFLEUSTERAU
CHWARAEON AWYR AGORED A PHAFILIYNAU PARCIAU

Dechreuodd y Swyddog Monitro'r trafodaethau gan amlinellu'r weithdrefn i'w dilyn yng
nghyfarfod heddiw, ac eglurodd yn absenoldeb Cadeirydd y Pwyligor Trosolwg a Chraffu
Corfforaethol a alwodd penderfyniad blaenorol y Cabinet i mewn a wnaed yn ei gyfarfod
ar 22 Hydref 2019 (a alwyd i mewn gan y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol ar 4
Tachwedd 2019), mewn perthynas & phenderfyniad a wnaeth o ran y Caeau Chwarae,
Cyfleusterau Chwaraeon Awyr Agored a Phafiliynau Parciau, y byddai'r Aelod a
ysgogodd yr alwad i mewn, y Cynghorydd T Thomas, yn cyflwyno'r adroddiad.

Byddai'r Cabinet yna'n cael y cyfle i ystyried sylwadau ac argymhellion y Pwyllgor
Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol ac unrhyw eglurhad gan y Cynghorydd Thomas, y
byddai wedi hynny naill ai'n cadarnhau neu'n adolygu'r penderfyniad a wnaeth yn ei
gyfarfod ar 22 Hydref 2019.

Cynghorodd y Cynghorydd Thomas fod saith Aelod o'r Pwyligor Trosolwg a Chraffu
Corfforaethol uchod, yn unol & darpariaeth yng Nghyfansoddiad y Cyngor, wedi galw i
mewn penderfyniad blaenorol y Cabinet (Rhif Cofnod: 423), am resymau a nodir ym
mharagraff 4.3 i 4.8 yr adroddiad.

Yna amlinellodd y Cynghorydd Thomas y rhesymau hyn er budd y rhai hynny a oedd yn
bresennol.

Roedd yn teimlo bod y cynnydd arfaethedig yn y ffioedd hurio ar gyfer defnydd o'r caeau
chwarae a'r pafiliynau wedi bod yn benderfyniad emosiynol iawn a bod hyn wedi cael ei
ategu gan y ffaith, nad oedd dim llai na 20 o siaradwyr cyhoeddus a gafodd y cyfle i
leisio eu pryderon wedi darparu rhesymau pam na ddylid cymryd y penderfyniad hwn, yn
y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol. Roedd y rhan fwyaf o'r siaradwyr yn

Page 3



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

gynrychiolwyr Clybiau a Chymdeithasau Chwaraeon wedi eu lleoli o fewn y Fwrdeistref
Sirol, gan gynrychioli rygbi, pél-droed, criced a bowls.

Penderfynodd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol, yn dilyn cryn dipyn o
ddadlau, gyfeirio'r mater yn 6l i'r Cabinet fel y gallai'r Gyfarwyddiaeth ailystyried ei
phenderfyniad blaenorol.

Roedd y Cynghorydd Thomas yn gwerthfawrogi bod Clybiau wedi cael eu hannog i
fanteisio ar gyllid parhaus gan y Cyngor drwy'r rhaglen Drosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol
(CAT), fodd bynnag, roedd ef a sawl un o arall o'i gyd-aelodau, yn teimlo bod y broses
CAT yn gymhleth iawn ac yn brin o adnoddau, ynghyd &'r ffaith bod llawer o Glybiau a
Chymdeithasau yn cael eu harwain gan wirfoddolwyr.

Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd, yn dilyn cyflwyniad y Cynghorydd Thomas, i Aelodau'r Cabinet
a oedd ganddynt unrhyw gwestiynau i'w cyflwyno i'r Cynghorydd Thomas mewn
perthynas & phenderfyniad y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol i alw i mewn
penderfyniad cynharach y Cabinet.

Gwnaeth yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau gydnabod bod Aelodau wedi codi rhai
pryderon ynglyn & CAT, ond roedd yn meddwl tybed a oedd hyn mewn perthynas a'r
broses CAT ddiwygiedig, a adolygwyd ym mis Gorffennaf 2019 a oedd yn fwy syml a
haws i'w deall, neu'r hen broses. Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Young a oedd y Pwyllgor
Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol wedi cydnabod hyn, cyn argymell bod y Cabinet yn
ailystyried ei benderfyniad blaenorol.

Atebodd y Cynghorydd Thomas yn 6l ei atgof, nad oedd hyn wedi cael ei drafod yn 'y
cyfarfod Galw i Mewn uchod. Gwnaeth y pwynt, fodd bynnag, cyn belled ag yr oedd yn
ymwybodol, mai dim ond un cais CAT llwyddiannus oedd wedi cael ei gwblhau hyd yn
hyn. Er gwaethaf hyn, roedd yn teimlo bod CAT yn brin o0 adnoddau o safbwynt
Swyddog, gan mai dim ond un Swyddog yn yr Awdurdod sy'n cefnogi'r broses CAT ar
hyn o bryd, sydd ddim yn ddigon i ddelio &'r cynnydd posibl o geisiadau CAT yny
dyfodol.

Cynghorodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau y byddai'n fodlon cwrdd ag unrhyw
Aelodau ynghylch y newidiadau a wnaed i'r broses CAT, er mwyn eu gwneud yn fwy
cyfarwydd &'r broses ddiwygiedig a'r newidiadau a wnaed. Ychwanegodd fod Aelodau
wedi gwneud rhai ymrwymiadau, yng nghyfarfod y Cabinet lle gwnaed y penderfyniad
mewn perthynas ag adran cyfleusterau o'r adroddiad, o ran y byddai cronfa yn cael ei
sefydlu i gefnogi timau babanod, plant a phobl ifanc a thimau nad oes ganddynt
gynrychiolaeth ddigonol. Gwnaeth yr Aelodau Cabinet/Swyddogion gydnabod hefyd y
byddai rhai sefydliadau yn cael trafferth a'r broses ac felly, byddai'r rhain yn cael eu
lliniaru i'r graddau sy'n ymarferol bosibl. Ychwanegodd fod y Cyngor hefyd yn awyddus i
weithio & Chynghorau Tref/Cymuned o ran cymryd drosodd rhai asedau ac y gallent
gynyddu eu praesept er mwyn cynorthwyo gyda hyn.

Ychwanegodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod ganddo gyfarfod ag Undeb Rygbi
Cymru (WRU) yfory, lle byddai gweithredu'r asedau y cyfeirir atynt yn yr adroddiad i'r
dyfodol yn cael ei drafod ymhellach.

Gwnaeth y Cynghorydd Thomas gadarnhau y byddai'n fodlon trafod y newid ym
mharamedrau CAT. Roedd yn dymuno cael eglurhad llawn o'r broses newydd, ac roedd
yn sicr y byddai Aelodau eraill yn elwa o hynny hefyd.

Cynghorodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Help Cynnar fod y

Cabinet yn rhannu rhai o'r pryderon a godwyd gan yr Aelodau a alwodd y penderfyniad i
mewn. Y broblem oedd, fodd bynnag, fod rhaid i'r Awdurdod fel eraill, sicrhau cyllideb

Page 4



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

gytbwys. Roedd angen i CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr sicrhau arbedion o £36m dros y 4
blynedd nesaf, ac roedd hwn yn swm sylweddol yn ychwanegol i'r lefel o arbedion sydd
eisoes wedi eu gwneud ers y caledi. Pwysleisiodd y pwynt, y gallai unrhyw Aelod
gysylltu &'r Cabinet i drafod elfennau o Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig (MTFS) y
Cyngor. Nododd nad oedd yna awgrym arall wedi cael ei wneud gan Aelodau yng
nghyfarfod galw i mewn y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol, lle gallai'r arbedion
wedi eu clustnodi ar gyfer Caeau Chwarae, Cyfleusterau Chwaraeon Awyr Agored a
Phafiliynau Parciau ddod o unrhyw le arall. Fodd bynnag, roedd angen sicrhau'r lefel
hon o arbedion, felly croesawodd awgrymiadau eraill gan Aelodau lle gellid gwneud
hynny. Roedd pwysau parhaus wedi bod ar y gyllideb ers i'r dirwasgiad ddigwydd, ym
meysydd Gwasanaethau Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant ac Oedolion ac roedd y rhain yn
feysydd lle'r oedd gan yr awdurdod lleol gyfrifoldeb statudol i bobl hyn a'r ifanc fel
meysydd risg. Pan oedd mwy o adnoddau na ddisgwyliwyd yn ofynnol i gynnal y lefelau
priodol o gymorth yn y meysydd hyn, daeth yr arian i wneud hyn, yn anochel, o'r
gwasanaethau anstatudol, gan fod y rhain yn llai gwrth risg. Roedd y Cyngor hefyd yn
rhwym oherwydd rhesymau diogelwch, i sicrhau bod y Rhwydwaith Priffyrdd yn cael ei
ariannu'n ddigonol h.y. drwy lenwi tyllau yn y ffordd, etc. Nid oedd yn ddyletswydd ar
awdurdodau lleol, fodd bynnag, i roi cymhorthdal i Glybiau a Chymdeithasau Chwaraeon
i helpu gyda chostau hurio Pafiliynau Chwaraeon a Chaeau Chwarae, etc. ac er mai
dyna'r arfer yn y gorffennol, nid oedd digon o arian ar gael i barhau i wneud hynny yn y
dyfodol.

Gwnaeth y Cynghorydd Thomas ganmol cyd-aelod o Ward Bracla am y cynigion amgen
yr oedd wedi eu cyflwyno i'r Awdurdod o ran cynnal a chadw a hurio'r cyfleusterau uchod
yn y dyfodol, ac er na ellid ystyried ei gynigion yng nghyfarfod heddiw, roedd yn teimlo y
gallai'r Cabinet archwilio'r rhain yn y dyfodol agos fel rhan o gynigion cyllideb ehangach.

Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd i'r Prif Weithredwr a oedd wedi derbyn unrhyw gynigion gan
Aelodau, lle gellid gwneud y lefel o arbedion sy'n ofynnol ym maes Caeau Chwarae,
Cyfleusterau Chwaraeon Awyr Agored a Phafiliynau Parciau yn rhywle arall. Atebodd y
Prif Weithredwr gan ddweud nad oedd wedi derbyn cynigion. Ychwanegodd yr
Arweinydd fod arbedion yn y maes gwasanaeth hwn wedi cael eu cytuno gan Aelodau
yng nghyfarfod y Cyngor, lle cymeradwywyd y gyllideb a geir yn Strategaeth Ariannol
Tymor Canolig 2019-20 i 2022-23 ym mis Chwefror 2019.

Gofynnodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio i'r Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau
Cymunedol, a yw'r rhan fwyaf o'r Clybiau a'r Cymdeithasau Chwaraeon o fewn y
Fwrdeistref Sirol wedi ymgysylltu ag ef mewn perthynas &'r posibilrwydd o gymryd
drosodd y cyfleusterau drwy'r broses CAT newydd, erbyn hyn.

Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol mai dim ond un ased -
Caeau Chwarae Criced Blaengarw nad oedd wedi ymgysylltu ynglyn & CAT.

Cynghorodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio, yn achos pob £100 yr arferai'r
Cyngor wario, fod toriadau rheolaidd i'w gyllideb wedi arwain at y ffigwr hwn yn lleihau i
£65. Cwblhawyd mentrau llwyddiannus yn y gorffennol yn Nhy Carnegie, Pen-y-bont ar
Ogwr ac yn yr Hen Orsaf Heddlu ym Mhorthcawl. Roedd y bobl hynny a oedd yn rhan o'r
prosiectau hyn cyn iddynt gael eu cwblhau, wedi bod yn ddrwgdybus ac yn amheus o
ran a fyddai'r rhain yn cael eu cymryd drosodd yn llwyddiannus ai peidio. Yn y diwedd,
bu'r rhain yn llwyddiannus ac roedd yn sicr y byddai'r un canlyniad yn digwydd o ran
cyfleusterau eraill. Roedd prosiect tebyg yn cael ei ddatblygu gan Gyngor Cymuned
Trelales mewn perthynas & CAT, o ran Canolfan Gymunedol Bryntirion a Threlales a
Chaeau Chwarae Bryntirion ychwanegodd.

Roedd y Cynghorydd Thomas yn teimlo bod rhaid mynd ar drywydd pob llwybr drwy
CAT, lle na fyddai Clybiau yn wynebu'r 'taliadau uchaf' wrth gymryd drosodd unrhyw

Page 5



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

asedau o'r fath. Roedd wedi bod mewn trafodaethau & Chlwb Pél-droed Tondu Robins a
oedd wedi rhoi gwybod iddo y byddent yn mynd i'r wal pe bai'n rhaid iddynt ariannu'r
asedau hynny y maent wedi bod yn eu defnyddio am flynyddoedd lawer, ym Mharc
Pandy, Abercynffig, eu hunain.

Roedd yn teimlo bod angen rhannu mwy o wybodaeth & Chlybiau Chwaraeon o ran
materion indemniad/costau a diogelwch a chynnal a chadw cyfleusterau.

Cynghorodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio y gellid trafod materion fel y
rhain, a'u datrys wedi hynny, drwy Glybiau a Chymdeithasau Chwaraeon a Chynghorau
Tref/Cymuned yn ymgysylltu & CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Pe baent yn gallu yn mynd yn
rhan o drefniadau partneriaeth, er enghraifft, yn nhermau defnyddio Caeau Chwarae a
Phafiliynau Chwaraeon ar y cyd, yna ni fyddai elfennau o gost. Ychwanegodd fod
angen iddynt fanteisio yn llawn ar y cyfleoedd a gyflwynai CAT.

Cynghorodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd fod y Cyngor wedi bod yn liwyddiannus yn hanesyddol
drwy drefniadau partneriaeth. Ymbhlith enghreifftiau o hyn oedd V2C a'r stoc dai, Menter
Halo gyda'i Chyfleusterau Chwaraeon ac Ymddiriedolaeth Awen drwy ei llyfrgelloedd.
Roedd gan y Cyngor oddeutu 900 o asedau, gydag 6él-groniad o ran cynnal a chadw,
gwerth oddeutu £50m ac felly nid oedd ganddo fawr o ddewis ond gwneud newidiadau
sylweddol wrth symud ymlaen er mwyn parhau i fodloni ei amcanion corfforaethol a
llesiant. Ei ddymuniad oedd parhau i gynorthwyo Clybiau Chwaraeon wrth barhau i
ddarparu cyfleoedd chwaraeon o fewn y Fwrdeistref Sirol i bawb ymwneud & nhw,
ynghyd & chyfleusterau o safon dda i gefnogi eu cyfranogiad ynddynt, i'r hen a'r ifanc, ac
i'r ddau ryw. Roedd rhai Pafiliynau Chwaraeon wedi cau ac nid oedd yn dymuno gweld y
duedd hon yn parhau. Roedd rhaid gwneud newidiadau, fodd bynnag, er mwyn atal hyn
rhag digwydd. Roedd hefyd ffynonellau o gyllid grant y gellid eu defnyddio gan gyrff a
sefydliadau allanol, nad oedd ar gael i CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Roedd Clwb Rygbi
Bryncethin wedi adeiladu cyfleuster o'r radd flaenaf ac wedi cael £500k o gyllid grant er
mwyn cyflawni hyn. Cyflwynwyd y broses CAT am vy tro cyntaf yn 2010, ac ers hynny
mae'r broses wedi esblygu'n sylweddol, yn benodol ers iddi gael ei hadolygu a'i
symleiddio yn ddiweddar. Roedd hefyd yn ansicr a oedd y feirniadaeth a dderbyniwyd
gan rai Clybiau mewn perthynas a'r broses CAT flaenorol, neu'r model modern newydd.
Nododd y Cynghorydd Williams fod y broses CAT newydd yn cynyddu hyblygrwydd i
Glybiau Chwaraeon yn nhermau'r ffordd y gallent gymryd drosodd a rheoli cyfleusterau,
gan gynnwys drwy Gytundeb Trwydded. Cytunwyd y broses newydd ar gyfer CAT fis
Gorffennaf diwethaf, ac roedd hon yn broses fwy syml na'r fersiwn flaenorol, er y
byddai'n cymryd amser i'w gwreiddio. Byddai'r broses newydd hefyd yn cefnogi
darpariaethau Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015, yn yr ystyry
byddai'n caniatdu mwy o hyblygrwydd i fynd i mewn i'r Trefniadau angenrheidiol er
mwyn cymryd drosodd a rheoli asedau, gan sicrhau eu cynaliadwyedd hirdymor.

Ychwanegodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Help Cynnar fod
cyfanswm o 60 o Glybiau Chwaraeon sy'n cynrychioli chwaraeon gwahanol, yn
defnyddio caeau chwaraeon a chyfleusterau chwaraeon ar hyn o bryd drwy'r Fwrdeistref
Sirol, cyfanswm o 293 o dimau cysylltiedig. Gwnaeth gydnabod y ffaith bod nifer
sylweddol o'r timau hyn yn cael eu cefnogi gan wirfoddolwyr di-dal a bod y cymorth hwn
yn werthfawr. Cydnabuwyd hefyd fod nifer o chwaraeon eraill yn cael eu chwarae o
fewn y Fwrdeistref Sirol, er enghraifft, Taeckwondo, Judo a dosbarthiadau cadw'n heini, a
oedd yn weithgareddau/chwaraeon mwy dan do nag awyr agored. Yn nhermau'r
cymorth ariannol yr oedd yr Awdurdod wedi ei ymrwymo i Gaeau Chwarae, Cyfleusterau
Chwaraeon Awyr Agored a Phafiliynau Parciau, roedd wedi rhoi cymhorthdal i dalu am
oddeutu 80% o'r costau cynnal a chadw, a phwysleisiodd fod gan y Cyngor y lefel o
adnoddau ar gael i barhau i ddarparu'r lefel hon o gymhorthdal. Er hynny, ychwanegodd
nad oedd y Gyfarwyddiaeth eisiau gorfodi taliadau newydd ar Glybiau a Chymdeithasau
Chwaraeon, ond yn hytrach roedd am iddynt gymryd mantais o CAT.

Page 6



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

Dymunodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau nodi bod cafeat wedi ei osod ar gynigion
y Cyngor o ran y caeau chwarae a'r cyfleusterau cysylltiedig yng Nghaeau Newbridge,
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Roedd hyn yn fater mwy cymhleth o ganlyniad i'r ffaith bod, nifer o
Glybiau Chwaraeon gwahanol yn defnyddio'r caeau chwarae h.y. timau pél-droed, rygbi
a chriced. Byddai'r broses CAT, o ganlyniad, yn anodd ei gweithredu, er roedd yn teimlo
y byddai Cyngor Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn dymuno cael rhan fwy ffurfiol yn 'y
trefniadau yn y dyfodol ar gyfer y safle.

Ychwanegodd hefyd, y byddai'r Cyngor yn bod mor hyblyg ag y gallai o ran sefydliadau
sy'n cefnogi'r cyfleusterau hyn wrth symud ymlaen, gyda phob cais CAT yn cael ei
ystyried yn 6l ei haeddiant ei hun. Roedd saith Pafiliwn Parc/Chwaraeon o fewn y
Fwrdeistref Sirol eisoes wedi cau, gan nad oeddent yn cwrdd &'r gofynion lechyd a
Diogelwch, a byddai mwy yn dilyn os na fyddai'r rhain yn cael eu cynnal a chadw i'r
safon sy'n ofynnol. Pwysleisiodd y ffaith na fyddai sefydliadau, pe baent yn ymrwymo i'r
broses CAT, yn wynebu taliadau uwch nag y maent yn eu hwynebu ar hyn o bryd.
Gwnaeth ategu y gallai'r Cynghorau Tref/Cymuned gynnig cymorth drwy gynyddu eu
praesept ac ymgymryd a throsglwyddiadau fel y gellid cadw'r asedau hyn o fewn y
llywodraeth leol.

Roedd yr Arweinydd yn teimlo y dylid rhannu'r Polisi CAT newydd y mae'r Cyngor wedi
ei fabwysiadu, a'r holl Gynghorwyr fel rhan o sesiwn friffio ar Ddatblygiad Aelodau.
Roedd hefyd yn teimlo bod angen rhannu'r Polisi &'r holl Glybiau a Chymdeithasau
Chwaraeon a sefydliadau perthnasol eraill. Gofynnodd a oedd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a
Chraffu Corfforaethol fel rhan o'i benderfyniad i alw'r penderfyniad yn 6l i'r Cabinet ei
ystyried ymhellach, wedi edrych ar awdurdodau eraill a oedd wedi lleihau eu
cymhorthdal neu fygwth cau cyfleusterau, er mwyn mesur llwyddiant ai peidio polisiau
o'r fath.

Atebodd y Cynghorydd Thomas gan ddweud nad oedd yn cofio'r Pwyllgor yn gwneud
cymariaethau ag awdurdodau eraill mewn perthynas &'r mater hwn, fodd bynnag, roedd
Aelodau yn ymwybodol bod Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf wedi
buddsoddi £2m yn y gwaith o weithredu'r cyfleusterau chwaraeon ar gyfer y dyfodol, a
oedd yn cynnwys caeau 4G.

Cynghorodd yr Arweinydd fod CBS Castell-nedd Port Talbot a CBS Bro Morgannwg
wedi cael eu gorfodi i wneud penderfyniadau tebyg, yr oedd CBS Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn
eu cynnig ynglyn &'u cyfleusterau Chwaraeon.

Yna gofynnodd yr Arweinydd i'r Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol egluro'r
broses CAT a sut y gwnaeth y newidiadau a gyflwynwyd fis Gorffennaf diwethaf effeithio
ar hyn.

Eglurodd y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol, mai dim ond un CAT a oedd
wedi ei gwblhau'n llawn hyd yn hyn, a bod hyn mewn perthynas a'r cyfleusterau yng
Nghaeau Chwarae Bryncethin. Cynghorodd fod Clwb Rygbi Bryncethin wedi bod yn
uchelgeisiol drwy gydol y broses ac wedi llwyddo yn y pen draw i sicrhau cyllid allanol o
£550k i drawsnewid y pafiliwn yn ganolfan gymunedol. Eglurodd mai'r angen i sicrhau
cyllid oedd y prif reswm dros oedi'r prosiect a chwblhau'r brydles, ond y gellid dysgu
gwersi a gwella prosesau. O ystyried hyn, sefydlwyd Grivp Gorchwyl a Gorffen, yn
cynnwys aelodau o'r Cabinet a Swyddogion allweddol, gyda'r nod o wella a symleiddio'r
broses. Roedd hyn yn cynnwys cynnal ymarfer meincnodi gydag awdurdodau lleol
cyfagos. Yn gyntaf, ceisiwyd Mynegiannau o Ddiddordeb Anffurfiol gan sefydliadau a
oedd & diddordeb yn y broses CAT, lle'r oedd y Swyddog CAT yn ymweld & Chlybiau
Chwaraeon a grwpiau cymunedol eraill (gan gynnwys Cynghorau Tref/Cymuned) i
drafod argaeledd yr ased ac amlinellu'r broses CAT. Profodd y dull hwn yn llwyddiannus

Page 7



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

gan sefydlu trefniadau ymgysylltu llawn bron & Chlybiau Chwaraeon. Ail ran y broses
oedd cyflwyno Mynegiant o Ddiddordeb Ffurfiol ysgrifenedig, a fyddai'n cael ei ystyried
gan Grwp Llywio CAT, er mwyn pennu a oedd yr ased yn gymwys i'w drosglwyddo, h.y.
drwy brydles hirdymor, tenantiaeth tymor byr neu Drwydded. Byddai'r Cyngor hefyd yn
edrych ar gymorth y mae grwpiau cymunedol ei angen i weithredu trosglwyddiad, a
byddai Cynghorydd Busnes, yn cael ei benodi gan ein partneriaid, Canolfan
Cydweithredol Cymru neu Ymddiriedolaeth Adfywio'r Meysydd Glo - dan gontract
Cymorth Busnes CAT. Byddai hyn hefyd yn cynnwys asesiad diagnostig busnes
[diwydrwydd dyladwy] i sicrhau bod gan y griwp cymunedol perthnasol y galluoedd a'r
capasiti gofynnol i reoli a chynnal yr ased i gael ei drosglwyddo.

Pwysleisiodd y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau y byddai unrhyw sefydliadau yn cymryd
drosodd asedau yn cael cymorth gan yr Awdurdod i ddod yn endid cyfreithiol gydag
atebolrwydd cyfyngedig megis Sefydliad Corfforedig Elusennol (ClIO) neu Gwmni
Cyfyngedig drwy Warant gyda chostau cysylltiedig yn cael eu hariannu o dan gontract
Cymorth Busnes CAT. Byddai yna hefyd gyfleoedd hyfforddi i sicrhau bod grwpiau
cymunedol yn ymwybodol o'u priod ddyletswyddau a chyfrifoldebau fel cyfarwyddwyr /
ymddiriedolwyr.

Eglurodd fod proses Liwybr Carlam wedi ei chyflwyno o dan y polisi CAT diwygiedig, a
oedd yn sicrhau na fyddai'r rhan fwyaf o'r grwpiau cymunedol angen cyflwyno cynllun
busnes manwl mwyach, ond yn hytrach, rhagolwg ariannol 5 mlynedd, gyda mwy o
bwyslais ar ddiwydrwydd dyladwy o dan yr asesiad diagnostig busnes. Byddai'r Cyngor
yn rhoi gwybod i grwpiau cymunedol am rwymedigaethau parhaus drwy ddarparu
copiau o arolygon cyflwr annibynnol, arolwg ailwampio asbestos a dadansoddiad o
gostau cyfleustodau cyfredol. Ychwanegodd y byddai'r Cyngor a'i Gynghorydd Busnes
yn darparu cymorth, er mwyn gwneud y sefydliad yn llwyr ymwybodol o safbwynt rheoli'r
asedau a ddaeth yn gyfrifol amdanynt. Byddai'r Griwp Llywio CAT hefyd yn chwarae ei
ran drwy archwilio cynaliadwyedd y Clybiau/Cymdeithasau Chwaraeon a ddaeth yn rhan
o'r broses hon, fesul achos. Roedd dulliau gwahanol o ran sut y gellid rhyddhau
asedau, y cyfeiriwyd atynt yn gynharach yn y trafodaethau, a fyddai'n cael eu hamlinellu
ym Mhenawdau'r Telerau cyn cytuno ar y brydles, tenantiaeth neu drwydded.
Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog CAT fod prydlesi ar gyfer 8 CAT yn cael eu cwblhau ar hyn o
bryd.

Sefydlwyd Cronfa CAT gwerth £1 miliwn gan y Cyngor i ariannu atgyweiriadau i
adeiladau yn dilyn cwblhau trosglwyddiadau gyda cheisiadau am hyd at £50k o gyllid yn
cael eu cymeradwyo gan Grwp Llywio CAT, gydag unrhyw ymrwymiadau ariannol uwch
gan yr Awdurdod yn cael eu cymeradwyo gan y Cabinet.

Ychwanegodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol fod y broses
CAT wreiddiol yn fwy cymhleth, ond bod hyn wedi cael ei gyflwyno gan CBS Pen-y-bont
ar Ogwr ar sail canllawiau ar yr arferion gorau a gyhoeddwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru
mewn perthynas a diogelu unrhyw asedau a oedd yn cael eu cymryd drosodd gan yr
awdurdod lleol.

Cadarnhaodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Help Cynnar, fod 3
Chlwb yn ardal Maesteg, un o'r rheiny oedd Clwb Rygbi Maesteg Harlequins, a oedd yn
rhan o CAT drwy drefniant prydles. Gofynnodd faint o amser oedd hi'n cymryd i gwblhau
trosglwyddiad asedau drwy'r math hwn o drefniant.

Cynghorodd y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol, fod y Clybiau y cyfeiriodd yr
Aelod atynt, yng nghamau olaf y broses ac y byddai'r Prydlesi Telerau Penawdau math
sylfaenol yn cael eu cyflwyno ar gyfer hyn, ar ffurf dogfen sylfaenol. Byddai'r rhain yn
cael eu hystyried gan Grwp Llywio CAT. Dyma'r dull a ddefnyddiwyd gan Glwb Rygbi
Bryncethin a Chlwb Pél-droed Caerau i gymryd asedau drosodd. Roedd yn teimlo y

Page 8



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

byddai'r prosesau ar gyfer cwblhau prosiectau CAT, yn dod yn fwy cyson, wrth i fwy gael
eu cwblhau.

Holodd yr Arweinydd am y cynnydd sy'n cael ei wneud i ddatblygu strategaeth ar wahan
ar gyfer Caeau Newbridge.

Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol, ei fod yn bwriadu cwrdd a
chynrychiolwyr o Ganolfan Cydweithredol Cymru ac Ymddiriedolaeth Adfywio'r Meysydd
Glo i edrych ar ymgysylltu ag ymgynghorwyr i ymgymryd & phroses arfarnu opsiynau i
bennu'r ffordd orau ymlaen yng Nghaeau Newbridge, o ystyried y timau amryfal sy'n
defnyddio'r cyfleusterau hyn. Byddai arfarniad tebyg yn cael ei gynnal mewn perthynas a
Pharc Lles Maesteg ac Aberfields yng Nghwm Ogwr ("y Planka"), dau leoliad sydd &
threfniant tebyg iawn i Gaeau Newbridge. O'r broses Arfarnu Opsiynau hon byddai'r
Cyngor ar y cyd &'i gynghorwyr yn cwrdd & defnyddwyr yr ardaloedd hyn a rhanddeiliaid
eraill, megis Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned a chyrff llywodraethu Chwaraeon, er mwyn
sefydlu sut y gellir rheoli'r asedau hyn yn fwy effeithiol yn y dyfodol.

Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd am eglurhad, os byddai unrhyw Glwb Chwaraeon neu grivp
cymunedol yn ymrwymo i'r broses CAT a byddai oedi, a fyddai hyn yn arwain at gynnydd
mewn taliadau o ganlyniad i dynnu cymhorthdal y Cyngor yn 61?7 Os mai dyma'r achos,
dylid rhoi gwybod iddynt am hyn hefyd, yn ysgrifenedig.

Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr fod y Cyngor wedi cytuno, y bydd ffioedd hurio cyfredol,
unrhyw sefydliad sydd wedi ymrwymo'n llawn i fwrw ati & Throsglwyddo Ased
Cymunedol ac yn methu & chwblhau prydles neu drwydded ar gyfer caeau chwarae a
phafiliynau chwaraeon erbyn y dyddiad cau, mis Medi 2020, heb ddim bai arnynt hwy,
yn rhewi ar y lefelau presennol, ac eithrio'r addasiad rheolaidd ar gyfer chwyddiant, hyd
nes y datrysir unrhyw faterion.

Cyfeiriodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol, Aelodau at
baragraffau 4.6 a 4.7 o'r adroddiad, lle nododd fod y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu
Corfforaethol a alwodd penderfyniad y Cabinet i mewn, wedi mynegi rhai pryderon fod
gwybodaeth annigonol o fewn adrodd y Cabinet ar Barciau, Pafiliynau Chwaraeon a
Meysydd Chwarae etc., ynglyn a nifer y clybiau chwaraeon, sydd wedi eu heffeithio gan
y newidiadau i gynnydd mewn ffioedd hurio a faint o gemau a chwaraeir ar y caeau
amrywiol. Roedd pryderon wedi cael eu mynegi hefyd fod gwybodaeth annigonol wedi ei
darparu yn yr adroddiad o ran taliadau, h.y. fod tal blynyddol wedi ei restru, ond nid
unrhyw ddadansoddiad o ran ffi fesul tro.

Gwnaeth atgoffa Aelodau o ddiben adroddiad y Cabinet, sef darparu adborth manwl i'r
Cabinet ar yr ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus, a gynhaliwyd rhwng 17 Ebrill a 10 Gorffennaf
2019, ar gynigion i wneud darpariaeth y Cyngor o gaeau chwarae, cyfleusterau
chwaraeon awyr agored a phafiliynau parciau yn fwy cynaliadwy wrth symud ymlaen. Yn
ogystal, mae'r adroddiad yn cyflwyno argymhellion i gefnogi darpariaeth gynaliadwy yn
ariannol i'r dyfodol o gyfleusterau ac mae'n rhoi diweddariad ynglyn & chynnydd cyfredol
Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol (CAT).

Cadarnhaodd mai prif bwyslais yr adroddiad, oedd rhoi gwybod i'r cyhoedd nad oedd y
Cyngor yn gallu yn ariannol, parhau i ddarparu'r lefel o gymhorthdal y mae'n ei ddarparu
ar hyn o bryd ac wedi ei ddarparu yn y gorffennol, i Glybiau a Sefydliadau eraill, ar gyfer
gweithredu'r cyfleusterau hyn yn y dyfodol. Roedd hyn o ganlyniad i galedi a'r ffaith bod
y Cyngor, ers hynny, wedi wynebu toriadau sylweddol i'r gyllideb, flwyddyn ar él
blwyddyn.

Page 9



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

Roedd rhaid gwneud arbedion yn y maes hwn o dan Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor
Canolig (MTFS) y Cyngor, o £435k dros y 2 flynedd nesaf, ac yn syml, ni allai'r Cyngor
barhau i ddarparu'r lefel o gymhorthdal yr oedd wedi ei ddarparu yn y gorffennol.

Roedd awdurdodau lleol cyfagos eraill wedi cyflwyno polisiau tebyg i hyrwyddo
trosglwyddo asedau drwy gynyddu ffioedd hurio a'u meincnodi &'r hyn yr oedd CBS Pen-
y-bont ar Ogwr yn ei gynnig. Roedd y newidiadau wedi cael eu cyflawni'n llwyddiannus
yn CBS Castell-nedd Port Talbot er enghraifft, lle'r oedd timau chwaraeon yn dal yn
bodoli ac yn cefnogi'r asedau a amlinellir yn yr adroddiad, heb gymorth ariannol gan yr
awdurdod lleol hwnnw.

Strategaeth y Cyngor oedd na fyddai'r un clwb yn talu'r costau uwch, ond yn hytrach,
byddai Clybiau Chwaraeon yn cael eu cyfeirio at CAT, ac yn cael eu cefnogi mewn
ffordd hyblyg i gyflawni'r gwaith o drosglwyddo cyfrifoldeb. Roedd y costau a geir yn
Atodiad E yn adroddiad blaenorol y Cabinet at ddibenion darluniadol yn unig, ac yn
ganllaw i ffioedd blynyddol posibl yn y dyfodol, ond dim ond i unrhyw glwb sy'n amharod
neu'n analluog i ymrwymo i CAT fyddai'r rhain yn berthnasol.

Cynghorodd y Prif Weithredwr y byddai cronfa flynyddol yn cael ei neilltuo, oddeutu £75k
y flwyddyn, dros gyfnod cychwynnol o 2 flynedd, ac y gallai Clybiau Chwaraeon wneud
cais, gyda phroses ymgeisio syml, tebyg i sut y gwneir ceisiadau gan Gynghorau
Tref/Cymuned i'r Cynllun Grant Cyfalaf Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned. Byddai'r gronfa ar
gael i gynorthwyo timau babanod, plant a phobl ifanc gyda chostau megis kit/teithio.
Byddai hyn yn debygol o fod ar ffurf cronfa bontio, a byddai manylion yn cael eu
cadarnhau yn fuan gydag adroddiad yn y dyfodol i'r Cabinet.

Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd am gadarnhad pellach gan Swyddogion, nad oedd
awdurdodau cyfagos sydd wedi cael gwared ar y cymhorthdal neu wedi cyhoeddi
trefniadau cau i symud trefniadau CAT yn eu blaen, wedi cael effaith negyddol ar
Glybiau a Chymdeithasau Chwaraeon a'u defnydd o gyfleusterau chwaraeon lle maent
yn chwarae'n gystadleuol.

Cynghorodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol, er bod CBS
Rhondda Cynon Taf wedi ymrwymo'n ariannol i gefnogi Clybiau a Chymdeithasau
Chwaraeon yn y dyfodol wrth barhau i ddefnyddio cyfleusterau o'r fath, roedd nifer eraill
wedi, neu ar fin gwneud yr un peth & CBS Castell-nedd Port Talbot, lle'r oeddent naill
ai'n codi ffioedd a thaliadau hurio uwch / yn cau cyfleusterau neu'n mabwysiadu CAT.
Nid oedd yr un o'r mesurau hyn wedi gweld lleihad yn y nifer o Glybiau Chwaraeon neu
gyfleusterau, hyd y gwyddai.

Ychwanegodd y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol fod Caerfyrddin wedi
cyhoeddi cau'r holl gyfleusterau chwaraeon gydag 80% o'r holl asedau yn cael eu
trosglwyddo i Gynghorau Tref a Chymuned, gyda defnyddwyr presennol yn parhau i
hurio cyfleusterau ganddynt. Bydd yr 20% o asedau sy'n weddill yn cael eu
trosglwyddo'n uniongyrchol i Glybiau Chwaraeon.

Gofynnodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Help Cynnar, i'r Prif
Weithredwr a allai'r gronfa bontio 2 flynedd, gefnogi grwpiau eraill heblaw am bobl ifanc
sy'n dymuno parhau i gymryd rhan mewn chwarae a gweithgareddau hamdden.

Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr y gellid ymestyn y gronfa hon i gefnogi grwpiau lleiafrifol
eraill megis y genhedlaeth hyn a byddai adroddiad yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet, yn'y
dyfodol agos, yn nodi'r mén-fanylion ynigyn & hyn ac er mwyn i'r Cabinet wneud
penderfyniad ar ddiben penodol y gronfa.

Page 10



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

Ychwanegodd y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau fod ffynonellau eraill o gyllid allanol ar
gael i sefydliadau allanol, ond nid i'r awdurdod lleol. Roedd gan y Cyngor y Cynllun
Grant Cyfalaf Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned hefyd, a oedd yn blaenoriaethu prosiectau
CAT, gyda £50k yn cael ei ddarparu bob blwyddyn.

Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd, fod cyllid Cyfalaf y gellid ei sicrhau ar gyfer unrhyw waith
atgyweirio sylweddol i gyfleusterau, a all fod yn ofynnol mewn perthynas & chais
trosglwyddo CAT.

Cadarnhaodd y Prif Weithredwr fod y Gronfa CAT ar gael, gwerth cyfanswm o £1m, y
mae oddeutu £245k wedi cael ei ddyfarnu hyd yn hyn.

Fe'i bwriadwyd ar gyfer prosiectau CAT i wella adeiladau ar gyfer eu cynaliadwyedd
hirdymor. Byddai'r gronfa hon yn cael ei hail-lenwi yn 6l i £1m, os oes angen, pan a
phryd fydd galw am brosiectau CAT ei angen, ychwanegodd y Prif Weithredwr.

Roedd yr Arweinydd yn ymwybodol bod Mynegiannau o Ddiddordeb wedi eu derbyn gan
Glybiau a Chymdeithasau hyd yn hyn, mewn perthynas a 48 o asedau sy'n gysylltiedig a
chwaraeon y Cyngor.

Cynghorodd y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol mai dyma oedd yr achos, a
gwnaeth grynhoi, er budd y rhai hynny oedd yn bresennol, enwau'r Clybiau a'r
Sefydliadau hyn.

Ategodd mai dim ond un Clwb o fewn y Fwrdeistref Sirol, nad oedd wedi cysylltu a'r
Cyngor ynglyn a'r uchod, sef Clwb Criced Blaengarw.

Yna gofynnodd yr Arweinydd i'r Aelodau a oedd ganddynt unrhyw sylwadau i gloi.

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Gymunedau fod penderfyniad y Cabinet mewn
perthynas &'r mater hwn yn ei gyfarfod ar 22 Hydref 2019 wedi bod yn un anodd iawn i'w
wneud. Roedd y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau wedi wynebu rhai toriadau sylweddol i'w
gwasanaethau anstatudol, dros sawl! blwyddyn bellach. Roedd rhaid i'r Cyngor fodd
bynnag, osod cyllideb gytbwys. Roedd y Cabinet wedi ystyried yr ymatebion i'r broses
ymgynghori a gynhaliwyd ynglyn & dyfodol asedau y cyfeirir atynt yn yr adroddiad.
Ychwanegodd nad oedd y Cyngor yn troi ei gefn ar gynorthwyo Clybiau a
Chymdeithasau wrth weithredu cyfleusterau yn y dyfodol. Ac nid oedd y Cyngor
ychwaith yn dymuno cau Cyfleusterau Chwaraeon a Phafiliynau Parciau etc. Roedd,
fodd bynnag, yn dymuno gweithredu Strategaeth a fyddai'n sicrhau cefnogi cyfleusterau
o'r fath yn y dyfodol drwy wneud yn siwr eu bod yn parhau i ateb y diben ac ar agor.
Daeth i'r casgliad y gallai'r Cyngor fod wedi cyfathrebu'n well ac mewn ffordd fwy
rhagweithiol nag y gwnaeth, ynglyn &'i gynigion a strategaeth ar gyfer y dyfodol, gyda
sefydliadau allanol a Chlybiau Chwaraeon etc. Wedi dweud hynny, gwnaeth ganmol
gwaith y Swyddogion a oedd wedi cyfrannu at broses well yn nhermau CAT, yn benodol
y Swyddog Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol. Nid oedd fawr o ddewis oni bai am yr hyn
a gynigwyd, er mwyn sicrhau'r lefel o arbedion sy'n ofynnol yn y maes gwasanaeth hwn.
Er, roedd yn ymwybodol bod un Aelod o'r Cyngor erbyn hyn yn dymuno trafod cynnig
arall eg ef, a sicrhaodd aelodau y byddai'r Cabinet a'r prif Swyddogion yn edrych ar hyn
ar 6l cael y manylion, ond byddai'r cynigion angen gwneud yr un lefel o arbedion yn'y
Gyfarwyddiaeth a darparu datrysiad cynaliadwy hirdymor. Roedd y Cabinet wedi
ymrwymo o hyd i sicrhau bod chwaraeon yn ffynnu yn y dyfodol drwy'r Fwrdeistref Sirol,
ychwanegodd.

Tynnodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio sylw at y ffaith bod y broses CAT

wedi esblygu a'i bod erbyn hyn yn fwy syml nag yr oedd yn y gorffennol. Roedd gan y
Cyngor hanes blaenorol o drosglwyddo ei asedau i sefydliadau eraill, gan fod y rhain

Page 11



CABINET - DYDD MERCHER, 13 TACHWEDD 2019

wedi llwyddo. Roedd y cynigion a gytunwyd gan y Cabinet yn flaenorol, yn caniatau'r
cyfle ar gyfer partneriaethau a chydweithio, er mwyn cadw asedau ar agor, yn ogystal a
chynnig y cyfle i wella eu cyflwr. Fodd bynnag, byddai'r Cabinet angen ystyried
adroddiad arall o ran gweithrediad asedau yn y dyfodol yng Nghaeau Newbridge a
rhannau eraill o'r Fwrdeistref Sirol y cyfeiriwyd atynt yn gynharach.

Gwnaeth yr Arweinydd atgoffa'r rhai hynny a oedd yn bresennol, fod rhaid i'r Cyngor
sicrhau arbedion o £35m dros y 4 blynedd nesaf, a fyddai'n cynnwys colli swyddi, gan
gynnwys swyddi proffesiynol megis staff addysgu. Roedd caledi parhaus yn ei gwneud
hi'n gynyddol anodd iddynt gydbwyso cyllideb y Cyngor. Felly, roedd penderfyniadau
anodd wedi cael eu gwneud hyd yn hyn, a byddai'n rhaid parhau i wneud rhai yn y
dyfodol, nes iddo ddod i ben.

Gwnaeth gloi drwy ddweud bod y toriadau i'r gyllideb a aliniwyd i'r maes gwasanaeth
sydd dan sylw yn yr adroddiad, wedi cael eu hadrodd i'r Aelodau o'r blaen a'u bod wedi
cytuno arnynt, pan osododd y Cyngor llawn y gyllideb a chyn hynny, pan fe'u trafodwyd
gan y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol a'r Panel Ymchwil a Gwerthuso
Cyllideb.

O ganlyniad, cytunodd yr Aelodau yn unfrydol ar y canlynol:
PENDERFYNWYD: Body Cabinet yn cadarnhau ei benderfyniad blaenorol a wnaed

yn y cyfarfod wedi ei ddyddio 22 Hydref 2019, mewn perthynas
a'r eitem uchod. (Rhif Cofnod: 423)

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 16:00

Page 12



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CABINET A GYNHALIWYD YN YSTAFELL BWYLLGORA 1/2/3,

SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PENYBONT AR OGWR DYDD MAWRTH, 19

TACHWEDD 2019, AM 14:30

CE Smith

Presennol
Y Cynghorydd HJ David — Cadeirydd

PJ White HM Williams D Patel

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

R Young

Swyddogion:

Gill Lewis Pennaeth Cyllid a Swyddog 151 Dros Dro

Kelly Watson Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol a Swyddog Monitro
Mark Shephard  Prif Weithredwr

Susan Cooper  Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles

Mark Galvin Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau

Lindsay Harvey  Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd

Martin Morgans  Pennaeth Gwasanaeth - Perfformiad a Gwasanaethau Partneriaeth

Zak Shell Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth
Will Lane Rheolwr Gweithredol — Cydwasanaethau Rheoleiddio
2. DATGANIADAU O GYSYLLTIAD

Datganodd yr Aelodau canlynol gysylitiad personol ag eitem 10 yr Agenda am y
rhesymau a welir isod:-

Cynghorydd D Patel — Fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol yng Ngholeg Cymunedol y Dderwen
Cynghorydd CE Smith — Fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol yng Ngholeg Penybont
Cynghorydd PJ White — Fel Llywodraethwr Ysgol Gyfun Maesteg

CYMERADWYO'R COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod cofnodion cyfarfod y Cabinet dyddiedig 22 Hydref 2019 yn

cael eu cymeradwyo fel cofnod gwir a chywir.

ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL 2018-19 Y GWASANAETHAU RHEOLEIDDIO A RENNIR

Cyflwynodd Rheolwr Gweithredol, y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir adroddiad, a'r
diben oedd darparu Adroddiad Blynyddol 2018-19 y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a
Rennir i'r Cabinet ei nodi.

Dechreuodd yr adroddiad gyda rhywfaint o wybodaeth gefndir, ac wedi hynny,
amlinellodd Rheolwr Gweithredol y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir rai agweddau
allweddol ar berfformiad gweithredol ar draws y rhanbarth oedd yn codi o’r Adroddiad
Blynyddol, yn enwedig cyn belled ag yr oedd yn gysylltiedig & Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Cadarnhaodd mai'’r lefelau salwch ar gyfer 2018/19 oedd 7.55 diwrnod fesul unigolyn
CALI. Roedd hyn islaw cyfartaledd y Cyngor o 11.90 diwrnod CALI, ond roedd yn
gynnydd ar y flwyddyn flaenorol lle cofnodwyd y cofnodion absenoldeb fel 6.89 fesul
unigolyn CALI. Fodd bynnag, roedd ffactorau lliniarol ar gyfer hyn, gyda sawl Swyddog

Page 13



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

yn mynd trwy ymyriadau meddygol cynlluniedig. Nid oedd tueddiadau amlwg naill ai yn y
ffigurau absenoldeb tymor byr na hir.

Aeth ymlaen trwy ddweud mai sefyllfa’r Gyllideb Refeniw Gros ar gyfer 2018/19 ar gyfer
y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir oedd tanwariant o £496,000 yn erbyn y gyllideb
refeniw gros o £8.504m. Ar gyfer Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr,
arweiniodd hyn at danwariant net 0 £129,000 yn erbyn cyllideb net o £1.328m.
Tanwariodd Gwasanaethau Penodol yr Awdurdod ar gyfer Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-
y-bont ar Ogwr gan £57,000, sef canlyniad rhannol tanwariant o £29,000 yn yr Adran
Drwyddedu a thanwariant o £28,000 yn yr Adran Cynelu a Milfeddygon, lle mae’r
gweithgarwch islaw’r gyllideb.

Atgyfnerthodd y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir hefyd gyflwyniad gwasanaethau,
yn unol & safonau cytln a chyflawnodd yr arbedion ariannol angenrheidiol. Fodd
bynnag, dynododd yr adroddiad fod mwy o ofynion yn cael eu gosod ar y gwasanaeth ar
adeg lle’r oedd llai o adnoddau. Cyflawnwyd y targedau a’r camau gweithredu a
ddynodwyd yng Nghynllun 2018/19 i raddau helaeth.

Roedd Rheolwr Gweithredol y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir yn falch o ddweud
wrth y Cabinet y bu'r Gwasanaeth yn weithgar yn y Llysoedd a gosododd Atodiad 2 yr
Adroddiad Blynyddol yn gosod yr ymyriadau llwyddiannus a gynhaliwyd yng nghyfnod

2018/19.

Yna, amlinellodd paragraff 4.2 yr adroddiad oblygiadau gweithredol allweddol ar gyfer
CBSP a rhoddodd Rheolwr Gweithredol y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir
drosolwg o'r rhain er lles yr Aelodau.

Gan gydnabod bod Cynllun Busnes y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir hefyd yn
gyson & Chynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor, myfyriodd rhan nesaf yr adroddiad ar rai o’r
gweithgareddau nodedig ar gyfer y Fwrdeistref yn ystod y cyfnod a grybwyllwyd uchod.

Cadarnhaodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol ei bod hi’'n falch
o nodi bod safonau hylendid bwyd mewn sefydliadau ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi
gwella ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar gyfer 2018/19 a chafwyd rhai erlyniadau
llwyddiannus yn erbyn busnesau oedd wedi torri’r gofynion hylendid bwyd ac yn y blaen.

Cydnabyddodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd y lefelau gwelliannau sylweddol a wnaed yn y
Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir er 2014, ond gwnaeth y pwynt fod yna heriau wrth
symud ymlaen, yn enwedig mewn perthynas & chyfraddau recriwtio a chadw staff wrth
symud ymlaen.

Cytunodd Rheolwr Gweithredol, y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir & hyn, gan
ddatgan bod adnoddau wedi crebachu dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf a bod problem
mewn perthynas & chyfraddau recriwtio a chadw rhai gweithwyr proffesiynol, er
enghraifft Swyddogion lechyd yr Amgylchedd a Safonau Masnach. Roedd hyn yn cael ei
liniaru i ryw raddau, trwy edrych i ddefnyddio rhywfaint o danwariant yn y Gwasanaeth i
recriwtio myfyrwyr a phrentisiaid, cyn i'r rhain gael eu recriwtio gan y sector preifat.

Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd ei fod yn hapus i nodi fod dau fusnes ym Mhen-y-bont ar
Ogwr a’r Barri, wedi’u herlyn mewn perthynas ag alergenau bwyd yn dilyn pryniannau
prawf a’r gobaith oedd y byddai rhagor o brofion yn parhau yn y dyfodol er mwyn atgoffa
busnesau o’r canlyniadau eithaf a allai ddigwydd petai aelod o’r cyhoedd yn cael
adwaith andwyol eithafol o ganlyniad i fwyta cynnyrch yr oedd ganddynt alergedd difrifol
iddo.

Page 14



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn nodi Adroddiad Blynyddol y Gwasanaethau
Rheoleiddio a Rennir ar gyfer 2018/19.

5. DIWYGIAD I'R CYNLLUN DIRPRWYO SWYDDOGAETHAU — DEDDF RHENTU
CARTREFI (FFIOEDD ETC.) (CYMRU) 2019

Cyflwynodd Rheolwr Gweithredol y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir adroddiad er
mwyn hysbysu’r Cabinet ynghylch deddfwriaeth newydd sef y ddeddfwriaeth uchod a
cheisio diwygio’r Cynllun Dirprwy Swyddogaethau i fod yn unol & hyn.

Cadarnhaodd fod Deddf Rhentu Cartrefi (Ffioedd etc) (Cymru) 2019 wedi dod i rym ar 5
Mai 2019. Er 1 Medi 2019, caiff asiantau gosod a landlordiaid sy’n rheoli eu heiddo eu
hunain eu hatal rhag codi unrhyw ffioedd cyn, yn ystod neu ar 6l tenantiaeth, oni iddynt
gael eu heithrio’n benodol dan ddarpariaethau’r Ddeddf. Gelwir y fath daliad yn ‘daliad
gwaharddedig’. Ychwanegodd fod Asiantau Gosod a Landlordiaid Hunan-Reoli wedi'u
gwahardd hefyd rhag gofyn i denant godi benthyciad neu ddechrau ontract am
wasanaethau.

Gellir ymgymryd & gorfodaeth gofynion newydd o’r fath dan y Cyngor a Rhentu Doeth
Cymru (fel yr Un Awdurdod Trwyddedu). Byddant yn cyfrannu at brofiad tecach a mwy
tryloyw i denantiaid sy’n dibynnu ar y sector rhent preifat.

Ychwanegodd Rheolwr Gweithredol y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir fod
Llywodraeth Cymru’n credu y dylai unrhyw gostau sy’n gysylltiedig & rhentu yn y sector
preifat fod yn rhesymol, yn fforddiadwy ac yn dryloyw.

Diffiniodd paragraff 3.5 yr adroddiad y gwahanol ddulliau y gellir gofyn am daliad gan
asiantau gosod a landlordiaid hunan-reoli, wrth i ran nesaf yr adroddiad amlygu materion
eraill mewn perthynas a thaliadau, gan gynnwys y rhai sydd wedi’'u gwahardd.

Aeth ymlaen ymhellach, trwy gadarnhau bod troseddau wedi’u cyflawni lle methodd
landlordiaid ac/neu asiantau gydymffurfio &'r Ddeddf ac roedd awdurdodau lleol yn
gyfrifol am orfodi'r ddeddfwriaeth hon, mewn partneriaeth & Rhentu Doeth Cymru.

At hynny, ychwanegodd mai awdurdodau lleol oedd yn bennaf gyfrifol am orfodi
gofynion y Ddeddf a bod ganddynt ddyletswydd i hysbysu Rhentu Doeth Cymru petaen
nhw’n cymryd camau gorfodi. Bydd gan Rentu Doeth Cymru ddyletswydd hefyd i roi
gwybod i Awdurdodau Lleol, os cyflwynant hysbysiad cosb benodedig neu’n erlyn dan y
Ddeddf newydd. Roedd dau ddewis gorfodi ffurfiol fel y disgrifir ym Mharagraff 4.3 yr
adroddiad, wrth i baragraff 4.4 amlinellu’r ddarpariaeth newydd arfaethedig i'w rhoi i
mewn yng Nghynllun B2 y Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau.

Cwblhaodd ei gyflwyniad trwy gadarnhau y bydd angen i'r Cytundeb Cydweithio ar gyfer
y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir gael ei amrywio hefyd, oherwydd bod nifer y
dirprwyaethau i'r Gwasanaeth yn cael eu hymestyn.

Rhoddodd y Rheolwr Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol wybod mai
adroddiad newyddion da oedd hwn - roedd yn atal tenantiaid rhag cael eu cam-fanteisio
arnynt yn y dyfodol gan landlordiaid ac yn y blaen.

Cyfeiriodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd at baragraff 3.5 yr adroddiad mewn perthynas a
thaliadau a ganiateir. Dywedod pan oedd yn aelod o Fwrdd V2C, roedd problem mewn
perthynas & gwahanu ffioedd rhent wrth rai costau eraill oedd yn gysylltiedig &’r tenant,
er enghraifft, torri glaswellt neu broblemau fel codi am osod inswleiddiad gwrthsain
rhwng eiddo rhent dan unrhyw Gytundeb Rheoli a allai fod ar waith. Gofynnodd sut

Page 15



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

byddai materion fel hyn yn cael eu hystyried dan y Ddeddf newydd a thaliadau a
ganiateir gan fod y rhain yn daliadau ychwanegol uwchlaw’r rhent.

Rhoddodd Rheolwr Gweithredol y Gwasanaethau Rheoleiddio a Rennir wybod mai prif
ddiben y ddeddfwriaeth newydd oedd osgoi landlordiaid yn meddu ar y gallu i godi
costau sylweddol annheg ar denantiaid oedd ymhell uwchlaw’r rhent safonol i osod
eiddo. Fodd bynnag, ychwanegodd fod hyn yn dibynnu hefyd ar gael cytundebau
cyfamodol ar waith rhwng y landlord a’r tenant. Cadarnhaodd y byddai’n edrych i mewn
i'r pwynt hwn ac yn dod yn 6l at y Dirprwy arweinydd y tu allan i’r cyfarfod.

Ychwanegodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol, ei bod hi’'n
debygol bod ffioedd pellach fel y rhai y cyfeirir atynt uchod, wedi’u dosbarthu fel
cyfleustodau a gwasanaethau eraill fel rhan o unrhyw gytundeb tenantiaeth.

Cyfeiriodd yr Arweinydd at baragraff 4.3 yr adroddiad ac atgyfnerthodd bwysigrwydd y
dewisiadau gorfodi oedd ar gael, os nad oedd landlordiaid yn cydymffurfio'n llawn &'r
cynllun taliadau a ganiateir, a oedd yn cynnwys cyhoeddi hysbysiad cosb benodedig o
£1,000, lle byddai’r taliad yn osgoi achosion o erlyn.

Yn ogystal, anogodd hyrwyddo effeithiol o’r cynigion trwy gynifer o lwybrau a phosibl,
gan gynnwys ar-lein, yn ogystal ag atgoffa landlordiaid yn uniongyrchol o’'u cyfrifoldebau
dan y ddeddfwriaeth newydd.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet:

1) Yn cymeradwyo'’r diwygiad i'r Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau fel y gosodwyd
ym mharagraff 4.4 yr adroddiad.

2) Yn cymeradwyo bod gan y Swyddog Monitro awdurdod wedi’i ddirprwyo er mwyn
awdurdodi swyddogion perthnasol i gyflawni’r grymoedd gorfodi statudol yn &l yr
angen;

3) Awdurdod wedi’i ddirprwyo i'r Swyddog Monitro gymeradwyo a chwblhau a
chyflawni telerau’r Weithred Amrywio fel y gosodwyd ym mharagraff 4.5 yr
adroddiad.

6. STRATEGAETH DDIGARTREFEDD 2018 - 2022

Cyflwynodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Perfformiad a Phartneriaeth adroddiad i gael
cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i fabwysiadu a chyflwyno Strategaeth a Chynllun Gweithredu
Digartrefedd 2018 — 2022 i Lywodraeth Cymru, sydd wedi ystyried yr ymatebion i’'r
ymgynghoriad.

Cadarnhaodd cefndir yr adroddiad fod Rhan 2 Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014 yn gosod
dyletswydd ar y Cyngor i gyflawni Adolygiad Digartrefedd ar gyfer ei ardal a mabwysiadu
Strategaeth Ddigartrefedd, ar sail canlyniadau’r adolygiad hwnnw. Dylai’r strategaeth
edrych ar:

+ Atal digartrefedd;

¢ Bod llety addas ar gael ac mi fydd llety addas ar gael i bobl sy’n ddigartref neu a allai
fynd yn ddigartref;

¢ Bod cefnogaeth foddhaol ar gael i bobl sy’n ddigartref neu a allai fynd yn ddigartref.

Rhoddodd wybod i Aelodau fod cyd-gynhyrchu’n egwyddor allweddol wrth ddatblygu’r
Strategaeth, ac yn ystod hynny, cafodd safbwyntiau’r defnyddwyr gwasanaeth, yn

Page 16



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

ogystal &'r gweithwyr proffesiynol oedd ynghlwm a darparu gwasanaethau a
chefnogaeth i bobl ddigartref eu coladu. Ychwanegodd fod ymgynghorydd annibynnol
hefyd wedi’i gomisiynu i ymgymryd &’r Adolygiad Digartrefedd.

Llenwyd 76 holiadur gan ddefnyddwyr gwasanaeth, a ddarparodd wybodaeth allweddol
a arweiniodd at lywio’'r amcanion a’r camau a fabwysiadwyd gan y Strategaeth.
Rhoddodd y rhyngweithio &'r defnyddwyr gwasanaeth gyfle i drafod gydag unigolion a’'u
galluogodd i leisio’u blaenoriaethau allweddol i weithredu arnynt, yn ogystal ag amlygu
eu profiadau. Roedd hyn yn cynnwys cyflwyniadau o’r rhesymau am fod yn ddigartref, y
canlyniadau a gyflawnwyd ac a ddymunir a demograffeg cefndir. Ymhlith y
gweithgareddau eraill y cymerwyd rhan ynddynt i gasglu gwybodaeth oedd:

* Cynhaliwyd gweithdy hanner diwrnod gyda Chyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar

Ogwr (CBSP) a'r Timau Cefnogi Pobl ac Atebion Tai i archwilio’u safbwyntiau ar

ddarpariaeth leol a’u perfformiad yn unol & Deddf Tai (Cymru) 2014;

e Cynhaliwyd gweithdy hanner diwrnod gyda Gwasanaethau Statudol CBSP;
Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig a Darparwyr;

¢ Ymgynghoriad gyda Bwrdd lechyd Cwm Taf Morgannwg.

Ymbhlith yr ymgyngoreion proffesiynol oedd yn rhan o’r broses oedd:

Statudol:

* CBSP — Atebion Tai

* CBSP - Y Tim Cefnogi Pobl

* CBSP - Y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol

* CBSP - lechyd yr Amgylchedd

* CBSP — Aelod Lleol gyda Phortffolio Lles

* Heddlu De Cymru

* Byrddau lechyd Prifysgol Bae Abertawe a Phrifysgol Cwm Taf Morgannwg

Darparwyr:

» The Wallich

* Pobl Care & Support
* Llamau

» Calan DVS

* Shelter Cymru

Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig:
» Hafod Housing

* Linc Cymru

* United Welsh

* Valleys to Coast

Atgoffodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Perfformiad a Phartneriaeth fod ymgynghoriad
cyhoeddus yn amlinellu’r Strategaeth wedi’i gynnal dros gyfnod o chwe wythnos, yn
dilyn cyflwyniad o’r Strategaeth i'r Cabinet ar 22 lonawr 2019.

Cyfeiriodd at Atodiad A yr adroddiad, a oedd yn cynnwys crynodeb o’r ymgynghoriad
cyhoeddus a gynhaliwyd, tra cafodd y Strategaeth ei hun ei dangos yn Atodiad B.

Yna, casglodd yr adroddiad, gan ddatgan mai nod y Strategaeth oedd cydweithio’n
gorfforaethol gyda phartneriaid allanol a defnyddwyr gwasanaeth, mewn ffordd
ymatebol, greadigol ac amserol, er mwyn atal a lleddfu digartrefedd ar hyd y Fwrdeistref
Sirol. Byddai hyn yn sicrhau y gall pobl droi at lety addas, gyda’r gefnogaeth briodol sy’n
ofynnol i fodloni eu hanghenion.

Page 17



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol ei bod hi’'n drist
nodi o dudalen 75 y Strategaeth mai'r rheswm mwyaf am ddigartrefedd oedd colli llety
rhent neu glwm gan nad oedd perthnasau neu ffrindiau mwyach yn fodlon lletya neu eu
bod yn methu lletya mwyach. Ychwanegodd fod dibyniaeth sylweddol ar y sector rhent
preifat i gynorthwyo wrth gefnogi’'r digartref.

Cyfeiriodd hefyd at dudalen 83 y Strategaeth ac o edrych ymlaen, sut byddai’'n datblygu
ymhellach trwy wahanol ddulliau, fel y Tim Atebion Tai yn penodi Swyddog Datblygu
Porth, a fyddai'n gyfrifol am ddatblygu a rheoli Porth i wasanaethau cymorth, a fyddai'n
cynnwys llety & chymorth. Ychwanegodd y byddai hefyd yn mynd ar drywydd ffyrdd
newydd a mwy arloesol o weithio.

Yn ogystal, nododd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol gyda’r
newid disgwyliedig mewn demograffeg, roedd hyn yn debygol o arwain at gynnydd
mewn pobl dros 55 oed yn canfod eu hunain yn ddigartref.

Rhoddodd yr Arweinydd wybod ei fod yn falch o nodi bod y Gwasanaethau Tai wedi
lansio gwasanaeth peilot (SCART) gyda’r nod o gefnogi’n well y bobl ddigartref a
chanddynt broblemau iechyd meddwl, yn ogystal & rhoi gwell mecanweithiau ar waith i
gefnogi’r unigolion hynny sy’n cysgu ar y stryd, h.y. yn ystod y dydd.

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Perfformiad a Phartneriaeth fod y Cyngor
wedi bod yn gweithio gyda chyrff fel Pobl Care and Support a The Wallich (prif elusen
digartrefedd Cymru), er mwyn cefnogi pobl sy’n cysgu ar y stryd yn ystod y dydd yn
Eglwys Nolton, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, a hynny bob dydd Mercher a dydd lau.
Ychwanegodd fod darpariaeth debyg yn cael ei darparu yn Nhy Ogwr hefyd.

Rhoddodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar
wybod iddo gael ei annog i nodi paragraff 4.2 yr adroddiad, lle’'r oedd yr Awdurdod yn
canolbwyntio ar ddysgu safbwyntiau defnyddwyr gwasanaeth a gwrando ar weithwyr
proffesiynol sy’n darparu gwasanaethau a chymorth i bobl ddigartref trwy ymgynghori.
Bu hyn/roedd hyn yn bwysig iawn, gan fod adborth o hyn wedi llywio amcanion a’r
camau gweithredu a fabwysiadwyd yn dilyn hynny gan y Strategaeth.

At hynny, ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd fod angen darparu mwy o Dai Cymdeithasol a
Chartrefi Fforddiadwy yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol, er mwyn darparu nid yn unig ar gyfer y
digartref ond hefyd i deuluoedd mewn eiddo gorlawn ac anaddas. Pwysleisiodd hefyd
fod mwy o gamau gweithredu’n cael eu cymryd yn erbyn eiddo gwag, er mwyn iddynt
gael eu hadfer i ddefnydd preswyl, gan fod llawer gormod o’r rhain yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol
ar hyn o bryd.

PENDERFYNWYD: (1) Bod y Cabinet yn mabwysiadu’r Strategaeth
Ddigartrefedd sydd ynghlwm fel Atodiad B i'r adroddiad
i'w chyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru.

(2) Bod y Cabinet yn cael adroddiad cynnydd pellach maes
o law.

7. POLIS| GORFODAETH AMGYLCHEDDOL

Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr adroddiad a geisiodd gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i
fabwysiadu Polisi Gorfodaeth diwygiedig at y diben o gyhoeddi Hysbysiadau Cosb
Benodedig ar gyfer Troseddau Amgylcheddol.

Rhoddodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau — Gwasanaethau Cymunedol wybod ar 16 Ebrill
2019, cymeradwyodd y Cabinet ymarfer ymgynghori i geisio safbwyntiau’r cyhoedd,

Page 18



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

mewn perthynas & Pholisi Gorfodaeth diwygiedig. Roedd y ddogfen hon yn cynnwys y
gweithdrefnau ar gyfer cyhoeddi Hysbysiadau Cosb Benodedig, lefel y dirwyon a
gostyngiad am dalu’n gynnar.

Cadarnhaodd fod arolwg ymgynghori &’r cyhoedd seiliedig ar Bolisi Gorfodaeth
diwygiedig Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi’'i gynnal dros gyfnod o
ddeuddeg wythnos rhwng 17 Mehefin 2019 ac 8 Medi 2019. Roedd yr arolwg ar gael i'w
lenwi ar-lein, ar dudalennau ymgynghori gwefan y Cyngor a gallai'r trigolion hefyd ofyn
am gopi papur neu fformat arall dros y ffébn neu drwy e-bost. Yn ogystal, gwahoddwyd
sylwadau mewn perthynas &’r ymgynghoriad trwy lythyr, e-bost a dros y ffon.

At ei gilydd, roedd angen ymateb gan ymatebwyr i ddeuddeg cwestiwn. Roedd pob
cwestiwn yn yr arolwg yn ddewisol a chynigiwyd anhysbysedd i'r ymatebydd. Cafodd set
safonol y Cyngor o gwestiynau monitro cydraddoldeb eu cynnwys gyda’r arolwg hefyd,
oherwydd argymbhellir ei bod hi’n arfer da ar gyfer pob arolwg sy’n wynebu’r cyhoedd ac
a gynhelir gan yr Awdurdod.

Esboniodd fod cyfanswm o 18 arolwg wedi’u cwblhau, gan gynrychioli 0.01% o
boblogaeth Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Mae hyn yn destun gwall safonol
uchaf o fwy/llai na 23.10% ar y lefel hyder o0 95%. Felly, ceir hyder o 95% fod yr
ymatebion hyn yn cynrychioli'r rhai a fyddai’'n cael eu rhoi gan y cyfanswm poblogaeth
oedolion.

Cafodd manylion llawn yr ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus a’i ganfyddiadau eu cysylltu yn
Atodiad A i'r adroddiad er mwyn i’r Cabinet eu hystyried, tra cafodd gopi o'r Polisi
Gorfodaeth ei gysylltu yn Atodiad B.

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol ei bod hi'n
bwysig cydnabod y bydd cyhoeddi pob Hysbysiad Cosb Benodedig yn cael ei ystyried
yn 6l ei haeddiant unigol a materion yn ymwneud & chymesuredd, gwrthrychedd, tegwch
a rhesymoldeb. Roedd system ar waith i gynnig apél neu i wrthwynebu’r hysbysiad ac i
gadw hygrededd y broses. Ni ddylid dod & phwysau allanol gormodol, naill ai gan
aelodau’r Cyngor neu gan Uwch Swyddogion, a allai gael eu camddehongli i
ddylanwadu’n ormodol ar y penderfyniadau yn rhinwedd eu sefyllfa nhw yn unig. Roedd
hon yn broses debyg a fabwysiadwyd gan Farsialiaid y Meysydd Parcio wrth gyhoeddi
dirwyon am droseddau parcio.

Clodd ei gyflwyniad, trwy ehangu ar rai pwyntiau amlwg iawn a amlinellwyd yn yr
Adroddiad Ymgynghori oedd ynghlwm &’r adroddiad eglurhaol.

Teimlai’r Dirprwy Arweinydd fod dull teg iawn a fyddai’'n cael ei gymryd mewn perthynas
ag unigolion. Ailadroddodd fod y rhai sy’n torri’r polisi yn cael eu hatgoffa o
ddarpariaethau hyn; yn cael rhybudd, ac yna’'n cael eu dirwyo pe bydden nhw’n
ailadrodd unrhyw drosedd o’r fath.

Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol at y Tabl Dirwyon ar
dudalen 114 yr adroddiad, a gofynnodd sut roedd y Cyngor yn bwriadu cyfathrebu &’r
cyhoedd am y gwahanol gategoriau o droseddau, ynghyd a lefel y dirwyon ar gyfer pob
un o’r rhain.

Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol fod swm
sylweddol o hysbysiadau i'r cyhoedd mewn perthynas &’r Polisi wedi’u cyfleu trwy nifer o
wahanol ddulliau, ond byddai rhagor o waith hyrwyddo’n cael ei wneud i godi lefel
ymwybyddiaeth pobl o ddarpariaethau hyn. Byddai hyn yn cynnwys lefel y ddyletswydd
a roddwyd ar ddeiliaid cartrefi sy’n rhoi gwastraff yn y gwahanol gynwysyddion a

Page 19



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

ddarperir at y diben hwn. Byddai dyletswydd arnynt i ddefnyddio’r cynhwysydd cywir ar
gyfer y math cywir o wastraff, neu gallen nhw gael dirwy.

Cloédd yr Arweinydd y ddadl ar yr adroddiad, gan ychwanegu y byddai’n fanteisiol hefyd
pe gellid dangos arwyddion ar hyd ardaloedd o’r Fwrdeistref Sirol i atal y cyhoedd rhag
cyflawni unrhyw drosedd Gorfodi ar hyd y llinellau a gwmpaswyd gan y Polisi.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn cymeradwyo ac yn mabwysiadu’r Polisi Gorfodi
diwygiedig i gyhoeddi Hysbysiadau Cosb Benodedig ar gyfer
troseddau amgylcheddol.

8. GRANT CARTREFI GWAG TASGLU'R CYMOEDD

Cyflwynodd y Prif Weithredwr adroddiad, a’r diben oedd ceisio cymeradwyaeth y
Cabinet i fynd i gytundeb lefel gwasanaeth gyda Chyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda
Cynon Taf ar gyfer Grant Cartrefi Gwag Tasglu'r Cymoedd ac i ddirprwyo awdurdod i
Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf (CBS RhCT) i gyflwyno a rheoli Grantiau
Cartrefi Gwag i berchnogion eiddo yn Nhasglu’r Cymoedd Ardal Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Esboniodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol fod y Gweinidog
Tai a Llywodraeth Leol wedi cytuno cefnogi tasglu’r Cymoedd trwy gyflwyno Grant
Cartrefi Gwag i bob awdurdod lleol yn ardaloedd y tasglu, fel peilot ar gyfer y cyfnod o fis
Hydref 2019 hyd at ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2020. Mae £10 miliwn wedi’i roi i'r naill ochr ar
gyfer eiddo gwag dros y ddwy flynedd nesaf yn yr ardaloedd hynny.

Clustnodwyd £4,500,000 ar gyfer y cyfnod peilot i gyflwyno’r rhaglen. Ni ddisgwylir
cyfraniad ariannol gan awdurdodau lleol ar gyfer y cam hwn o'r rhaglen Grant Cartrefi
Gwag. Ar gyfer Cam 2, bydd disgwyl i Awdurdodau Lleol wneud cyfraniad o 35% tuag at
y gronfa. Yn ariannol, cefnogwyd Cam 1 y prosiect yn llawn trwy gyllid grant.

Ychwanegodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol y bydd y grant
hwn yn cefnogi cyflawniad y Cyngor a blaenoriaeth Llywodraeth Cymru o adfer y
defnydd o eiddo gwag yng Nghymoedd Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, er mwyn
helpu adfywio cymunedau, rhoi mwy o ddewis o lety a llety addas i drigolion.

Rhoddodd y rhan nesaf o’r adroddiad drosolwg o’r sefyllifa sydd ohoni, ynghyd &'r
cymhwyster ac amodau cynllun Grant Cartrefi Gwag Tasglu’r Cymoedd, a dywedodd y
Pennaeth Gweithrediadau - Gwasanaethau Cymunedol, y byddai CBS RhCT yn cyflawni
ac yn rheoli’r Cynllun yn ardal Tasglu’r Cymoedd Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, gyda CBSP
wedyn yn mynd i Gytundeb Lefel Gwasanaeth gyda’r Awdurdod hwn i droi at y cyllid
dynodedig.

Mewn perthynas & Cham 2 y Cynllun, pwysleisiodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau —
Gwasanaethau Cymunedol y byddai hyn yn dechrau ym mis Ebrill 2020 gyda chynnig o’r
cynllun sy’n cael ei ddatblygu ar hyn o bryd. Byddai adroddiad pellach yn cael ei
ddarparu i’r Cabinet mewn perthynas & Cham 2 os bydd y Cyngor yn edrych i fynd i
mewn i hyn.

Mewn perthynas &’r camau nesaf, cadarnhaodd y byddai angen i'r Cabinet ystyried y
cynigion y manylir arnynt yn yr adroddiad a chadarnhau p’un ai i symud ymlaen & Cham
1y Cynllun ac os bydd yn cael ei gytuno, yna byddai'r Awdurdod yn arwyddo’r Cytundeb
Lefel Gwasanaeth i weinyddu’r grant.

Gwnaeth yr Aelod Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol y pwynt ei bod hi'n

falch o nodi fod Llywodraeth Cymru (LIC) yn mynd i'r afael &'r broblem o Eiddo Gwag yn
aros yn wag. Nododd hefyd fod yr amserau targed ar gyfer Cam Un a Dau (petai’r olaf

Page 20



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

yn cael cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet) y Cynllun i weld yn uchelgeisiol. Gofynnodd pryd
byddai Cam 1 yn cael ei gwblhau a pha feysydd yr oedd y Cynllun yn eu cwmpasu.

Rhoddodd y Pennaeth Gweithrediadau — Gwasanaethau Cymunedol wybod fod disgwyl
i Gam 1 gael ei gwblhau erbyn 31 Mawrth 2020, ond cyfaddefodd mai graddfa amser
cymharol fer oedd hwn er mwyn manteisio’n llawn ar y grant.

Dywedodd y Prif Weithredwr iddynt gwmpasu cyn belled & Phont-y-pWwl i’r dwyrain a
Chydweli i'r gorllewin, 3 prif ardal y cymoedd a rhai ardaloedd i gyfeiriad y gogledd o’r
M4. Fodd bynnag, ychwanegodd bod angen eglurhad ar union raddau’r ardaloedd gan
LIC gan nad oedd y rhain yn glir o’r cynlluniau perthnasol. Nododd nad oedd Y Goetre
Hen wedi’i chynnwys, ond ystyriodd fod y pentref hwn ar flaenau’r cymoedd (h.y.
Maesteg) a heb ei gynnwys fel rhan o Dasglu’r Cymoedd Ardal Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Gwnaeth yr Arweinydd, fel y cyfeiriodd ato mewn eitem agenda flaenorol, annog y
trigolion gydag eiddo gwag yn Ardal Tasglu’r Cymoedd i ddod &'r rhain i lefel y gellid byw
ynddynt, gan gofio y byddai cyllid ar gael gan y Cyngor er mwyn cynorthwyo yn hyn o
beth, fel y cyfeiriwyd ato yn yr adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet:

1) Yn cymeradwyo’r cynigion amlinellol ar gyfer Grant Cartrefi Gwasg Tasglu'r
Cymoedd, fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad;

2) Yn nodi ac yn derbyn y risgiau a’r materion a amlygwyd ym mharagraff 4.5 yr
adroddiad.

3) Yn dirprwyo awdurdod i CBS RhCT er mwyn cyflwyno a rheoli’r cynllun yn
Nhasglu'r Cymoedd ardal Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn unol & pharagraff 4.2 yr
adroddiad.

4) Yn dirprwyo awdurdod i'r Pennaeth Gweithrediadau — Gwasanaethau
Cymunedau, trwy ymgynghori &'r Swyddog Adran 151 a Phennaeth y
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, er mwyn trafod a chytuno telerau'r
cytundeb lefel gwasanaeth gyda Chyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf
a dechrau cytundeb lefel gwasanaeth.

9. AIL-GOMISIYNU GWASANAETHAU BYW GYDA CHYMORTH

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles
adroddiad, a'i ddiben oedd gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i weithredu’r cynllun ail-
gomisiynu arfaethedig ar gyfer y Gwasanaethau Byw Gyda Chymorth ar draws
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i Gyngor
Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (y Cyngor) ymgymryd ag ymarfer caffael i wahodd
tendrau i sefydlu Cytundeb Fframwaith o ddarparwyr gwasanaeth a gomisiynwyd.

Esboniodd fod y Cyngor wedi cynnal ymarfer caffael yn 2016, a arweiniodd at benodi tri
darparwr gwasanaeth annibynnol i gyflwyno gwasanaethau Byw gyda Chymorth i
unigolion cymwys gydag anabledd dysgu.

Yn ystod 2018-19, cynhaliwyd adolygiad manwl dan arweiniad tim Trawsnewid ac
Adolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol i Oedolion, a ganolbwyntiodd ar effeithiolrwydd cyflwyno
gwasanaethau a chanlyniadau i unigolion ar draws y tri darparwr gwasanaeth
annibynnol.

Page 21



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

Aeth y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles yn ei flaen trwy
gadarnhau bod y contractau cyfredol mewn perthynas & Gwasanaethau Byw gyda
Chymorth yn rhai Ledled y Sir, gan olygu bod rhaid i un o’r tri darparwr gwasanaeth
dyledus reoli nifer o gynlluniau Byw gyda Chymorth wedi’'u gwasgaru ar draws y
Fwrdeistref Sirol gyfan, a wnaeth esgor ar rai heriau i ddarparwyr gwasanaeth.

Rhoddodd y rhan nesaf o’r adroddiad wybod fod lleoliad cynlluniau cyfredol yn syrthio i
ardaloedd naturiol lleol, sy’n cefnogi symudiad tuag at gontractau cymunedol yn yr
ardaloedd daearyddol a welir ym mharagraff 4.2 yr adroddiad. Roedd hyn yn fwy hyblyg
ac yn seiliedig ar yr hyn yr oedd ar ddefnyddwyr gwasanaeth eu hangen a’u heisiau.

Esboniodd Paragraff 4.6 yr adroddiad y byddai’'r uchod yn cael ei gynnal ar ddull mewn
camau am nifer o resymau, gan gynnwys i sicrhau bod cyn lleied o ymyrraeth & phosibl
ar gyfer y rhai sy’n cael eu heffeithio gan y newid.

Aeth ymlaen i esbonio na fyddai darparwyr gwasanaeth ar y Cytundeb Fframwaith yn
cael sicrwydd o ddyfarniad Gwasanaeth Ardal Lleol, y bydd pob un yn destun ei broses
dendro a’i werthusiad ei hun. Er mwyn lliniaru risg effaith methiant busnes i’r dyfodol, ni
fydd yr un darparwr yn cael contract Gwasanaeth(au) Ardal Leol wedi’'i ddyfarnu iddynt,
lle bydd ganddynt gyfran o dros 50% o’r farchnad.

Roedd paragraff 4.11 yr adroddiad yn cynnwys tabl a osododd yr amserlenni caffael
Cam 1 petai cymeradwyaeth yn cael ei rhoi i weithredu’r Cynllun Ail-gomisiynu.

Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles, fel
rhan o Gam 2 y broses gaffael, y bwriedir i bawb sy’n byw mewn cynllun Byw Gyda
Chymorth hefyd allu dweud beth sy’n bwysig yn y gwasanaeth a ‘beth sy’n bwysig’
iddynt hwy.

Aeth ymlaen gan gadarnhau bod rhai digwyddiadau ymgysylltu wedi’'u cynnal a bod prif
ganfyddiadau’r rhain wedi’'u dangos ym mharagraff 4.14 yr adroddiad.

Cadarnhaodd Paragraff 4.18 yr adroddiad (fel yr amlygwyd ym mharagraff 3.3) fod y
Gwasanaeth Byw gyda Chymorth Anabledd Dysgu’'n wasanaeth a ariennir ar y cyd,
gyda rhyw 75% o’r costau’n cael eu hariannu trwy gyllidebau craidd Gofal Cymdeithasol
i Oedolion ar gyfer elfennau gofal y gwasanaeth, ac ariennir oddeutu 25% trwy Grant
Cymorth Tai Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer elfennau cymorth cysylltiedig a thai'r
gwasanaeth.

Ar hyn o bryd, caiff y llifoedd ariannu hyn eu gwahanu sy’n achosi dryswch i ddarparwyr
gwasanaeth ac mae’n broses gymhleth hefyd i gomisiynwyr a thimau cymorth. Wrth
symud ymlaen, cynigiwyd cyfuno’r llifoedd ariannu hyn, a fydd wedyn yn galluogi ar
gyfer dull sy’n canolbwyntio mwy ar y person ac ar ganlyniadau er mwyn cyflwyno
gwasanaethau, yn lle’r dull presennol o gapio a gosod oriau cymorth cysylltiedig a thai.

Yna, clédd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles yr
adroddiad, trwy gynghori ar ei oblygiadau ariannol.

Canmolwyd yr adroddiad gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a
Chymorth Cynnar, gan ychwanegu bod y cynigion sydd wedi’'u cynnwys ynddo’n dangos
bod y gwasanaeth yn gwrando ar yr hyn y mae defnyddwyr eisiau wrth symud ymlaen.
O wireddu nodau ac amcanion yr adroddiad, byddai’'n galluogi ar gyfer dulliau mwy
arloesol a hyblyg er mwyn cefnogi defnyddwyr gwasanaeth yn y dyfodol.

Page 22



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

Gofynnodd yr Arweinydd a fu grivp Fforwm Rhieni Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ynghlwm &'’r
cynigion ail-gomisiynu, lle’r atebodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau
Cymdeithasol a Lles eu bod wedi bod ynghlwm.

Ychwanegodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar
hefyd fod y cynigion wedi cael cymorth gan grwpiau Eiriolaeth Annibynnol (a oedd yn
annibynnol ar yr awdurdod lleol)

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet:

e Yn cymeradwyo'r cynllun ail-gomisiynu a gynigiwyd ar gyfer y gwasanaethau
Byw gyda Chymorth ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr;

¢ Yn cymeradwyo’r gwahoddiad o dendrau i sefydlu Cytundeb Fframwaith;

e Yn nodi pan fydd cynigion i'r Cytundeb Fframwaith yn cael eu derbyn gan
ddarparwyr gwasanaeth, bydd adroddiad pellach yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet
yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth i fynd i mewn i'r Cytundeb Fframwaith ac i
weithredu caffael Cam 2 tendrau’r Gwasanaeth Ardal Leol.

10.  ADOLYGIAD O'R DDARPARIAETH OL-16 AR DRAWS PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR
(ADRODDIAD CAM 4)

Atgoffodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Addysg a Chymorth i'r Teulu yr Aelodau, ym
mis Ebrill 2019, rhoddodd y Cabinet gymeradwyaeth i waith gael ei wneud i baratoi
cynigion dewisiadau penodol dan Gam 4 yr adolygiad o ddarpariaeth 6I-16 ar draws
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Darparodd yr adroddiad diweddaru hwn fanylder i’r Cabinet o’r cynigion dewis hynny, ac
mae’n gofyn am gymeradwyaeth i fynd i ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ar sail y cynigion yn
Atodiad 1 a gwybodaeth gefnogol yn Atodiadau 2 i 4.

Cadarnhaodd trwy wybodaeth gefndir, yn 2016, sefydlwyd Bwrdd Adolygu Strategol.

Yn ei dro, sefydlodd y Bwrdd Adolygu Strategol Fwrdd Gweithredol OI-16 i adolygu’r
ddarpariaeth 61-16 ar draws Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Cyflwynodd y Bwrdd
hwn ei adroddiad yn 6l i'r Bwrdd Adolygu Strategol ac yna i'r Cabinet ym mis Hydref
2017. Argymhellodd y Bwrdd Adolygu Strategol y chwe chysyniad i'w hystyried ar gyfer
dyfodol addysg 6I-16 ac argymhellodd ddau ddewis ffafriol. Cymeradwyodd y Cabinet yr
argymhellion hyn a gofynnodd am gael mwy o waith manwl| wedi’'i wneud. Cwblhawyd
hwn ac adroddwyd yn 6l i'r Cabinet ym mis Ebrill 2018 lle rhoddodd y Cabinet
gymeradwyaeth am ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ar y chwe chysyniad a’r dewisiadau
dethol ar gyfer darpariaeth 61-16 ar draws Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Yn codi o’r uchod a thrwy ymgynghoriadau pellach a gynhaliwyd yn dilyn hynny,
cymeradwyodd y Cabinet ddadansoddiad pellach fis Ebrill diwethaf o’r tri dewis o’'r 6
chysyniad gwreiddiol ac amlinellwyd manylion y rhain ym mharagraff 4.1 yr adroddiad.

Gwybodaeth gefnogol mewn perthynas & phob un o’r rhain, cafodd Dewisiadau eu
cynnwys yn y wybodaeth gefnogol sydd ynghlwm &’r adroddiad, ar ffurf cyfres o
Atodiadau.

Cloédd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Addysg a Chymorth i'r Teulu ei adroddiad trwy roi
gwybod bod cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet bellach yn cael ei cheisio i gymryd y cynigion
dewis y manylwyd arnynt yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad, allan am ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus
0 2 Rhagfyr 2019 i 21 Chwefror 2020, gyda’r bwriad o ddod & chanlyniadau’r
ymgynghoriad yn &l i'r Cabinet ym mis Ebrill 2020. Yn ogystal, bydd astudiaethau
dichonoldeb yn cael eu paratoi, yn enwedig lle mae goblygiadau cyfalaf, ac yn cael eu

Page 23



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

cyflwyno i'r Cabinet ynghyd & chanlyniadau’r ymgynghoriad, os bydd y Cabinet yn rhoi
cymeradwyaeth i fynd allan i ymgynghoriad.

Diolchodd yr Aelod Cabinet — Addysg ac Adfywio i'r Swyddog Arbenigol — Addysg a
Hyfforddiant Ol-16 am roi adroddiad mor llawn o wybodaeth at ei gilydd. Ychwanegodd
mai Dewis 3 yn yr adroddiad fu'r dewis mwyaf ffafriol i fynd ar ei drywydd yn'y
gorffennol, ond byddai ymgynghoriad pellach yn dilyn a fyddai’'n cael ei ddatgelu os
dyma oedd yr achos o hyd, neu a fyddai dewis arall yn cael ei ffafrio.

Roedd yn llwyr ddeall barn nifer fawr, sef mai’r dewis poblogaidd fyddai cadw 6¢¢
dosbarth ym mhob Ysgol Gyfun yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol, ond byddai angen cydweithredu
ac adnoddau ariannol sylweddol i wneud hyn. Croesawodd y cyfraniad gan Drosolwg a
Chraffu Pwnc 1 y Cyngor ar adolygu OI-16, lle bu Aelodau’r Pwyllgor hwn yn gefnogol
fwy neu lai o’r cynigion wrth symud ymlaen.

Gofynnodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol a wnaed unrhyw
gyfrif hyd yma o’r costau’'n ymwneud a’r 3 Dewis sy’n cael eu rhoi gerbron, i gynnwys
costau cludiant ysgol a’r costau cyfalaf potensial.

Cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Addysg a Chymorth i'r Teulu y byddai’r
rhain yn cael eu hystyried yn llawn fel rhan o gam nesaf y prosiect.

Datganodd yr Arweinydd ei fod yn falch o weld y byddai’r ymgynghoriad nesaf yn broses
gynhwysfawr unwaith eto.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet yn rhoi cymeradwyaeth i fynd i ymgynghoriad ar y
dewisiadau y manylwyd arnynt yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad, ar gyfer
dyfodol Addysg OI-16 ar draws Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar
Ogwr.

11. GRANT DYSGU CYMUNEDOL — CANOLFAN Y DWYRAIN

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Cymunedol — Addysg a Chymorth i'r Teulu adroddiad, gyda’r
bwriad o ddarparu gwybodaeth i'r Cabinet mewn perthynas a4 Grant Dysgu Cymunedol
Llywodraeth Cymru a phrosiect Canolfan y Dwyrain.

Amlinellodd adran gwybodaeth gefndir yr adroddiad, fod llety wedi’i ddiogelu ar gyfer
Canolfan y Gogledd yng Ngholeg Cymunedol y Dderwen ac ar gyfer Canolfan y
Gorllewin yng Nghanolfan Bywyd y Pil. Fodd bynnag, nid oedd cyllideb ar gael i alluogi
ar gyfer canolfan amlasiantaeth wedi’i theilwra ar gyfer ardal y dwyrain ac fel mesur dros
dro, sicrhawyd lle yn y Swyddfeydd Dinesig ar gyfer wyth desg nesaf at Dim Diogelu’r
Dwyrain. Ers hynny, ehangodd y Tim Help Cynnar o 14 i 23 aelod o staff, a gyflwynodd
heriau o ran gweithio/rhannu desg yn effeithiol, gan arwain wedyn at gynnydd mewn
gweithio oddi ar y safle a gweithio gartref, sydd wedi, yn ei dro, cael effaith andwyol
weithiau ar faterion fel rhannu gwybodaeth a chydweithio.

Ym mis Rhagfyr 2018, cadarnhaodd fod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwahodd awdurdodau
lleol ar draws Cymru i gyflwyno mynegiannau o ddiddordeb yn erbyn cyllideb cyfalaf o
£15m, er mwyn creu canolfannau dysgu cymunedol. At hynny, cydnabuwyd y byddai
symud Canolfan y Dwyrain o’r Swyddfeydd Dinesig i Ysgol Brynteg yn gwella’n
sylweddol weithio integredig a chyllid at y diben hwn, a gymeradwywyd yn dilyn hynny.

At hynny, esboniodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Addysg a Chymorth i'r Teulu fod

cynllun wedi’i ddatblygu trwy ymgynghori & rhanddeiliaid allweddol, oedd yn cynnwys
adeilad un llawr, ar wahan ar safle ysgol Brynteg.

Page 24



CABINET - DYDD MAWRTH, 19 TACHWEDD 2019

Er y bu problem gyda'r broses dendro mewn perthynas & bwrw ymlaen &'r cynllun,
ychwanegodd fod hyn bellach wedi’i oresgyn.

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio fod yr adroddiad wedi dangos
gweithio trawsgwricwlaidd effeithiol rhwng meysydd Addysg, y Gwasanaethau
Cymdeithasol a Llesiant Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol. Er y cafwyd problemau cynllunio a
mynediad yn safle’r Ganolfan newydd, roedd yn falch o gadarnhau bod y rhain bellach
wedi’'u goresgyn, a diolchodd i Bennaeth Ysgol Gyfun Brynteg am gynorthwyo yn hyn o
beth.

Ychwanegodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Lesiant a Chenedlaethau’'r Dyfodol er gwaetha'r
uchod, roedd hi wedi gofyn am dawelwch meddwl fod yr holl broblemau diogelu yn yr
ysgol wedi’u datrys, o gofio nad oedd gan yr ardal dan sylw lle’'r oedd y Ganolfan yn cael
ei symud lai na 7 pwynt mynediad/ffordd allan.

Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol dros Addysg a Chymorth i’r Teulu mai’r prif
bryder oedd sicrhau bod y safle’n cael ei wneud yn ddiogel a chyflawnwyd hyn trwy godi
ffens o’'i gwmpas mewn ambell i fan strategol, yn ogystal & darparu llwybr troed ger
mynedfa Heol Ewenni. Yn ogystal, darparwyd lle parcio ar y safle i'r disgyblion 6¢¢
dosbarth a byddai Strategaeth Ddiogelu’n cael ei rhoi ar waith yn yr ysgol, a fyddai’'n
cynnwys amserau cyfyngedig penodedig i gau gatiau’r ysgol ac ail-leoli ardal y
Dderbynfa i ardal fwy canolog yn yr ysgol.

Cloédd yr Arweinydd y ddadl, gan ddiolch i Lywodraeth Cymru am y cyllid ychwanegol yr
oedd wedi’'i ymroi i'r cynllun.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cabinet:

(1) Yn nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad.
(2) Yn cymeradwyo datblygiad Canolfan y Dwyrain ar safle
Ysgol Brynteg fel y dynodwyd yn yr adroddiad.

12. PENODI LLYWODRAETHWYR AWDURDOD LLEOL

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol — Addysg a Chymorth i’r Teulu adroddiad a’i
ddiben oedd ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i benodi llywodraethwyr awdurdod lleol i
gyrff llywodraethu’r ysgolion a restrir ym mharagraff 4.1 yr adroddiad.

Amlinellwyd manylion y penodiadau angenrheidiol yn y rhan hon o’r adroddiad.

Cyfeiriodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Addysg ac Adfywio at Atodiad A yr adroddiad a
restrodd y rhestr bresennol (a’r rhestr ar ddod) o leoedd gwag am lywodraethwyr
Awdurdod Lleol a gofynnodd a ellid dosbarthu hon i bob Cynghorydd; y cyfryngau, staff
yn yr Awdurdod a phobl gymunedol eu meddylfryd, er mwyn cael cymaint o ddiddordeb
a phosibl er mwyn i'r swyddi hyn gael eu llenwi yn y dyfodol gweddol agos gobeithio.

PENDERFYNWYD: Body Cabinet yn cymeradwyo’r penodiadau a restrwyd ym
mharagraff 4.1 yr adroddiad.

13. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim.

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 16:20

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
17 DECEMBER 2019
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
EMPTY PROPERTY STRATEGY
1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from Cabinet to formally adopt the
Empty Property Strategy 2019-2023 attached at Appendix 1

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priority:

o Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a good
place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure
that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions
of all people in the county.

3. Background

3.1 Bringing empty properties back into use is a priority for the Local Authority and is a
commitment for the leadership for Bridgend County Borough Council. The Strategy
sets out the intention that ‘Bridgend County Borough Council (“the Council”) and its
partners shall seek to reduce empty properties across the County Borough and help
contribute towards increasing the availability of housing for sale or for rent’.

3.2 In order to achieve this priority, an Empty Property Working Group has been
formed, consisting of representatives from each service within the Authority that
works with empty properties. The main objective of the Working Group is to deliver
the strategic objectives of bringing back into use long-term empty residential
properties. These are defined as private sector residential properties which are
liable for council tax and have been unoccupied for a period of six months or more.
This definition is taken from the national Public Accountability Measure that enables
local authorities to give account of their performance to the public. Commercial
properties that can be converted into residential accommodation will also be
considered for action. The Working Group is co-ordinated by the Empty Property
Co-ordinator.

3.3  One of the main actions of the Empty Property Working Group was to develop an
Empty Property Strategy for the Local Authority. The purpose of the Strategy is to
set out how the Local Authority and its partners shall seek to reduce empty
properties across the County Borough and help contribute towards increasing the
availability of housing for sale or for rent. The Working Group agreed that the focus
of the strategy should be empty private sector residential properties, or properties
that could be brought back into use as residential accommodation.

Page 27



3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

An Empty Property Coordinator has been in place since 15t October 2018. The
Coordinator is a qualified Environmental Health Officer employed by the Shared
Regulatory Service (SRS) working on empty properties for 3 days per week. The
postholder has been able to take a number of actions which has had a positive
impact in delivering the Strategy objectives as highlighted in paragraph 4.5 below.

Current situation/proposal

On the 22" January 2019, Cabinet approved formal public consultation on the draft
Empty Properties Strategy.

The public consultation was undertaken over a twelve week period between 15t
February 2019 and the 28t April 2019. A letter outlining the Strategy proposals and
details of the consultation was sent to all owners of empty properties across the
county borough. The consultation received 109 (107 online and 2 paper) responses
from owners of empty properties and the public.

A copy of the Consultation report is attached at Appendix 2 The Strategy has been
revised to take into consideration consultation responses referenced in paragraph
4.6 below

Overall the Empty Property Strategy was supported by the survey respondents. A
summary of the results are as follows:

99% of respondents stated that the strategy was written in plain language and was
easy to understand;

97% of respondents felt that the strategy clearly explained why empty properties
were a priority for the council;

95% of respondents said that the aims and objectives outlined within the strategy
were the most relevant;

91% of respondents agreed with the council approach to identify and prioritise
empty properties;

84% of respondents agreed with the councils approach for providing help and
assistance to owners of empty properties;

90% of respondents agreed that the planned approach to ensure effective
communication with owners and the public is appropriate.

The Registered Landlords Association recognises the impact empty properties can
have on an area and community and welcomed the proposals, and supported the
need for a robust strategy which provides clarification on the sanctions and
enforcements actions available.

A number of updates have been made to the draft strategy following the
consultation, with the updated strategy at Appendix 1. These are -

e Figures have been updated from April 2019 on the number of empty properties
and location — pages, 7,8,9.

e Additional information on how the Council priorities empty properties has been
included which identifies the criteria used to prioritise — pages 13,14, and 15.

Page 28



¢ Additional performance measures have been added to show the efforts being
made to bring empty properties back into use — page 19.

e Objective 5 on page 17 highlights the intention to take enforcement action where
appropriate

e Updated contact details for the Council on page 12

Progress to date

4.7 In addition to reporting on the national empty property Public Accountability
Measures (PAMs) annually, the work resulting from the Strategy will be measured
and reported on in terms of the quantity of engagement and enforcement carried
out, in order to demonstrate the efforts that are being made to bring empty
properties back into use. This will include recording numbers of letters distributed,
responses received, and enforcement action taken. Statistics to date show —

Statistics

Number of Cases 21
Contact Made 200
Positive Progress Made* 200
Grant Information requested 83
Expressions of Interest in grant 52
1st letter sent 211
2nd letter sent 137
3rd letter sent 93
4th letter sent 52
5th letter sent 41

* examples of progress includes -

1 Enforced Sale completed

1 other Enforced sale started

5 work in default completed (2 more imminent)

5 Section 215 (of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990) notices
requested

3 Warrants obtained

13 other notices served and complied with

4.8 The impact of these activities has meant that, of the properties assessed and scored
by the council using the criteria contained within the Strategy as being in the top 20
list of problem properties -

5 - are now in use

2 - are listed for auction this month

5 - are under discussion for possible Section 215 action

2 - are For Sale following extensive engagement

1 —is held by Planning due to Bats roosting in the property which requires
Welsh Government Guidance

3 - grant applications submitted but refused as eligibility criteria not met

2 - are under discussion with legal in relation to further enforcement action to
be taken

Page 29



5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules
There is no effect upon the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.
Equality Impact Assessment

An initial screening Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken as
part of the development of the Empty Homes Strategy. It identified that no further
ElA is required.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

The report contributes to the following goals within the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015:

e A prosperous Wales — by providing work to companies who can repair and
improve the empty properties and by creating a rental or sale income for
landlords.

e Aresilient Wales — by improving the environmental consequences of empty
properties such as rodent infestation, fly tipping and a poor impression of an
area.

e A Wales of cohesive communities — by making an area more attractive to live
and by improving the social consequences of empty properties such as reduced
public confidence in the area.

e A globally responsive Wales — by contributing positively to communities and the
housing needs of households in Wales.

A summary of the implications from the Well-being of Future Generations
assessment, using the 5 ways working, is as follows:

e Long-term - Bringing empty properties back
into use can create long-term accommodation available
for households to rent or buy.

e Prevention - Tackling empty properties can prevent the
consequences associated with empty properties
continuing or getting worse e.g. social issues such as
arson, graffiti and squatting, environmental issues such
as rodent infestation and dangerous structures and
economic issues such as property devaluation and
deterred investment.

e Integration - Bringing empty properties back into use can deliver
economic, social, environmental & cultural outcomes as
outlined in the “long-term” and “prevention” ways of
working above. In addition, it can improve community
cohesion in an area.

Page 30



8.1

8.2

9.1

e Collaboration

¢ |nvolvement

Financial implications

Collaboration is paramount when bringing empty
properties back into use. Whilst a number of services
within the Council have different processes, powers and
policies they can use, bringing empty properties back
into use is a corporate responsibility. Therefore, these
services will work in a more co-ordinated way as one
Council to achieve the aims and objectives of the
strategy. Working closely with external partners to
develop new initiatives is also a key objective of the
strategy.

The Council and its partners seek to work cooperatively
with owners of empty properties to bring their properties
back into use. Therefore, regular and effective
communication with the owner is paramount, to establish
the most appropriate course of action to bring the empty
property back into use. Consultation on the strategy with
all stakeholders will ensure they are involved with
achieving the well-being goals.

The Empty Property Co-ordinator is core funded which resources the “front end” of
the service, but there will also be increased demand on other departments within the
Authority to progress any works on empty properties, which will need to be met within

existing resources.

On the 28" February 2018 Council agreed a capital budget of £100,000 to deal with
empty property issues across the County Borough.

Recommendation

It is recommended that Cabinet:—

9.1.1 Formally adopts the Empty Property Strategy 2019-2023.

Mark Shephard
Chief Executive
November 2019

Contact officer:

Telephone:

Email:

Page 31

Martin Morgans
Head of Performance and Partnership Services

(01656) 642154

Martin.Morgans@bridgend.gov.uk



Postal address: Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend

Background documents: None

Page 32



Bridgend County
Borough Council
Empty Property
Strategy
2019-2023

Page 33



Contents

INEFOAUCTION ...t st sresne e 3
PUrpose of the SIrategy ..o 3
Consequences Of emMPLy ProPerties........ccvieieieiieeceeeee e 4
Causes Of EMPLY PrOPEILIES......c.eoii et re e s reenneens 4
Benefits of bringing empty properties back info USE ..o, 4
Definition @nd CONTEXL........c.oiiiiii e 5
National definition of an empty Property ... 5
The local hOUSING MAKET .......c..ooiiieee e 6
The number Of €mMPLY PrOPEITIES......cccovi et seeens 7
The location of emMpPty ProPerties. ...t seeens 8
Empty properties and hOUSING NEEA.........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiicere et sre e sree e s 10
The CouNCIl'S @PPIOACK .......cocuieiiece e ettt st be s re e besan e reenaees 12
How the Council prioritises empty Properties.........c.ccoovvirireiiiniisenesesese e 13
AIMS @NA ODJECHIVES ...ttt bbbt be e 15
Empty property procedure following initial referral ...........c.coovivieniiieneceeeee e 17
MONItOrNG the SrAatEgY....c.ciiiiiie e s st e e e beesaeas 18
CoNtAC AELAIIS.......c.eeiciic s 18
Y2 VoA N Lo [ TP 18
Appendix 1 - ENforcement ACHON .......cocuo e 20
ENFOrCEA SAIE ...t 20
Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMO)........occooieiiiieiiiieeseee e 20
Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPO).......ocoieeiiceceeeceee ettt 25
Section 215 Town and Country Planning Act 1990..........ccciriiiieii e, 26
BUIIING ACE 1984 ...ttt b et b et 27
Section 80 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee 29
HOUSING ACE 2004 ...ttt st b e bbbt b e bbb b e b e 30

Page 34



Introduction

Purpose of the strategy

The purpose of this strategy is to set out how Bridgend County Borough
Council (“the Council”’) and its partners shall seek to reduce empty
properties across the County Borough and help contribute towards
increasing the availability of housing for sale or for rent.

The focus of this strategy is empty private sector residential properties
that could be brought back into use as residential housing. Whilst
commercial properties may also be empty, they require a more specific
approach to bring them back into use as economically viable commercial
premises and therefore, do not form part of this strategy. However,
commercial properties that can be converted into residential
accommodation will be considered but are outside of the current Welsh
Government definition and national performance indicators for bringing
empty properties back into use.

The housing market is quite fluid and there will always be empty
properties for sale or rent that do not require any intervention. These are
properties that are generally empty for less than six months. Although
these properties are not the main focus for the Council, they can still
present a concern should they remain empty for a long period of time or
their condition deteriorate.

The Council is committed to tackling the blight of empty properties and
adopts a proactive approach by working with owners to bring their empty
properties back into use. If however, properties continue to remain
empty, are in a state of disrepair, are detrimental or a nuisance to the
community, the Council will consider using its legislative powers to
remedy the adverse impact on the community and bring the property
back into use.

Whilst a number of services within the Council have different processes,

powers and policies they can use, bringing empty properties back into
use is a corporate responsibility. Therefore, these services will work in a

Page 35



more co-ordinated way as one Council to achieve the aims and
objectives of this strategy.

Consequences of empty properties

Empty properties are a wasted resource. Whilst they may not always be
left in a state of disrepair, there are always consequences, and these
can be summarised into three factors:

e social, such as crime including arson, graffiti, squatting, as well as
reduced public confidence in the area or the Council

e environmental, including rodent infestation, fly tipping, dangerous
structures, and a poor impression of the area

e economic, such as repair costs, increased burdens on councils’
resources, property devaluation, deterred investment

Causes of empty properties

There are many reasons why properties become empty and these can
be summarised into three factors:

¢ Individual reasons, such as unresolved ownership following a death,

bankruptcy, owners entering hospital or prison, or a lack of owner
knowledge.

e Property based reasons such as investments not realised, or
repairs and renovations being too expensive.

¢ Housing market reasons such as areas of low demand, areas of
over supply or properties with negative equity.

Benefits of bringing empty properties back into use
Bringing an empty property back into use can contribute to:

e Creating rental or sale income, rather than properties being wasted
assets

e Increasing property values

¢ Reducing vandalism, arson or squatting, and the fear of crime

4
Page 36



e Enhancing town centres’ viability and vitality

e Creating an increased sense of community

e Boosting the supply of good quality affordable housing

e Supporting strong, balanced housing markets and community
sustainability

e Improving the local environment

e Creating training and job opportunities

¢ increasing council tax revenues so the Council can provide a better
service

Definition and context
National definition of an empty property

The main focus of this strategy is to bring back into use long-term empty
residential properties. These are defined as private sector residential
properties which are liable for council tax and have been
unoccupied for a period of six months or more. This definition is
taken from the national Public Accountability Measure that enables local
authorities to give account of their performance to the public. The
following properties are excluded from this definition:

e A second or holiday home
e A property owned by any of the following:

Registered Social Landlords (RSLs);
Police and Armed forces;

National Health Service;
Universities and colleges;

Local authorities and government;
Crown estate;

Churches and other religious bodies

O O 0O O 0O O O

e A property that is in use but for non-residential purposes
e Properties that have been un-banded by the Valuation Office Agency’

1 Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) Public Accountability Measures (PAMs) 2018-19 Guidance for
local authorities (PAM/013)

Page 37



Information on empty properties is obtained from council tax data, where
owners have notified the Council that the property is empty.

The local housing market

There are around 63,762 residential properties in Bridgend County
Borough?. Approximately, these are:

e 73% owner occupied
e 13% privately rented
e 14% rented from an RSL

The Council is no longer a social housing landlord as it does not own
any residential properties, following the transfer of its housing stock in
September 2003 to Valleys to Coast Housing Association.

The County Borough area can be identified in two parts. The southern
part is a well-populated coastal belt including the towns of Bridgend and
Porthcawl, together with the other urban areas close to the M4
Motorway. The northern part is a more rural, mountainous and less
accessible area, with three valleys running north-south, the most
westerly containing the town of Maesteg. There are major differences in
house prices and economic conditions between the southern and
northern areas.

There are three housing market areas in the County Borough, namely;

e Western Settlements, Ogmore, Garw & Upper Llynfi Valley (the
valleys areas with the lowest house prices)

e Porthcawl and Rural (the coastal areas with the highest house prices)

e Bridgend, Pencoed & Hinterland?®

2 Welsh Government dwelling stock estimates by local authority and tenure 2016-17
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Dwelling-Stock-Estimates/dwellingstockestimates-by-

localauthority-tenure

3 Bridgend County Borough Council Local Housing Market Assessment Update 2012
6

Page 38


https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Dwelling-Stock-Estimates/dwellingstockestimates-by-localauthority-tenure
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Dwelling-Stock-Estimates/dwellingstockestimates-by-localauthority-tenure

Approximately 60% of private sector residential properties in the County
Borough are semi-detached houses or terraced houses. In addition,
approximately only 6% of the private sector residential properties is
smaller accommodation such as flats. The majority of private sector
properties (approximately 80%) are over 40 years old*. These are
significant factors as they suggest that a majority of empty properties are
likely to be larger houses that are over 40 years old.

The number of empty properties

In April 2019 there were 1296 private sector residential properties empty
for six months or more, which accounted for 2% of Bridgend County
Borough'’s residential properties.

The number of empty private sector residential properties has remained
relatively consistent over the past few years and therefore, this figure of
1296 will be used as the baseline on which the Council will measure
performance of the strategy. Confirmation that this is an accurate figure
will be addressed as an objective within this strategy going forward.

Private residential sector properties have been empty for two or more
years and these properties are more likely to have negative social,
environmental and economic consequences and therefore need a
particular focus. This is especially so where there is no plan to bring
them back into use.

4 Bridgend County Borough council Private Sector House Stock Condition Survey 2009

7
Page 39



The location of empty properties

Number of empty private sector residential properties
as at 16/04/19 by Community Council area

’\(J «(.a &(J C,(J (l(.z (,(' (/(J «(.z (,(' (J(J Q,(J Q,c" (J(J L(J 0\3, S

6 o AT QY ¢ e o e A Y« »
©C NSO KT Y F

As can be seen on the above chart, most of the empty properties are in
and around Maesteg, Porthcawl and Bridgend’s town centres, and
represent 50% of the empty properties in the County Borough. This
suggests that in order to foster vibrant and viable town centres and
support a successful economy, it would be beneficial to have a particular
focus on these areas. Living in close proximity to town centre amenities
could also help make a property more desirable to sell or to rent and the
property is therefore more likely to be brought back into use. However,
empty properties across the whole of the County Borough remain the
overall focus of this strategy.

Whilst it is important to focus on areas that have the greatest number of
empty properties and which also have a greater potential of being
brought back into use because of their location, it is also important to
note that there are areas that have a higher density of empty properties.
This is particularly evident in the valleys areas such as the Ogmore
Valley where 4.59% of private sector properties are empty and the Garw
Valley where 3.23% are empty. In comparison 1.77% of private sector
properties are empty in Bridgend Town; 2.95% in Porthcawl and 3.44%
in the Llynfi Valley (Maesteg).

Each area of the County Borough has its own particular geographic,
social and economic characteristics which will have an impact on the

8
Page 40



housing market in those areas. For example, in July 2018 the average
value of a property in the Ogmore Valley was £97,036 and in Maesteg
£115,730. Both of these areas were well below the average value of a
property in Wales which was £190,210. In comparison, the average
value of a property in Porthcawl in July 2018° was £251,851. The value
of an empty property will be a factor in whether it can be brought back
into use, as there may be little or no equity to obtain funding to carry out
repair works on the property.

Both the Ogmore Valley and Maesteg were former mining communities
and with the decline of the coal industry there is less employment
opportunities in these areas. In addition, accessing central rail transport
and the M4 motorway is more difficult. These factors have an impact on
the housing market in these areas and will need to be taken into
consideration when tackling empty properties in these locations.

Conversely, Porthcawl is a more affluent coastal area. Being a holiday
resort, tourism plays a part in Porthcawl’'s economy offering seasonal
employment opportunities However, as house prices are much higher it
can make it difficult for people to enter the housing market in this area
and also results in owners holding high value properties with no capital
to carry out repair works.

5 https://www.zoopla.co.uk > House prices » Bridgend

Page 41



10

Empty properties and housing need

Bringing empty properties back into use can contribute to meeting
housing need in the County Borough. There are different types of
housing needs such as the need for homes to buy, the need for homes
to rent in the private sector and the need for affordable homes such as
social rented housing or intermediate housing (which is housing at a cost
above social rented housing, but below private rented housing or
housing for sale at market value. Intermediate housing can include low
cost homes for sale and intermediate rent).

There is no one solution that meets all these needs and therefore, the
Council and its partners will need to work innovatively with empty
property owners to meet these needs. For example, bringing back into
use a larger property for sale or private rent can help meet the needs of
larger families, or changing the use of a larger property into shared
accommodation can help boost the availability of accommodation in the
private sector for single people aged under 35. The conversion of family
homes into single person accommodation such as flats could help to
meet the need for both single younger people and older people as they
look to downsize. It is acknowledged that such conversions are often
complex and have to adhere to relevant planning permission and
building regulations.

One consideration is where social housing need on the Bridgend
Common Housing Register could be met by bringing back into use
empty properties. An analysis of information available is shown on the
map below (as at May 2018). It can be seen that the greatest demand
for social housing is in and around Bridgend, Porthcawl and Maesteg’s
town centres and their outskirts, where there are clusters of empty
properties. It can also be seen that there are a number of areas where
empty properties occur but demand for social rented housing is low and
therefore these areas, whilst not excluded, are unlikely to be priority
areas to target.

10
Page 42



11

One of the other factors to be taken into account in relation to housing
need is that 64% of demand on the Bridgend Common Housing Register
is for 1 bed properties. However, it is estimated that a majority of empty
properties are 3 bedrooms or more, so these properties would have to
be converted into single person accommodation e.g. shared housing or
flats to align to the current demand on the Bridgend Common Housing
Register.

Housing Need Demand
400 to 420

-301 to 400

201 to 300

101 to 200

0 to 100

B  Empty Residential Properiies

11

Page 43



12

The Council’s approach

The Council and its partners seek to work cooperatively with owners of
empty properties to bring their properties back into use. Therefore,
regular and effective communication with the owner is paramount, to
establish the most appropriate course of action to bring the empty
property back into use.

Owners of empty properties are likely to have their own plan or purpose
for their properties. They may wish to sell or rent and will make the
economic decisions that best meets their circumstances. Therefore,
predicting the route an owner may wish to take is difficult and the
Council and its partners will need to work closely with owners to
determine the best all round solution.

The Council provides owners with help and assistance to bring empty
properties back into use, including empty homes grants and empty
property loans. For further information about the help and assistance
available to owners of empty properties, please search for “empty
properties” on the Council’s website. Alternatively, contact
emptyproperties@bridgend.gov.uk or telephone 01656 646342.

However, where properties continue to remain empty and are in a state
of disrepair, are detrimental or a nuisance to the community, the Council
will consider using its legislative powers to remedy the adverse impact
on the community and bring the property back into use. Appendix 1 sets
out enforcement action available to the Council.

Opportunities occasionally occur to bring non-residential properties back
into use as residential accommodation. This includes commercial
properties, churches, chapels, and those properties which the Inland
Revenue’s Valuation Office Agency deletes from the Valuation List
because they are uninhabitable or in disrepair. Although these properties
do not form part of the national definition of empty properties, when such
an opportunity arises, they will be considered on a case by case basis
with performance and progress measured separately.

12
Page 44


https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/residents/housing/empty-properties/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/residents/housing/empty-properties/
mailto:emptyproperties@bridgend.gov.uk

How the Council prioritises empty properties
The Council uses an objective scoring mechanism, initially based on
desktop information held by services with the Council, to prioritise the

empty properties it will focus on. The two key determinations are:

i. the impact the property has on the community; and
ii. the location of the property.

A total score is calculated for an empty property by considering the
following criteria.

Those properties with the highest score are the highest priority. The

13

criteria, which is in no particular order, is explained in more detail below.

o If the property is a nuisance — when there has been a notice served

for environmental health reasons e.g. to carry out work for the
removal or destruction of rats or mice on land or to secure
unauthorised entry to an empty building or prevent it becoming a
danger to public health.

o |If complaints have been received — when there has been a

complaint received from a member of the public such as a neighbour,

the Police, a Councillor, an Assembly Member (AM), a Member of
Parliament (MP), or a Council Officer.

e |If the property presents an arson risk- where we have had referrals
from South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, or where there have
been issues of unauthorized access and there is evidence of fires
being started or materials present that could contribute to a fire.

¢ |If there are incidence of antisocial behavior associated within the
property- when we have received referrals from the problem solving
group which is led by South Wales Police, or we have direct

complaints e.g. with anti-social gatherings, drug use, graffiti and litter.

13
Page 45



14

o If the property is in an area of high housing need — when the
property is located in one of the areas on the Bridgend Common
Housing Register that is in the top quarter of demand for social
housing.

o If the property is in disrepair — when there has been a notice
served because the building or structure is dangerous and as such
there is an implied duty to address that danger.

o If the property is detrimental to the local community — when there
has been a notice served because of matters of amenity and issues
of aesthetics. This would normally be the removal of curtilage items
from the public view or for broken windows to be boarded up and
painted. Also included here is when the property is in a conservation
area (an area of notable environmental or historical interest or
importance which is protected by law against detrimental changes)
and the issues are having a negative impact on the area.

o If the property is in the town centre or outskirts — where there are
a high number of empty properties in a town centre or its outskirts,
bringing them back into use could help foster a vibrant and viable
town centre and support a successful economy. This is explained
further in the section titled “The locations of empty properties” —
please refer to page 10.

o If there is debt owed to the Council — when there is a council tax
charging order on the property for council tax arrears, or when works
in default have been carried out following notices that have been
served, and a charge placed on the property.

e The length of time empty — this is based on the date of the council
tax exemption.

The score is calculated as follows:

14
Page 46



15

¢ For complaints received, statutory notices served and number of
years empty, points are allocated on a sliding scale depending on
the number.

¢ For housing need points are allocated on a sliding scale
depending on whether need is High, Medium or Low.

e For the criteria that require a Yes or No answer
Anti Social Behaviour
Arson Risk
Town Centre/Regeneration Area
Debt Owed
A 10 point premium is added per Yes answer per criteria.

The priority list will be reviewed routinely and, as appropriate, properties
will be added or removed. The scoring mechanism enables a blended
approach to the prioritisation of the properties where some are more
problematic than others.

The Council’s Empty Property Working Group, which consists of
representatives from each service within the Authority that work with
empty properties, will determine the most appropriate actions to attempt
to bring the priority properties back into use.

Aims and objectives

Building upon the existing approach and acknowledging the importance
of working cooperatively with partners and owners, the Council has
identified the following aims and objectives in order to reinforce its
commitment to seek to reduce empty properties across the County
Borough.

Objectives
1. Identify and Ensure Empty Property data is accurate and
prioritise empty up to date.
properties.
15

Page 47



16

Develop and maintain a database of empty
properties using council tax data and other
sources of information.

Develop a referral mechanism for services
within the Council to consistently provide
information about empty properties to inform
prioritisation on the empty property
database.

2. Provide help and
assistance to
owners.

Survey owners to establish why properties
are empty and to establish what help is
required, to inform the strategy going
forward.

Make contact with owners of empty
properties via a regular mailshot to advise
them of the help and assistance available.

Review the assistance provided via the
Private Sector Renewal & Disabled
Adaptations Policy e.g. grants and loans, to
ensure it is relevant and fit for purpose.

3. Ensure effective
communication is
undertaken.

Develop a confidential online reporting
service so people are able to report an
empty property and associated issues.

Develop an empty property web page to
communicate the help and assistance
available to owners e.g. grants and loans.

Identify and share success stories via the
empty property web page and via social
media.

4. Work closely with
internal and
external partners.

Collaborate as an Empty Property Working
Group to ensure a coordinated approach to
tackling empty properties.

Develop new initiatives with external
partners to offer to empty property owners.

Page 48

16



17

Participate in conferences and training
events to share best practice and improve
knowledge.

5. Take enforcement
action where
appropriate.

Explore options for increasing the council
tax premium on properties empty for two
years or longer.

Take enforcement actions open to the
Council, where appropriate.

Make use of enforced sales, Empty Dwelling
Management Orders and Compulsory
Purchase Orders, where appropriate.

Page 49

17



Empty property procedure following initial referral

Referral by
neighbour,
Police,
Councillor,
AM / MP,
Council Officer

Condition and
nuisance assessed

5 Empty

Property

Identified through
Council Tax data

Owner fails to
respond or address
issues of concern

Step 1
Property
investigation and
prioritisation

Length vacant /
history established

A4

Owner traced

Compulsory
Purchase Order,
Enforced Sale
Council disposes of
property. Property
occupied. These
options will be
considered on a
case by case basis.
The specific action
taken will depend on
the individual
circumstances of the
case

Step 2
Advice /
correspondence
with owner
commences and
options provided

Owner remedies
issues of concern

Owner brings
property back into
use. Property
occupied

A

Page 50

Step 3
Action required to
bring property back
into use and where
necessary to
remedy adverse
impact on
community

18

Notices served
under Legislation
including: Building

Act 1984,
Environmental
Protection Act 1990,
Housing Acts 1985
and 2004, Town &
Country Planning
Act 1990.




Monitoring the strategy

The strategy will be reported on and updated annually to take into
account any new information available, any legislative changes or any
new aims and objectives identified.

The success in bringing empty private sector residential properties
back into use will be measured using the following Welsh Local
Government Association (WLGA) Public Accountability Measures

(PAMs) and performance will be compared to other Council’s in Wales:

e PAM/013 — Percentage of empty private sector properties brought
back into use during the year through direct action by the local
authority.

e PAM/045 — Number of new homes created as a result of bringing
empty properties back into use

The work resulting from the Strategy will also be measured and
reported on in terms of the quantity of engagement and enforcement
carried out, in order to demonstrate the efforts that are being made to
bring empty properties back into use. This will include the following:
e Number of interventions by Enforcement Officers, to include both
advice and informal and formal action.
e Number of properties where work in default of notices has been
completed.
e Total amount of money spent on work carried out in default of
notices on improving the condition of empty properties.

Contact details

If you have any queries about the strategy or would like to know more

about the help and assistance available to owners of empty properties,
please contact emptyproperties@bridgend.gov.uk or telephone 01656
646342.

Privacy Notice

19
Page 51

19


mailto:emptyproperties@bridgend.gov.uk

The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data
Protection Act 2018 regulate the processing of information relating to
individuals. This includes the obtaining, holding, use or disclosure of
such information.

To make sure that the Council handle personal data lawfully and
appropriately it must comply with GDPR and the Data Protection Act
2018, and in particular the Data Protection Principles.

You can view the Fair Processing Statement for the Empty Property
Strategy here. Alternatively, you can request to view a copy by
contacting: Legal and Regulatory Services, Civic Offices, Angel Street,
Bridgend, CF31 4WB or emailing foi@bridgend.gov.uk.

20
Page 52

20


mailto:foi@bridgend.gov.uk

21

Appendix 1 - Enforcement Action

Where the Council considers enforcement action to be appropriate to
bring an empty property back into use or to improve the condition of the
empty property so that it is no longer in a state of disrepair or is
detrimental / a nuisance to the community, the Council may use one or
more of the enforcement powers available to it under legislation. Those
enforcement powers are set out below. The decision to use these
powers will be made on a case by case basis, taking into consideration
the scoring mechanism on page 13, used to prioritise empty properties.

Enforced Sale

Where the local authority has served notice on an owner to carry out
works but they have failed to do so, the local authority has the power,
under certain legislation, to carry out the works itself and recover the
costs by placing a charge on the property.

The local authority can force the sale of a property to recover debts
owed to the local authority that are registered as a charge on the
property. This power will be used when all other negotiations have failed.
Properties that have been prioritised using the scoring mechanism on
page 12 will be tackled in the first instance.

Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMO)

Introduced by the Housing Act 2004, Empty Dwelling Management
Orders (“EDMOs”) give the Local Authority the power to take
management control of privately owned empty homes to secure
occupation of them. The power resides in Sections 132 to 138 of the
Housing Act 2004. Interim and Final EDMOs are made against the
proprietor of the property, who may be either the owner, or a leaseholder
where there are at least 7 years remaining on lease. The Authority,
having exhausted all other avenues of encouraging the proprietor to
bring the property back into use, can apply to a Residential Property
Tribunal for an order.

21
Page 53



22

Interim EDMO

An interim EDMO is defined by Section 132 of the Housing Act 2004 as
“an order made to enable a local housing authority, with the consent of
the relevant proprietor, to take steps for the purpose of securing that a
dwelling becomes and continues to be occupied.”
To make an interim EDMO, the Council must satisfy the following
conditions:
- The property is not occupied (whether lawfully or not);
- A public sector body (as defined by the legislation) does not own
the property or have a lease(s) over the property with an unexpired
term of 7 years of more.

The Council must apply to the Residential Property Tribunal to make an
interim EDMO. Before making an application to the Residential Property
Tribunal, the Council:

- must make reasonable efforts to notify the owner or the lessee (who
has a lease over the property for a term of 7 years or more) that it is
considering making an interim EDMO and find out what steps the
owner/lessee is taking to secure occupation of the property; and

- take into account not only the rights of the owner/lessee but also the
interests of the wider community.

Prior to granting authorisation of an interim EDMO, the Residential
Property Tribunal must be satisfied that:
- the property has been wholly unoccupied for at least 6 months or
such longer period as prescribed by legislation;
- there is no reasonable prospect of the property becoming occupied
in the near future;
- if the interim EDMO is made, there is a reasonable prospect that
the property will become occupied;
- that the Council has complied with its obligations under Section
133 of the Housing Act 2004 and any requirements prescribed by
legislation;

22
Page 54



23

- does not fall within an exemption specified by the National
Assembly for Wales in legislation (for example, it is used as a
holiday home, property is for sale or let).

The Residential Property Tribunal must also take into account the
interests of the community and the effect the interim EDMO will have on
the rights of the owner/lessee and may have on the rights of third
parties.

An interim EDMO comes into force when it is made and lasts for 12
months unless the order provides for it to end earlier. Once the interim
EDMO is in force the Council must take appropriate steps to secure the
occupation and proper management of the property. The Council must
work with the owner of the property to agree how the property shall be
brought back into use.

Final EDMO

Section 132 of the Housing Act 2004 defines a final EDMO as “an order
made, in succession to an interim EDMO or a previous final EDMO, for
the purpose of securing that a dwelling is occupied.”

The Council may make a final EDMO to replace an interim EDMO in the
following circumstances:
- where it considers that unless a final EDMO is made, the property
is likely to become or remain unoccupied;
- where the property is unoccupied, it has taken all appropriate
steps under the interim EDMO to secure occupation.

Under the legislation, the Council can make a new final EDMO to
replace a final EDMO if the Council considers that unless a new order is
made, the property is likely to become or remain unoccupied and it has
taken all steps it can under the existing final EDMO to secure the
occupation of the property but it remains unoccupied.

In deciding whether to make a final EDMO the Council must take into
account the interest of the community and the effect the order has on the

23
Page 55



24

owner/lessee and the effect it may have on the rights of third parties.
The Council must also consider whether compensation should be paid to
any third party due to an interference with their rights as a consequence
of this order. The Council does not need to obtain the consent of the
Residential Property Tribunal to make the final EDMO.

Once the final EDMO is in force the Council must take appropriate steps
to secure the occupation and proper management of the property. The
Council must review, from time to time, how the order operates
(particularly the management scheme contained within it), if there are
any appropriate steps it can take if the property is unoccupied and
whether keeping the order in force is necessary to secure that the
property becomes or remains occupied. If it considers that any variations
are necessary to the order, it must make them. The order must be
revoked if the Council considers, upon review, that there are no
appropriate steps to be taken to secure occupation or it is not necessary
to keep the order in force.

A final EDMO lasts for a maximum of 7 years. The Council cannot grant
a lease or licence to the property unless it has obtained the consent of
the owner/lessee.

The final EDMO must contain a management scheme setting out:
- how the Council shall carry out its duties;
- the Council’s plan for managing the property which must include (but is
not limited to):
» details of any works to be carried out,
» estimate the capital and expenditure incurred by the Council
while the order is in force,
= the amount of rent it would expect the property to fetch on
the open market;
= the amount of rent or other payments the Council will seek to
obtain;
» any compensation it intends to pay;
» how the Council shall pay any surplus to the owner/lessee
once deductions have been made to the monies it receives

24
Page 56



25

Appeals

An owner has the right to appeal to the Residential Property Tribunal
against the making of the EDMO. A relevant person (which is defined in
the legislation as any person who has an estate or interest in the
property other than a tenant under a lease granted under paragraphs
2(3)(c) or 10(3)(c) of Schedule 7) may appeal against:

- the decision of the Council to make a final EDMO;

- the terms of the final EDMO; or

- the terms of the interim EDMO in so far as they do not provide for one
or both of the provisions of para 5(5)(a) and (b).

An appeal against the terms of the interim EDMO can be brought at any
time while the order is in force. Where an appeal is made against a final
EDMO, this must be made within 28 days starting with the date specified
in the notice served under Schedule 6 of the Act. However, the
Residential Property Tribunal may allow an appeal to be made after the
end of this period if it considers there is a good reason for the failure to
appeal before the end of that period. If no appeal is brought within the
period allowed for final EDMOs, then the order is final and conclusive as
to the matters which may have been raised on appeal.

An appeal can also be made against a decision made by the Council to
vary or revoke the interim or final EDMO or a refusal of the Council not
to vary or revoke the interim or final EDMO.

Any affected person may apply to the Residential Property Tribunal for
an order to require the Council to manage the property in accordance
with the management scheme in the final EDMO where the Council is
not doing so.

Compensation

On authorising the Council to make the interim EDMO, the Residential
Property Tribunal can order the Council to pay compensation to any third

25
Page 57



26

party specified in the order due to any interference with the rights of the
third party in consequence of the interim EDMO.

Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPO)

Section 17 of the Housing Act 1985 gives the Council the power for the
purposes of Part Il of that Act to acquire:

a. land to build houses;

b. houses or buildings which may be made suitable as houses
together with any occupied land;

c. land proposed to be used for any purpose authorised by legislation
(facilities to be provided in connection with housing
accommodation); and

d. land to carry out works on it for the purpose of or in connection
with the alteration, enlarging, repair or improvement of an adjoining
house.

This power also includes the power to acquire land in order to dispose of
houses provided or to be provided on that land or to dispose of that land
to a person whose intention is to provide housing accommodation on it.

The Council may acquire this land either by agreement or compulsorily
by way of authorisation from the National Assembly for Wales. The
Council can acquire land with the consent of the National Assembly for
Wales (and subject to any conditions imposed by the National Assembly
for Wales) even if it is not immediately required for the purposes of Part
Il of the Act. However, the National Assembly for Wales will not grant the
authorisation unless it is likely that the land will be required for those
purposes within 10 years from the date the CPO is confirmed.

The Council has to justify its use of the CPO to the National Assembly of
Wales. Negotiations should be held with the owner of the land first. The
CPO should be the last resort once negotiations with the owner have
been exhausted.

26
Page 58



27

Section 215 Town and Country Planning Act 1990

If it appears to the local planning authority that the amenity of a part of
their area, or of an adjoining area, is adversely affected by the condition
of the land in their area, they may serve on the owner and occupier of
the land a notice under this section requiring steps to be taken under
Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. The notice will
specify the steps to be taken to remedy the condition of the land. If the
owner or occupier does not comply with the terms of the notice within
the specified period, the owner or occupier will be guilty of an offence
and liable for prosecution in the Magistrates Court (liable to a fine not
exceeding level 3 on the standard scale).

Section 217 of the Act provides a right of appeal against the notice
under Section 215 of the Act to the person on whom the notice is served
or any other person having an interest in the land to which the notice
relates. The appeal can be made on the following grounds:

¢ that the condition of the land subject to the notice does not
adversely affect the amenity of any part of the local planning
authority’s area or of any adjoining area;

¢ that the condition of the land subject to the notice “is attributable
to, and such as results in the ordinary course of events from, the
carrying on of operations or a use of land which is not in
contravention of Part IlI” of the Act;

¢ that the requirements of the notice are in excess of what is
necessary to prevent the condition of the land adversely affecting
the amenity of any part of the area of the local planning authority
or of any adjoining area;

¢ that the compliance period specified in the notice falls short of
what should reasonably be allowed.

Section 219 of the Act provides that if during the compliance period
specified in the notice the work is not carried out, the local authority can
enter the land, carry out the works itself, and recover any costs in doing
so from the person on whom the notice is served.

27
Page 59



28

The Council will, where appropriate, consider serving a notice under
Section 215 of the Act. If this notice is not complied with, the Council will
consider commencing prosecution proceedings.

Building Act 1984

Section 76 of the Building Act 1984

Section 76 of the Building Act 1984 provides the Council with the power
to serve notice where:

e Premises are in a defective state as to be prejudicial to health or a
nuisance, and

e There would be an unreasonable delay in remedying the defective
state by following the procedure set out in Section 80 of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990.

The notice shall be served on the person on whom it would be
appropriate to serve an abatement notice under the aforementioned
legislation and such notice shall state that the Council intends to remedy
the defective state and specify the defects it intends to remedy.

The person on whom notice is served is entitled to serve a counter-
notice on the Council stating that they intend to carry out works to
remedy the defects specified in the notice. If such a notice is served, the
Council cannot take any action unless it appears to the Council that no
action has been taken within a reasonable period of time or work is not
being progressed towards completion as seems reasonable to the
Council.

The Council can recover from the person on whom notice is served its
expenses for carrying out the work. However, the Council must apply to
the Court to recover expenses and the Court may inquire as to whether
the Council was justified in its action taken (i.e. was it correct to serve
the notice in the first place) and whether the expenses should be borne
solely by the defendant or by some other person.

28
Page 60



29

Section 77 of the Building Act 1984

If the Council considers a building or structure, or part of it, to be in a
dangerous condition then, under Section 77 of the Building Act 1974, the
Council can apply to the Magistrates Court requesting an order be made
requiring the owner to carry out works to remove the danger or to
demolish the building. If the owner fails to comply with the order within
the specified time period, the Council may execute the order and recover
its reasonably incurred expenses of doing so from the owner. The owner
will also be liable to prosecution.

Section 78 of the Building Act 1984

If the Council considers that a building or structure, or part of it, is in a
dangerous condition and immediate action is required, then the Council
may take such steps as are necessary to remove the danger. Before
exercising this power granted under Section 78 of the Building Act 1984,
the Council shall, if reasonably practicable to do so, notify the owner and
occupier of the building or the property on which the structure relates of
our intention to carry out the work. The Council can recover its
reasonably incurred expenses from the owner (unless the Court
concludes we could have reasonably proceeded under Section 77 of the
Building Act 1984).

If the owner or occupier sustains damage as a consequence of the
Council exercising this power, but the owner or occupier cannot claim
compensation under Section 106 (1) of this Act because they have been
in default, then they may apply to a magistrates court to determine
whether the Council was justified in its exercise of the powers. If the
Court holds that the Council was not justified, the owner or occupier is
entitled to compensation.

Section 79 of the Building Act 1984

The Council may serve notice under Section 79 of the Building Act 1984
on the owner of a building or structure which the Council considers to be
seriously detrimental to the amenities of the neighbourhood because of

29
Page 61



30

its ruinous or dilapidated condition. The notice may require the owner to
execute repair or restoration works or, the owner may choose to
demolish the building or structure or any part thereof and remove any
rubbish or other materials resulting from or exposed by the demolition as
necessary in the interests of amenity.

Section 99 of this Act provides the Council with the power to carry out
the works itself and recover their reasonably incurred expenses. The
owner will also be liable to prosecution.

The owner (who has been served with the notice) has a right of appeal
in the magistrates’ court on any of the following grounds:

- The notice is not justified under the legislation;

- There is an informality, defect or error in connection with the
notice;

- The Council has unreasonably refused to approve the execution of
alternative works or the works required by the notice are
unreasonable in character or extent or the works are unnecessary;

- The time specified for the works to be completed is not reasonably
sufficient;

- The notice may lawfully have been served on the occupier instead
of the owner or vice versa and it would have been equitable for it
to have been served that way;

-  Where the works are for the common benefit of not only the
property in question but other property, then some other person
ought to contribute towards the expenses of executing the required
works.

Section 80 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990

If the Council is satisfied that a statutory nuisance exists or is likely to
occur or recur in its area, the Council can serve an abatement notice
requiring all or any of the following:
- The abatement of the nuisance or prohibit or restrict its occurrence
or recurrence;
- Execute works and take other steps necessary for any of those
purposes.

30
Page 62



31

The notice must specify the time for compliance and shall be served on
the person responsible for the nuisance expect if the nuisance arises
from any defect of a structural character in which case the notice should
be served on the owner of the premises. Where the person responsible
for the nuisance cannot be found or the nuisance has not yet occurred,
the notice must be served on the owner or occupier of the property.

The person on whom the abatement notice is served may appeal
against the notice to a magistrates’ court within 21 days of the date on
which he was served with the notice.

Failure to comply with the notice can lead to prosecution.
Housing Act 2004

Under the Housing Act 2004, the Council must take the appropriate
enforcement action where it considers that either a Category 1 or 2
Hazard exists on residential premises. Appropriate enforcement action
can include the serving of an improvement notice or the making of a
prohibition order. There are rights of appeal against the service of such a
notice or the making of such an order provided for in the Act.

The Council must prepare a statement of the reasons for their decision
to take the chosen course of action and this must accompany every
notice or copy of an order served in accordance with the relevant parts
of the legislation.

31
Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Bridgend County Borough Council

Empty Property Strategy
consultation 2018/19

Consultation report

Date of issue: 1 May 2019

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Contents

L. OVERVIEW ...t a e s s ab e s b e s bb e s s b e e e aa e e s b e e s ab e e sabeesaes 3
2. INTRODUCGTION ..ottt bbb s b e s b e s s abe e s b s e s saa e s sna e sane s 3
3. PROMOTIONAL TOOLS AND ENGAGEMENT METHODS .............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 3
4. RESPONSE RATE ........ootiiiiiiiiiiiticie bbbt b e s s sab e b 5
5. HOW EFFECTIVE WAS THE CONSULTATION? ......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiciiii i 5
6.  HEADLINE FIGURES ..........ooiiiiiii bbb 5
7. QUESTION AND ANALYSIS - CONSULTATION SURVEY .......cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiis e 6
8. EMAILS, SOCIAL MEDIA AND LETTER COMMENTS .........coooiiiiiiiiiiiini e 17
9. CONCLUSION ...t bbb bbb e s s b e e s s b e e s b e e s ba e s s ba e s sabeeeaes 19
10. APPENDIX ONE .........oooiiiiiiiiii i bbb sb e s bbb s ba e sabe s 21
11, APPENDIX TWO ......oiiiiiiiii s b e ebe s sabe s 24

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1. OVERVIEW
The Empty Property Strategy was developed to:

e Qutline an approach to identify, prioritise and reduce empty private sector residential
properties across the county borough and help contribute towards increasing the availability
of housing for sale or for rent.

e Adopt an approach that seeks to work cooperatively with owners to bring their empty
properties back into use.

e Consider the use of legislative powers where properties continue to remain empty and are in
a state of disrepair, are detrimental or a nuisance to the community.

The draft strategy was available alongside the consultation document and the main aims and
objectives of the strategy were detailed for consideration:

e Approach to identify and prioritise empty properties;
Approach to provide help and assistance to owners;
Approach to ensure effective communication is undertaken;
Approach to Work closely with internal and external partners;
Consider the use of enforcement action.

A public consultation outlining the strategy was undertaken over a twelve week period following the
presentation of the strategy to Cabinet on 22 January 2019. A letter outlining the strategy proposals
and details of the consultation was sent to all owners of empty properties across the county borough
(Appendix one). This letter was sent to 1861 residents. The consultation received 109 (107 online
and two paper) responses from owners of empty properties and the public. This paper details the
analysis associated with the consultation.

2. INTRODUCTION
A public consultation based on Bridgend County Borough Council’s Empty Property Strategy was
conducted over a twelve week period between 1 February 2019 and the 28 April 2019. The survey
was available to complete online on the consultation page of the council’s website and residents
could also request a paper copy or another alternative format by telephone or email. The survey
was available in English and Welsh as standard and accessible versions.

In total, there were 12 questions which required a reply from respondents; all questions in the
survey were optional. All survey responses offered the option of anonymity. The council’s standard
set of equalities monitoring questions were also included with the survey, as is now recommended
good practice for all public facing surveys carried out by the council.

The content of the consultation remains available online in closed consultations.

Comments regarding the consultation were also invited via letter, email and phone call.

3. PROMOTIONAL TOOLS AND ENGAGEMENT METHODS
This section details the specific communications and engagement methods used to reach people
and encourage them to share their views during the consultation period.

3.1 Social media and online to‘b"":

‘;&
5
2
3 =
%
>
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Facebook and Twitter have been used to promote the consultation.

Information was posted to the council’'s corporate Twitter and Facebook accounts throughout the
consultation period to raise awareness of the consultation and to encourage citizens to share their
views on the proposals. The council currently has 11,302 followers on its corporate Twitter accounts
and 12,148 on Facebook. During the period, the authority ‘tweeted’ twice and the information was
seen 4,306 times. One post was made to the council’'s Facebook page, which reached 7,444 people.

3.2 Local press

A press release entitled Council reveals strategy for bringing empty properties back into use
was issued on 25 January 2019, and a further press release entitled Have your say on plans for
empty properties was issued on 18 March 2019. These were covered in the local and national
press as follows:

e 25 January 2019 Newsfeed Cymru
e Bridgend Council to consult on stricter empty homes policy

e 29 January 2019 Glamorgan Gem
e Plan to end council tax relief on empty properties

30 January 2019 Bridgend Gem
e BCBC 'finally to tackle the blight’ of empty properties

e 1 February 2019 MSN website
e There are 1,200 empty homes going to waste in Bridgend and the council says that needs to change

e 6 March 2019 Wales Online / Glamorgan Gazette
e People with empty homes in Bridgend could be forced to sell them

e 30 April 2019 Oggy Bloggy Ogwr
e 1,500 empty properties: What is BCBC doing?

BCBC 'ﬁna“y to tackle the blight’ ofcmpty e Wales( \n[‘:ne, NEWS = INYOURAREA = WWATSON < ROGRY FOOTRALL SWANSEA CARDIFF SPORT+ BUBINESS< TVNEWS FUNSTUFF M
properties Post 3 commees b
i People with empty homes in Bridgend could be

CY ety - forced to sell them

who have Ieft empty residentsal properties 11 & wate of tscepo

THE public is being invited to comment on
2 new strategy aimed at bringing empty
properties back into use across Bridgend
County Borough.

There are around 1,200 private sector
homes i the area which have boen tying
ompty for al least s months, and moro than
40 per cent of them have been emply for
over two years

Y BEO Qo ZNEEFINITII

1o s postcode o ol bews aoc Wty e e a poge '

The magority of empty properties can be
found around the town centres in Bridgend,
Porthcawl and Maesteg, but the places with
the highest percentage of emply properties
are the Ogmore and Garw valleys.

Thare are many ety ropertes i the Garm Valley.

While not all empty propertios are m a state of discepair, many are, which Can give & poor Impression of an ana
and deter investmant. Some emply properties also attract anti-social behaviour such as graffiti, arson and fly
tpping

The council proposes 10 tackle the problem by working proactively with property owners 1o make them more aware
of emply home grants and empty property loans that may be available to them Where properties continue 1o

reman emply and are a nuisance 1o the local community, the council will conssder using s legsiative powers such
as enforced sales, emply dwelling management orders and compulsory purchase orders.
The council will also exploe its options for increasing the council tax premium on properties that are empty for two
yoars of bnger 3 200t o 0 plan 19 b ompty Jrogeriin) IAck e 408 5 s s 4 4 < ape
1,
o
&
§
=
4 T
%
I8
-
B RIDGEN D

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
https://newsfeed.cymru/2019/01/21/bridgend-council-to-consult-on-stricter-empty-homes-policy/
http://www.glamorgan-gem.co.uk/article.cfm?id=126116&headline=Plan%20to%20end%20council%20tax%20relief%20on%20empty%20properties&sectionIs=news&searchyear=2019
http://www.glamorgan-gem.co.uk/article.cfm?id=126083&headline=BCBC%20%27finally%20to%20tackle%20the%20blight%E2%80%99%20of%20empty%20properties&sectionIs=news&searchyear=2019
https://www.msn.com/en-gb/money/homes-property/there-are-1200-empty-homes-going-to-waste-in-bridgend-and-the-council-says-that-needs-to-change/ar-BBT2tM1
https://www.walesonline.co.uk/news/local-news/people-empty-homes-bridgend-could-15899297
https://oggybloggyogwr.com/2018/03/1500-empty-properties-what-is-bcbc-doing/

4. RESPONSE RATE
In total, there were 109 interactions, representing 0.08 per cent of the Bridgend county borough
population. The response rate has been divided into several areas including: consultation survey
responses, emails, letters and social media interactions:

o We received 109 survey responses in total (107 online submissions and two paper
versions);

¢ During the consultation period, there were 12 comments on our social media channels;

¢ One comment was received by telephone;

e One letter was received (via email).

5. HOW EFFECTIVE WAS THE CONSULTATION?
The Empty Property Strategy consultation was conducted over an twelve week period during which
a range of marketing methods were used to create awareness of the consultation and encourage
members of the public to engage with the council.

The social demographic data reflects a good cross section of the county borough’s population.

The data collection methods, which include the online survey, a paper survey and an accessible
survey, were all developed using plain English to maximise understanding. These response methods
were designed to give a consistency to the survey across multiple platforms.

6. HEADLINE FIGURES

e 98% of respondents stated that the strategy was written in plain language and was easy to
understand;

o 97% of respondents felt that the strategy clearly explained why empty properties were a
priority for the council;

e 95% of respondents said that the aims and objectives outlined within the strategy were the
most relevant;

e 91% of respondents agreed with the council approach to identify and prioritise empty
properties;

o 84% of respondents agreed with the councils approach for providing help and assistance to
owners of empty properties;

o 90% of respondents agreed that the planned approach to ensure effective communication with
owners and the public is appropriate;

o 94% of respondents agreed that working closely with internal and external partners is needed
to deliver the strategy;

o 68% of respondents said that they agreed that the use of enforcement action was appropriate
to deliver the strategy;

e 73% of respondents did not feel that there was anything missing from the strategy.

4,

AN -
to.b D

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk

(0]
qesyrbony

jws]


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7. QUESTION AND ANALYSIS - CONSULTATION SURVEY
Section seven of the report looks at the questions asked in the consultation survey — with 109
respondents in total.

7.1 Please select a language to begin the survey.

Language # %
Respondents to the consultation survey were initially asked English 108 99.1
in which language they would like to complete the survey. Welsh 01 0.9
Overall, 99.1% of respondents selected English with 0.9% Total 109 100.0

selecting Welsh.

7.2 Are you aresident of Bridgend county borough?

Are you a resident of Bridgend County Borough?

M Yes ® No

92% (100) of respondents said they were a resident of the county borough, 8% (9) of respondents
said they lived outside the county borough.

7.3 1f no, where do you live?

The respondents who lived outside the county borough were asked where they lived. The following
responses were received:

e Pembrokeshire;

¢ Vale of Glamorgan (2);
e Rhondda Cynon Taf (2);
e Cardiff;

e Torfaen;

e Monmouthshire.

,,4(; _
to‘b D

IDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk

()]
= | qenybone,,


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.4 Are you the owner of an empty property in Bridgend county borough?

Are you an owner of an empty property in Bridgend county borough?

HYes H No

22% (24) of respondents were owners of empty properties in the county borough. 78% (85) were
not empty property owners.

7.5 Is the strategy written in plain language that is clear and easy to understand?

Is the strategy written in plain language that is clear and easy to
understand?

M Yes

m No

99% (108) respondents stated that the strategy was written in plain language and was easy to
understand. 1% (1) stated that it was not.

Respondents who replied ‘no’ were asked to please tell us why. The one respondent who answered
no to this question did not provide any further information.

0‘8,4(". :

IDGEND

~
& | oeny-bony,
F g £

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.6 Does the strategy clearly explain why empty properties are a priority for the
council?

Does the strategy clearly explain why empty properties are a priority for
the council?

1% __ 2%

HYes

m No

m Unsure

The graph shows that 97% (106) of respondents felt the strategy clearly explained why empty
properties were a priority for the council, 1% (1) said that they strategy did not explain this and 2%
(2) were unsure.

Respondents who replied ‘no’ or ‘unsure’ were asked to ‘please tell us why’. The three responses
are themed below:

Number of
Theme responses
Provided feedback on the consultation questions 2
More should be done to assist owners of empty properties 1

Response:
Comments noted

The Consultation Team have taken on board feedback and comments made in relation to the
consultation questions

The Strategy sets out the many variable in dealing with empty properties and outlines the
assessment process to determine priority properties

,,4(; _
to‘b D

IDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk

0
= | qenybone,,


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.7 Are the aims and objectives the most relevant?

Are the aims and objectives the most relevant?

4% 1%

HYes

H No

The graph shows that 95% (104) of respondents said the aims and objectives outlined within the
strategy were the most relevant. 4% (4) of respondents said they did not feel the aims and
objectives were most relevant and 1% (1) did not provide a response to this question.

Where respondents stated no, they were able to give reasons for their answer. Three responses
were received and the responses are themed below:

Number of
Theme responses
Concentrate on alternative areas rather than just town centre 2
Provided feedback on the consultation questions 1

Response:
Comments noted

The Strategy sets out the many variable in dealing with empty properties and outlines the
assessment process to determine priority properties and priority areas

The Consultation Team have taken on board feedback and comments made in relation to the
consultation questions

1®a

o

j’

§
-3

9 =

%

-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.8 Is the council approach to identify and prioritising appropriate?

Is the council approach to identifying and prioritising empty properties
appropriate?

M Yes

m No

The graph shows that 91% (99) of respondents agreed with the councils approach to identify and
prioritise empty properties, 9% (10) of respondents did not agree with the councils approach to
identify and prioritise empty properties.

Where respondents stated no, they were able to give reasons for their answer. Eight responses
were received and the responses are themed below:

Number of

Theme responses
Provided feedback on the consultation questions 2
Property is privately owned so the council should not have the right to get

involved 2
Concentrate on alternative areas rather than just town centre 1
Consideration should be given to properties being developed to be returned to

use 1
All circumstances are different and this should be considered 1
Properties are left empty for too long and the council have been too lenient 1
Response:

Comments noted.

The Strategy recognises the many variables in dealing with this issue and contains information on
what steps are taken to prioritise properties and areas.

\,4(‘ i
4'0%
5
=
10 z
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

The Consultation Team have taken on board feedback and comments made in relation to the
consultation questions

The Council has an obligation to ensure that Empty Properties are dealt with appropriately
The Strategy outlines the intention to bring properties back into use

The Strategy recognises that all circumstances are different and treats each case on a case by case
basis

The Strategy is a statement of the Council’s intentions to deal with empty properties currently and in
the future

7.9 Is the approach for providing help and assistance to owners appropriate?

Is the approach for providing help and assistance to owners appropriate?

H Yes

m No

The graph shows that 84% (92) of respondents agreed with the councils approach for providing help
and assistance to owners, 16% (17) of respondents did not agree with this approach.

Where respondents stated no, they were able to give reasons for their answer. 13 responses were
received and the responses are themed below:

Number of
Theme responses
There is a need for more financial help 5
Owners should maintain their properties and fund these themselves 3
Should be higher council tax for empty properties 2
The council should force the sale of a property after two years 1

to‘b D

IDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk

11

= | qenybone,,


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

All circumstances are different and this should be considered 1

The process takes too long 1

Response:
Comments noted.

The Strategy recognises the many variables in dealing with this issue and contains information on
what support can be made available for home owners to bring their property back into use.

Owners do have a responsibility to maintain their properties and the Strategy sets out the actions
the Council will take to enforce this obligation. The Strategy also outlines the key steps taken to
communicate and engage with property owners

The Council has made changes to the level of council tax payable for empty properties

The Strategy sets out the enforcement options that are available to the council including enforced
sale

The Strategy recognises that all circumstances are different and treats each case on a case by case
basis

The Strategy sets out the different levels of actions that are undertaken by the Council

7.10 Is the planned approach to ensure effective communication with owners and the
public appropriate?

Is the planned approach to ensure effective communication with owners
and the public appropriate?

1%

H Yes

H No

No response

The graph shows that 90% (98) of respondents agree that the planned approach to ensure effective
communication with owners and the public is appropriate, 9% (10) disagreed and 1% (1) were
unsure.

Where respondents stated no, they were able to give reasons for their answer. Eight responses
were received and the responses are themed below:

12

www.bridgend.gov.uk

‘,4(.. i
to.b D

5
5
]
N
%
o
-

BRIDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Number of
Theme responses
Better communication about empty properties is needed 6
Property is privately owned so the council should not have the right to get
involved 2
Response:

Comments noted.

The Strategy recognises the many variables in dealing with this issue and contains information on
what support can be made available for home owners to bring their property back into use.

The Strategy also outlines the key steps taken to communicate and engage with property owners

Owners do have a responsibility to maintain their properties and the Strategy sets out the actions
the Council will take to enforce this obligation. The Strategy also outlines the key steps taken to
communicate and engage with property owners

7.11 Do you agree that working closely with internal and external partners is needed
to deliver the strategy?

Do you agree that working closely with internal and external partners is
needed to deliver the strategy?

M Yes W No

The graph shows that 94% (102) of respondents agree that working closely with internal and
external partners is needed to deliver the strategy, 6% (7) disagreed.

Where respondents stated no, they were able to give reasons for their answer. Seven responses
were received and the responses are themed below:

Number of
Theme responses
There should be less private business involvement 2

13

www.bridgend.gov.uk

@

o‘b""..': \

-
§
<
N
%
o
=

BRIDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Provided feedback on the consultation questions 2

The council shouldn't end up with the costs associated with empty properties 1

Property is privately owned so the council should not have the right to get

involved 1

“Internal partners are enough” 1
Response:

Comments noted.

The Strategy recognises the many variables in dealing with this issue and contains information on
what support can be made available for home owners to bring their property back into use.

The Consultation Team have taken on board feedback and comments made in relation to the
consultation questions

The Strategy outlines the need to involved internal partners as well as the home owners and partner
agencies

The Strategy outlines the economic and social costs relating to empty properties. The Council has
an obligation to ensure that Empty Properties are dealt with appropriately

Owners do have a responsibility to maintain their properties and the Strategy sets out the actions
the Council will take to enforce this obligation. The Strategy also outlines the key steps taken to
communicate and engage with property owners

7.12 Is the use of enforcement action appropriate to deliver the strategy?

Is the use of enforcement action appropriate to deliver the strategy?

HYes No m Unsure

The graph shows that 68% (74) of respondents said they agreed that the use of enforcement action
was appropriate to deliver the strategy. 12% (13) disagreed and, 20% (22) were unsure.

14

www.bridgend.gov.uk

‘,4(.. i
to.b D

5
5
]
N
%
I
-

BRIDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Where respondents stated no, they were able to give reasons for their answer. 27 responses were
received and the responses are themed below:

Number of
Theme responses
All circumstances are different and this should be considered 14
Property is privately owned so the council should not have the right to get
involved 6
Empty property owners need more help financially 2
The council should be more forceful in the sale of empty properties 1
"Cost of legal action to the Council” 1
The strategy is not clear how families of deceased owners are supported 1
Owners should maintain their properties at no cost to the council 1
Unsure of enforcement actions and outcomes 1

Response:

Comments noted.

The Strategy recognises the many variables in dealing with this issue and contains information on
what support can be made available for home owners to bring their property back into use.

The Strategy already addresses the comments outlined above in relation to enforcement, support
available for property owners and how each circumstance is recognised by dealing with cases on a
case by case basis

The Strategy outlines the economic and social costs relating to empty properties. The Council has
an obligation to ensure that Empty Properties are dealt with appropriately

7.13 Is there anything missing from the strategy that you would like to see included?

"l‘.. X
z
£
15 %
-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Is there anything missing from the strategy that you would like to see
included?

HYes
H No

m No Response

22% (24) of respondents told us that they felt that there was something missing from the strategy
that they would like to see included. 73% (80) did not feel that there was anything missing and 5%
(5) did not respond to this question.

Where respondents stated yes, they were able to give details of what they thought should be
included. 22 responses were received and the responses are themed below:

Number of

Theme responses

There needs to be more awareness of support available 9

Commercial empty properties should be included in this strategy 3

Introduce timeframes for work to be completed around the process 3

Owners to take full responsibility of costs, with no costs to the council 2

All circumstances are different and this should be considered 2

The public need more information on how to report empty homes 1

Query around what council will do with properties following compulsory

purchase 1

There is a need for better communication between owners and authority 1
Response:
Comments noted. s

"I
16 %

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

The Strategy recognises the many variables in dealing with this issue and contains information on
what support can be made available for home owners to bring their property back into use.

More awareness of the support available — this has already been addressed in the Information Pack
and information available on-line on the Council’s website

Commercial Empty Properties to be includes — specific reference to our approach is made on page
12 of the Strategy which confirms that opportunities will be considered on a case by case basis

Introduce timeframes for work to be completed — this is dealt with on a case by case basis due to
the different circumstances related to each property

Other generic responses on information and communication are addressed throughout the Strategy
document

7.14 Please use this space to provide any further comments on this strategy.
Respondents were given the opportunity to give any further comments on the strategy.

27 comments were provided which are themed below:

Number of
Theme responses
All circumstances are different and this should be considered 8
The Scheme is a great idea 7
Commercial empty properties to be included in this policy 3
Need more information in order to make an informed decision 3
This policy would mean additional cost to the council 2
Strategy needs to be implemented urgently 2
The council should increase council tax for empty properties 1
Introduce timescales for application process 1

Response:
Comments noted.

The Strategy recognises the many variables in dealing with this issue and contains information on
what support can be made available for home owners to bring their property back into use.

More awareness of the support available — this has already been addressed in the Information Pack
and information available on-line on the Council’s website

ANT .
o%
‘;;. D
&
£
17 z
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Commercial Empty Properties to be includes — specific reference to our approach is made on page
12 of the Strategy which confirms that opportunities will be considered on a case by case basis

Each case is dealt with on a case by case basis due to the different circumstances related to each
property

Council tax changes have already been introduced

Introduce timeframes for work to be completed — this is dealt with on a case by case basis due to
the different circumstances related to each property

The Strategy outlines the economic and social costs relating to empty properties. The Council has
an obligation to ensure that Empty Properties are dealt with appropriately

Other generic responses on information and communication are addressed throughout the Strategy
document

8. EMAILS, SOCIAL MEDIA TELEPHONE AND LETTER COMMENTS

Additional comments were invited by letter, phone call or email as well as via our corporate social
media channels during the consultation period.

8.1 Email and letter comments

One letter was received during the live period from the Registered Landlords Association. The letter
is included in Appendix one. The letter contained multiple themes as detailed in the table below:

Theme

There is a need for robust strategy

Empty properties can have a negative impact upon surrounding properties

There is a potential increase in crime, vandalism and antisocial behaviour where there are empty
properties

There should be more engagement with private rented sector landlords

Welcome the proposed financial incentives in this policy

Provides opportunities for non-residential properties

Clarification on enforcement and sanctions is needed

Response:

Comments noted

8.2 Social media and telephone comments N
xo‘b"":
18 ¥

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

We received 12 comments over social media and one comment was received via telephone during
the live period, all comments have been themed and are detailed in the table below:

Number of
Theme responses
Make use of unused properties instead of building new houses 4
Lots of empty properties in the valleys 3
The look of a property shouldn't be the main priority 2
Charge owners for letting properties get into a state of disrepair 1
Damage to neighbour's properties should be taken into consideration 1
Invest in town centre is positive 1
Funding should be provided for people to move into the empty properties
themselves 1

Response:

Comments noted. The Strategy is focused on making best use of empty properties and takes into
account the comments made above

9. CONCLUSION
A sample of 109 survey completions is subject to a maximum standard error of +1.96% at the 95%
confidence level. Therefore, we can be 95% confident that responses are representative of those
that would be given by the total adult population, to within £9.38% of the percentages reported.

This means that if the total adult population of Bridgend had taken part in the survey and a statistic
of 50% was observed, we can be 95% confident that the actual figure lies between 40.62% and
59.38%.

9.1 Equality Impact Assessment

The EIA screening informed the development of the consultation questionnaire. The EIA screening
identified that there was no impact on any protected characteristic groups therefore a full EIA is not
necessary for this strategy.

9.2 Empty Property Strategy consultation
Overall the Empty Property Strategy was supported by the survey respondents as follows:

o 98% of respondents stated that the strategy was written in plain language and was easy to
understand

e 97% of respondents felt that the strategy clearly explained why empty properties were a =,
priority for the council : D

F
=
£

19 z
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

e 95% of respondents said that the aims and objectives outlined within the strategy were the
most relevant

e 91% of respondents agreed with the council approach to identify and prioritise empty
properties

o 84% of respondents agreed with the councils approach for providing help and assistance to
owners of empty properties

¢ 90% of respondents agreed that the planned approach to ensure effective communication with
owners and the public is appropriate

é'O%

:
<

20 H
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

10.APPENDIX ONE

Bridgend County Borough Council

SRIDGEND

Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont, CF31 4WB | Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB

Adfywio Tai a Chymuned/
Housing & Community Regeneration

Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line: (01656) 643664
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:

Ein cyf / Qur ref: Empty Property Strategy 2019-
2023 Consultation
Eich cyf / Your ref:

Dyddiad / Date: 15/02/2019

Dear Sir / Madam

Empty Property Strateqy Consultation:

We are writing to you as we believe you may have an interest in the below consultation exercise
that is being undertaken by Bridgend County Borough Council.

The Council is committed to working with owners of empty properties so that they can be brought
back into use and re-occupied.

An Empty Property Strategy has therefore been developed to:

j'
§
£
21 %
s

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

» Quiline an approach to identify, prioritise and reduce empty private sector residential
properties across the County Borough and help contribute towards increasing the
availability of housing for sale or for rent.

» Adopt an approach that seeks to work cooperatively with owners to bring their empty
properties back into use.

+ Consider the use of legislative powers where properties continue to remain empty and are
in a state of disrepair, are detrimental or a nuisance to the community.

We would like to hear your views on the strategy. The consultation will be live between 01/02/19
and 28/04/19 and the consultation documents with the full strategy can be accessed online at:

www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/equalities-and-engagement/consultations/current-
consultations/proposal-to-consult-on-the-empty-property-strategy-2019-to-2023/

Alternatively, you can view the consultation documents by attending the Civic Offices, Angel
Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB, or by telephoning 01656 643664 to request them in the post.

If you have any queries regarding the consultation, please contact 01656 643664.

Please accept our apologies if you have received this letter in error. This letter has been sent to
you as part of a widespread mailshot to all owners of empty properties throughout the Borough.

Yours faithfully

Housing Strategy Team|

N’&

§

£

22 %
-

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

@

‘8'":; : E

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk

-
§
<
=
%
'3
s

23


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

11. APPENDIX TWO
IQI n RESIDENTIAL
[ LANDLORDS AS3OC.

Bridgend County Borough Council |
Consultation and Engagement Team
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend

CF31 4WB

6" of March 2019

Dear SirfMadam,

Bridgend County Borough Council Empty Property Strategy 2019-2023

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to Bridgend County Borough Council's Empty
Property Strategy 2019-2023. We broadly support the proposal and we would be delighted
to collaborate with Bridgend County Borough Council in promoting the scheme.

The Residential Landlords Association (RLA) represents over 50,000 private sector residential
landlords in England and Wales. The RLA provides support and advice to members and seek to
raise standards in the Private Rented Sector through our code of conduct, training, accreditation
and the provision of guidance and updates on legislation affecting the sector.

Why we have responded to this consultation.

According to the Welsh Government, the latest figures suggest there are in addition of
23,000 empty properties in Wales. Some of these properties could provide homes to people
who need them such as vulnerable people and people on housing waiting lists to prevent
homelessness. According to your strategy, as of June 2018, 1,225 private sector
residential properties within Bridgend County had been left empty for six months or more,
which is strong evidence that a clear and robust strategy is required to brning these
properties back into use.

The RLA fully recognises the priority for Welsh local authorities in bringing empty properties
back into use as houses rather than leaving them empty. Not only is providing more
housing important, but where homes are left empty for significant periods of time, the
impact can cause deterioration for the surrounding community. Accordingly, empty homes
not only reduce the value of the house in guestion but have an impact on surrounding
properties. Empty properties can also become targets for vandalism, crime and anti-social
behaviour such as fly-tipping.

\F

§

£

24 %
s

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Izl 0 RESIDENTIAL
| LANDLORDS ASSOC.

Council Tax reduction for empty properties

While not a matter specifically related to this consultation, we note that the council are
considering ending the Council Tax discount for empty properties. We hope that in doing so
the authority would consider exempting landlords who can prove that their property is being
renovated for structural improvements or to ensure that it is fit for human capacity. There is
precedent for this form of action with many local authorities in England and Wales taking
this form of exception.

The Council’'s approach

The RLA welcomes the general approach adopted by Bridgend County Borough Council in
pledging to work cooperatively with landlords who have empty properties and by ensuring
regular and effective communication with landlords is maintained. Where positive dialog can
be maintained, the RLA would be delighted to support Bridgend Council in communicating
with local landlords.

When properties become vacant for long periods of time, there is often a sound reason why
the property is empty. Vacant properties are generally undesirable for landlords who are
effectively operating in a business model. Some of the main reasons why a private rental
property might be vacant could be that the property requires structural improvements, or the
property requires work to ensure it is fit for human capacity. Where this is the case, we
welcome the opportunity for landlords to apply for empty property interest free loans and
empty property grants. We particularly welcome the opportunity for landlords to receive
grants to bring empty properties back into homes for rental at local housing allowance rates
into use. However, we require clarification on how much funding is available and if such a
grant could be used to achieve the UK Government's Minimum Energy Efficiency
Standards? We would like to point out that current UK Government legislation stipulates
that any new or a renewal tenancy may only lawfully be granted for a property that has an
EPC rating of A to E and that by 2030 the minimum EPC will be a C. This is a major
obstacle for many Welsh landlords given the age of housing stock and with many properties
having single walls. If any efforts were made by the authority to improve EPC ratings, it
would be our recommendation that achieving above E ratings will be most beneficial.

\F
§
<
25 H
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Far the case of landlords operating within the private rented sector, it makes sound
business sense for landlords to have their properties occupied with tenants rather than left
empty. In this context, it should be acknowledged that PRS landlords are operating in a
difficult climate in providing an important part of the solution in tackling the housing crisis
with significant and growing evidence illustrating the importance of the PRS in housing local
people — including the most vulnerable and needy in society. For this reason, and to
maintain high standards within the local community, the RLA applaud the overall aims and
objectives of the strategy providing the local authority continues to engage with PRS
landlords and offers support for those that require additional help in ensurng their
properties are occupied.

RESIDENTIAL LANDLORDS ASS0C.

1 Rosbuck Lane, Manchester, M33 T5Y T +44 (0) 3330 142 988 E info@ria.org.uk
Residential Landlords Assoc. is a trading name of Residential Landlords Association Ltd. Company No. 2863178,

www.ria.ong.uk

While we welcome the proposed financial incentives, in our experience, the issuing of loans
being granted on the basis of enabling charges on a property is not always effective. This
we believe would be also be the case for the Houses into Homes Loan as it will not take the
combined loan and current mortgage above 80% of the property value. Given the low value
of stock in some areas of Bridgend County, particularly in parts of the Ogmaore and Llynfi
Valley, it might be the case that some of the houses completed are not worth more than
£50,000, which doesn’t take into consideration conditions and the extent to the cost in
getting stock up to standard.

We also welcome the Council drawing attention to possible VAT discounts for energy
saving maternials and building and construction for landlords that bring empty properties
back into use that have not been lived in for two or more years through VAT Notice 708 and
VAT Notice 708/6. We applaud the cooperative approach of the council in supplying
landlords with the necessary official documentation which can be forwarded to the Inland
Revenue as evidence of eligibility for these notices.

RESIDENTIAL LANDLORDS ASSOC,

1 Rosbuck Lane, Manchestar, M33 7SY T +44 (0) 3330 142 288 E info@@rla.orguk
Residential Landlords Assoc. is a frading nama of Residential Landlords Association Lid. Company Mo, 2388170

v ria. org. uk

Izl 0 RESIDENTIAL
| LANDLORDS ASSOC.

Another reason why properties might remain unoccupied could be that the property has
poor access. For example, access to the dwelling could be from a commercial premise
including a shop. Alternatively, the dwelling could be in an area that is not highly sought
after or an area of low rental demand. We believe that any financial support should be used
to add additionality to properties that are hard to rent. This could include improving access
or adding additional benefits and improvements to the property to make them more
appealing to the market. However, we would also welcome additional support from the local
authority, to enhance its relationship with the PRS in providing support for marketing hard to
rent properties. For PRS properties that have been vacant for long periods of time that are
suitable for the rental market in terms of condition and legalities, we would welcome
additional support from the council in finding suitable tenants from their housing waiting
lists.

&
§
<
26 H
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

We also welcome opportunities for non-residential properties, such as commercial
properties, churches and chapels and those properties that the Inland Revenue's Valuation
Office Agency has deleted from the Valuation List, to be brought back into residential
properties. We would, however, like clarification on how the authority will engage with PRS
landlords in how they can purchase such properties when they are suitable for the rental
market?

Former commercial properties would inevitably require substantial improvements in order to
be suitable for residential purposes. We believe the conversion work is a good opportunity
for small builders and traders to get access to work. We would welcome clarification on how
small traders could gain access to this work and whether the local authonty will prioritise
local small traders to carry out this work? Likewise, we note that the authority recognises
that some larger empty properties could be converted into smaller units or converted into
specialist housing, which could house vulnerable groups such as the low waged or those
dependent on welfare. We believe that this type of conversion work would also be most
desirable for small traders and builders and would welcome clanfication on how such
traders will be engaged in the process?

We believe that the scoring criteria used to prioritise which empty homes to tackle is
relatively sound in that a series of areas are considered including if the property is a
nuisance, if there have been complaints from elected members or if the property is
detrimental to the local community etc. We also welcome additional scoring for areas of
high need in housing.

While there is a lot to commend the strategy in terms of support outlined, we appreciate that
on a small number of occasions, enforcement activity and sanctions will be necessary
including enforced sales as well as more serious sanctions such as Empty Dwelling
Management Orders (EDMO) and Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPO.) For CPOs and
EDMOs, we would hope these would be used as a very last resort and welcome clarification
on the process before getting to this stage and how the authority would consider
communicating with landlords. We would hope that given many landlords have multiple
houses and use the services of agents, that a data sharing agreement with Rent Smart
Wales would be sought after in order to make sure the correct correspondent is contacted?

We once again thank you for the opportunity to engage with the local authority on this
subject and would welcome any future dialog on this or any other matters relating to the
PRS.

Kind Regards,

RESIDENTIAL LANDLORDS ASSOC.

1 Roebuck Lane, Manchester, M33 7SY T +44 (0) 3330 142 888 E info@rla.org uk
Residential Landlords Assoc. is a trading name of Residential Landlords Association Lid. Company Mo. 2888178

vewrwiria. org.uk

j'

§

£

27 %
s

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Izl 0 RESIDENTIAL
|| LANDLORDS ASSOC.

Douglas Haig
Vice Chairman and Director of RLA Wales

&
§
<
28 H
=

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Agenda Iltem 5

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
17 DECEMBER 2019
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
WELSH GOVERNMENT FOUNDATIONAL ECONOMY CHALLENGE FUND
1. Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet on an application for funding to the
Welsh Government Foundational Economy Challenge Fund and to seek Cabinet
approval to accept a funding offer and enter into agreements with delivery partners
as appropriate.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate Priorities

2.1. This report supports the following corporate priorities:

e Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a good
place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure
that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions
of all people in the county.

e Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical,
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible
and support the development of resources throughout the community that
can help deliver the Council’s priorities.

3. Background

3.1. The Welsh Government considers that the foundational economy consists of basic
services and products, that people rely on these services and products and they
keep the population safe, sound and civilised.

3.2. Examples of the foundational economy cited by Welsh Government are:

Care and health services
Food

Housing

Energy

Construction

Tourism

Retailers on the high street

3.3  Furthermore, it is estimated that the foundational economy in Wales provides four in
ten jobs and £1 in every £3 spent is in the foundational economy.

Page 93



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

41.

4.2.

The Welsh Government’s approach to supporting and developing the foundational
economy focuses on three areas:

A £4.5m Foundational Economy Challenge Fund: This will support a series
of experimental projects that will enable the testing of approaches to support
the foundational economy.

A renewed focus on growing the ‘missing middle’: A focus on increasing the
number of grounded firms in Wales to establish a firm base of medium sized
Welsh firms which are capable of selling outside Wales but have decision
making rooted firmly in Welsh communities.

Spreading and scaling best practice: A focus on social value within
procurement. Support will be provided to Public Service Boards to use and
strengthen local supply chains. The Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act methods will assist with progress.

To support this, the Welsh Government have established the following:

The Economic Action Plan (EAP) which has set the direction for a broader
and more balanced approach to economic development with a shift towards
a focus on ‘place’ and making communities stronger and more resilient.

A Ministerial Advisory Board Task and Finish Group on the Foundational
Economy to provide advice to Welsh Ministers on current and future
interventions and best practice; support wider engagement with stakeholders
in the foundational economy; and promote a joining-up of relevant
government and non-governmental initiatives.

The Foundational Economy Challenge Fund was launched in summer 2019 to
encourage new and experimental approaches towards supporting the foundational
economy across Wales. The budget for the fund was set at £4.5m, which includes

£2.4m from the Valleys Taskforce budget, specifically ring-fenced for projects in the
Valleys Taskforce area.

Following the launch of the fund, officers submitted a proposal for funding the B-
Ridges project in July 2019.

Current Situation / Proposal

Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) has received notification from Welsh
Government that the proposal for the B-Ridges project has been approved. The B-
Ridges project will have the strapline of: Bridgend County — Retail | Invest | Develop
| Grow | Evolve | Sustain.

The B-Ridges project aims to create a support package to allow business start—-ups

in Bridgend and Maesteg town centres to become sustainable. These areas are

targeted as they fall within the Valleys Taskforce area and are therefore eligible for
the ring-fenced funding. Officers will however engage with other funders to seek
opportunities to further extend the approach being undertaken by the B-Ridges

project into other areas of the County Borough.

Page 94



4.3.

4.4

4.6

5.1

6.1

7.1

The project will support Bridgend and Maesteg town centres by utilising vacant
premises. Based on the very successful ‘Meanwhile’ project in Merthyr, the B-
Ridges project will ensure that entrepreneurs will be fully supported with a
consistent and co-ordinated approach to business advice utilising the combined
resources of the existing business networks, enhanced by harnessing the support
of the private property sector. This will support the sustainability of the businesses
that take part, eventually allowing them to trade independently of the project.

By adding value to the existing Kickstart business start-up grant delivered by BCBC
and the Pop-Up business school funded by BCBC the B-Ridges project will:

Enable new foundational economy business to start trading from the town centres
Support currently empty retail units to become occupied

Provide business advice support to start-up foundation economy businesses
Assist new business to create new jobs

The proposal for the B-Ridges project has been offered a £75,000 grant towards a
total project cost of £100,000.

Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules
There is no direct impact on the Council’s policy framework and procedure rules.
Equality Impact Assessment

An initial assessment has identified that there are no equality issues related to this
report.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment Template has
been completed and a summary of the implications from the assessment relating to
the five ways of working is below:

Long-term: The activities that form part of the scheme have been identified by a
wide range of local stakeholders in response to issues facing both town centres.
The ability of the project to test different ways of working will provide opportunities
for new and existing businesses to learn from one another and develop long-term
approaches.

Prevention: On their own none of the partners would be able to achieve the scale of
impact that such a partnership approach offers. Therefore delivering in this way
offers the opportunity to build on lessons learnt from other areas to date and
prevent a deterioration of the town centres.

Integration: The scheme will achieve this way of working by recognising the
approaches that are proposed for support are those that have been identified by
partner organisations due to their synergy with local, regional and national priorities.

Collaboration: The proposals have been developed and will be delivered through a
strong partnership between BCBC and key stakeholders in the town centres.

Page 95



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

Involvement: The scheme will be delivered in close partnership with a range of local
stakeholders in each town. Discussions and development with neighboring
Authorities has taken place through BCBC’s Economy, Natural Resources and
Sustainability team along with the Town Centre Manager and relevant officers from
neighbouring Authorities as well as representatives from a range of private and third
sector partners.

Financial Implications

Welsh Government have offered £75,000 for delivery of the project towards an
overall project cost of £100,000.

The remaining £25,000 required as match funding will be provided by a ring-fenced
contribution from the BCBC Kickstart fund, supported through the Council’s
Strategic Regeneration Fund (SRF).

The Funding relates to the period 01/11/2019 to 31/3/2021 and must be claimed in
full by 21/04/2021.

The Section 151 Officer will ensure that the grant funding provided is used solely for
the purposes outlined in the grant offer letter. Expenditure of the grant will comply
with all statutory requirements for accounting and internal audit (including
supporting records and all systems of internal checks and control), and will be
included with any internal or external audit of the Council’s funding.

Recommendation
Cabinet is recommended to:

Note the approval of funding from Welsh Government for the delivery of the B-
Ridges project to trial new approaches to enable new foundation economy business
to start trading from the town centres; support currently empty units to become
occupied; provide business advice support to start-up foundation economy
businesses; assist new business to create new jobs.

Authorise the Head of Operations — Community Services, in consultation with the
Section 151 Officer and Head of Legal and Regulatory Services, to enter into
appropriate agreements to accept the funding and deliver the project.

Mark Shephard
Chief Executive
17th December 2019

Contact Officer: leuan Sherwood

Group Manager: Economy, Natural Resources and Sustainability

Telephone: (01656) 815334

E-mail: leuan.Sherwood@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address: Bridgend County Borough Council, Communities Directorate, Angel

Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB

Page 96


mailto:Ieuan.Sherwood@bridgend.gov.uk

Background documents:

None

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
17 DECEMBER 2019
REPORT OF THE INTERIM HEAD OF FINANCE AND SECTION 151 OFFICER
OUTCOME OF THE CONSULTATION ‘SHAPING BRIDGEND’S FUTUREF’
1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet of the outcome of the ‘Shaping
Bridgend’s Future’ 2019 consultation which asked citizens to share their views
on a number of key budget proposals being considered over the Medium
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) period.

1.2  This report provides an overview of the budget consultation activities, analysis
and key findings.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate
Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate priorities:-

1. Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and
to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills,
qualifications and ambitions of all people in the county.

2. Helping people to be more self-reliant — taking early steps to reduce or
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council
and its services.

3. Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial,
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and
efficiently as possible and support the development of resources
throughout the community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities.

2.2  The ‘Shaping Bridgend’s Future’ 2019 consultation sought to obtain views on
specific budget reduction proposals across Council directorates. The
allocation of financial resources determines the Council’s ability to meet its
corporate objectives. As such the report links to all corporate priorities.

3. Background
3.1 Following continuous reductions in funding from central government, all
Councils across the country are continuing to change the way they work and

the services they provide so that they can manage with less. Bridgend County
Borough Council (BCBC) has made reductions from its budget of £27.07

Page 99



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

million over the last four years (2016-17 to 2019-20), with an expectation of
significant further reductions required over the next four years.

A public consultation exercise was undertaken over an eight week period from
9 September 2019 to 3 November 2019. Respondents were asked to share
their views on a range of budget proposals being considered between 2020-
21 and 2023-24, including: proposed increases to council tax and considering
cutbacks to services including street cleaning, CCTV, pest control, town
centre events, adult learning, education support services, as well as closing
one of its three community recycling centres.

Budget consultation exercises have been undertaken annually since 2013-14.
This ‘Shaping Bridgend’s Future’ 2019 consultation exercise has built on the
knowledge gained from the previous consultations and further developed the
consultation to include new ways for people to participate and engage with the
Council. A wide variety of methods of communication were used including
surveys, social media, community engagement stands, town and community
council and community group meetings.

In addition, in order to gather the views of young people the consultation team
attended an all-Bridgend head-teacher’s event to promote the survey as well
as asking individual schools to take part in interactive sessions in order to
gather feedback. As a result, 1,218 young people in comprehensive schools
across the county borough took part in clicker-pad sessions.

The budget consultation overview, document and different surveys were
made available between 9 September 2019 and 3 November 2019. The
surveys were available on the council’s website while paper copies were also
made available in community groups or engagement events, or sent directly
to residents upon request.

The consultation aimed to reach the following key stakeholders: citizens of
Bridgend County Borough, comprehensive schools, BCBC cabinet
members/councillors, local businesses, council staff, town and community
councils, partner organisations, community and equality groups, local interest
/ community groups and local media.

Methods of engagement included a survey (available online and paper copies
at all local libraries), community meetings/ engagement stands, elected
member workshops, other meetings/networking events, social media debates
and comments, and a dedicated Citizens’ Panel survey (available online and
paper copies). A bespoke survey was also designed for youth engagement
and an accessible version of the survey was also available. Survey
completions and/or comments were collated as part of the different events
and meetings. Feedback to the consultation was also welcome via letter,
email or telephone.

The consultation was supported by a full communications and promotional
plan. The main activities included two media releases, a BCBC budget
explainer video, various press release/editorials in the media, a social

Page 100



media/web campaign, poster/sign campaign, direct marketing to key target
audiences e.g. businesses, schools, youth council and internal
communications for staff and elected members. Links were also made to the
consultation through HALO, Awen and BAVO’s communication outlets.

3.9 In addition to general social media content, 3 polls were created on Twitter
which generated 497 votes to key questions within the budget consultation
survey.

4. Current Situation / proposal

4.1  The attached consultation report (Appendix A) sets out in detail the views
expressed by those who participated.

4.2  Overall, the council has received 7,437 interactions during the consultation,
covering survey completions, engagement event attendees and social media
interactions. This is an increase of 2,149 (40.6%) on the 5,288 interactions
from last year, of which 1,200 relates to an increase on social media
comments.

4.3 The response rate, by method of interaction is set out below:

Interactions Number
Survey completions 3,417
Events/meetings/workshops 1,987
Emails 9
Letters 0
Telephone calls 7
Webpage Feedback 8
Social Media comments 1,365
Social Media Q&A 147
Social Media Polls 497
Total interactions 7,437

e 3,417 responses to the surveys were received in total. This represents
a 27% increase on last year’s total of 2,677.

e Overall 1,987 people attended the various events, workshops and
meetings — these figures include schools.

e Atotal of 2,009 interactions were received via social media. This includes
147 interactions from the live question and answer (Q&A) session, 1,365
social media comments and 497 social media poll votes.

e 24 comments were received by email, telephone and webpage
feedback.

Page 101



4.4  Headline figures and themes include:

Headlines from the Public Consultation

Council Tax

64% of respondents stated that they would be prepared to pay an additional 6.5% council
tax (this was the lowest amount that could be chosen).

83% of respondents were not willing to pay an additional 13.6% council tax in order to
protect all services for 12 months.

The proposals to make savings that were supported by respondents were:

Close Community Recycling Centres for one day per week each (70%).

The council is not best placed to provide pest control services (58%).

Remove funding for town centre events (54%).

Remove funding for all strategic events (40%) and remove funding for Elvis Festival (32%).
Remove funding for Bridgend Business Forum (72%).

Reduce the funding for Adult Community Learning to save £65k (58%).

Support for a model of localised day services through the development of Community
Hubs (69%).

Remove escorts from school transport where there are less than eight pupils (56%).

Delegate funding to primary schools for pupils with additional learning needs (57%).

Move to less face to face interactions within the Customer Services Contact Centre within
Civic Offices (70%).

Move to an appointment based system in the Customer Services Contact Centre (59%).
The proposals that were not supported by respondents were:

Move to a reactive street cleaning service (63%).

Removal of funding for CCTV (70%).

Removal of funding for Pop-up Business School (58%).

Reconfiguration of the homelessness service (54%).

Delegation of money for cognition and learning services to schools (52%).

Generating Income

61% of respondents agreed that the council should consider commercial ventures to
fund and protect front line services.

60% of respondents stated that the council should consider the possibility of providing
energy to its residents to generate income.

Social Media Responses — most common comments:

Theme No.
Don'’t increase council tax by 13.6% 242
We pay more council tax yet receive less services 203
Cut council staff/wages/expenses/pensions 200
Requests for more information on annual accounts and budget reductions | 116
Cut councillors/wages/expenses 99
Council should challenge central government funding cuts 88
Issues with recycling and waste service 73

Page 102



S. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1  There are no proposed changes to the policy framework and procedure rules.

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 Budget reduction proposals pursued will be subject to the appropriate equality
impact assessment prior to implementation.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation
of the Budget Consultation. Officers have considered the importance of
balancing short-term needs in terms of meeting savings targets, while
safeguarding the ability to meet longer-term objectives and maintain
sustainable services, when proposals were devised. A full Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 assessment will be completed for the
final MTFS presented to Council in February 2020.

8. Financial Implications

8.1  The consultation report seeks to inform and aid cabinet members’ decisions
on the future direction of the Council and how to meet the challenging budget
constraints in the years ahead.

9. Recommendation

9.1 Cabinet is recommended to note the outcome of the consultation with
interested parties as detailed in the attached consultation report.

Gill Lewis

Interim Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer

December 2019

Contact Officer: Deborah Exton

Interim Deputy Head of Finance and Deputy S151 Officer

Telephone: 01656 643604

Email:

Postal

deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk

Address: Raven’s Court
Brewery Lane
Bridgend
CF31 4AP

Background documents: None

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Bridgend County Borough Council

APPENDIX A

Shaping Bridgend’s Future
2019

Consultation report

Date of issue: 20 November 2019 go%‘“‘!:

N_’/ '

BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
extond
Stamp



Contents

(0] 01T 0 £ TP 2
L. OVEBIVIBW .ttt 3
2. INTFOTUCTION. ... 3
3. Promotional tools and engagement methods .............ccccoviviiiiiiiiiieeee 3
4. RESPONSE TALE ..uuiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e e et e et e e et e e e e e e et e e e et e e e ea e e e ea e e e e e e eaa e eenas 9
5. How effective was the cONSURAtIONT? .........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 10
6. HEAAIINE FIQUIES ... 10
7. Question and analysis - CONSUItAtiON SUIVEY ............uuiiiiiieeieieeiiei e 12
7405 A o Yo 10 | 6o U 12
7.2 SUIVEY QUESTIONS ...t 14
7.2.1 Sreet ClEANING .....ccoeeiee e 14
7.2.2 Community ReCYCING CENIIES ......evvviiiii e 15
7. 2.8 C TV e 16
T.2.4 PESECONIIOl ..o 16
7.2.5 TOWN CENIIE BVENTS ...ttt e e e e e e e e e en e e e enna s 17
7.2.6 SHAIEGIC BVENTS ... 18
7.2.7 POP-UP BUSINESS SCNOOI ...t 19
7.2.8 Bridgend BUSINESS FOIUM .......ccooiiiiiiiiie e 19
7.2.9 HOMBIESSNESS ... ettt e et r e e e e e e e et e et e e e e e e e e eeeeennn e aeeees 20
7.2.10 Adult commUNItY [€AIMING ......ccoiiiiiiiieie e 21
7.2.11 Telecare and Mobile reSPONSE SEIVICES ..........cuvuiiiiiiieeieeeiece e 21
7.2.12 CommUNILY NUDS.....ccooe 22
7.2.13 Escorts on school taxis or MiNIDUSES..........coooeiiiiiiiii e, 23
7.2.14 Pupils with additional learning NEEdS..............ouviiiiiiiie e 23
7.2.15 Cognition and [earning SEIVICES .......cooeeieie i 24
7.2.16 Digital services / contacting the COUNCIl ..., 25
7.2.17 Civic Office appOINtMENTS.......uuiiiiiiiie e 26
7.2.18 COUNCI X INCIEASES ..uvvuuiiieeeeeieeeiiiiie e e e e e et ettt s e e e e e e e e e eaataa e e e e e e e eeeesesnnnaeaeees 27
7.2.19 Capital eXPENAITUIE......ccoeeeeeeeeee e 30
7.2.20 GENEratiNg INCOIME ... .iiiiii et e et e e e e e e e e e et e e e e et e e e e et e e e e e aaa e e e e eaaan s 30
7.2.21 Commercial INVESIMENTS .......ccoiiieiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eees 32
7.2.22 LONG tEIM PIONIES ..o 33

7.2.23 Please tell us anything we have missed and your ideas on what we should focus
on when thinking about our long-term budgets.........ccoovie i, 34

7.2.24 Do you have any further comments that you would like to make on the budget
PropoSals fOr 20207217 .....cceeeeeeeiee ettt e e e e e e e e e 35

W
éo\b
g

RIDGEND

N
=] |Q¢X\'Y'l’” it

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

8. SOCIal MEAIA FESPONSES ....uuiieeeieieeeiii et e e e et e ettt e e e e e e e e e eeaaa e e e e eeeeeeesssnn e aaeeeeeeennes 36

9. Town and Community CouncCil MEELINGS ........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 37
10, CONCIUSION. ...ttt 38
1. Overview

A public consultation reviewing Bridgend County Borough Council’s proposed budget
reductions to 2021/22 was undertaken over an eight week period from 09 September to 03
November 2019. The consultation received 7,437 interactions from a combination of
survey completions, engagement at stands held across the county borough, workshops
held with comprehensive pupils, engagement at various meetings with different local
groups, social media engagement and via the authority’s Citizens’ Panel. This paper details
the analysis associated with the consultation.

2. Introduction

The public survey was available to complete online through a link on the consultation page
of the council’'s website or by visiting www.bridgend.gov.uk/future. Paper copies of the
consultation were also made available in community groups or engagement events or
alternatively, they could be sent directly to residents upon request. Surveys were available
in several formats, including easy-read, large print, standard and a youth version. All were
available in English and Welsh. The content of the page remains available online.

In total, there were 31 questions (within all survey formats) that required a reply from
respondents. These were made up of questions about budget reduction proposals as well
as ways in which the council could generate income and long term priorities. All survey
responses offered the option of anonymity. The council’s standard set of equalities
monitoring questions were also included with the survey in line with recommended good
practice for all public-facing surveys carried out by the council.

A programme of engagement events/sessions were held across the county borough and
took the form of engagement stands in libraries, attendance at town and community council
meetings, presenting to different groups, attending other group’s events, meetings and
workshops and holding sessions in comprehensive schools.

Comments regarding the consultation were also invited via social media (including a
dedicated social media Q&A), letter, email and phone call.

3. Promotional tools and engagement methods

Details of the consultation were promoted to/shared with the following stakeholders: general
public/residents, Citizens’ Panel members, elected members, BCBC employees, Bridgend
businesses, town and community councils, school governors, Bridgend Community
Cohesion and Equality Forum (BCCEF) members, local interest/community groups, BAVO,
Bridgend College, partners, secondary schools (including head teachers) and media
outlets.

3.1 Promotional tools

W
§

RIDGEND

chﬁ"i‘ ny

J

)

D

)
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

This section details the methods used to raise the profile of the consultation and encourage
participation.

3.1.1 Free prize draw

To encourage participation, respondents (aged over 13) were able to opt-in to a free prize
draw for a one year Halo Leisure membership, a family of four pantomime ticket for The
Grand Pavilion, Porthcawl, or two tickets to ‘It's a wonderful life’ at Blaengarw Workmen'’s
Hall. Respondents were asked to select their prize of choice and provide their email
address in order to opt-in.

3.1.2 Social media

In December 2017 the council committed to managing its social media accounts bilingually.
In addition to introducing Welsh language corporate Twitter and Facebook accounts at that
time, it started posting bilingually across the remainder of its social media channels.

Budget consultation information was posted bilingually to the council’s corporate Facebook,
Twitter, Instagram and LinkedIn channels throughout the consultation period to raise
awareness of the consultation and to encourage citizens to share their views on the
proposals.

The council currently has 12,092 followers on its corporate Twitter accounts, 12,263 ‘Likes’
on Facebook pages, 1,848 followers on Instagram and 3,308 followers on LinkedIn. While
content is most likely to be seen by these users, it is also displayed to users who are not
connected to the accounts.

In addition to general social media content, 3 polls were created on Twitter which generated
497 votes to key questions within the budget consultation survey.

e Would you support a move to less face to face interactions and more online
interactions in order to save £130k per year? 74% yes, 23% no and 3% unsure

e Our face to face customer service department in Civic Offices is currently run as a
drop in. Do you think the council should switch to an appointment based system?
32% yes, 60% no and 8% unsure

e We will receive £35 million less funding to run our services by 2023. In order to
reduce our budget, should we stop providing a CCTV service across the borough?
24% Yes, 76% No

Paid Facebook and Instagram advertising was used to reach a wider audience within the
county borough between 23 September and 4 November and again between 29 October
and 2 November. The adverts were seen 166,301 times by people living in Bridgend
County Borough and generated 338 comments and 1,471 clicks through to the budget
consultation website page.

During the period, the authority ‘tweeted’ 82 times (41 English, 41 Welsh), posted to
Facebook 22 times (11 English, 11 Welsh), made eight LinkedIn updates (8 bilingual), and
one Instagram post about the consultation. This content was seen 59,619, 99,675, 5,269

W
é@h 5
§

RIDGEND

Q;ws"i‘ ny

J

)

D

)
o
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

and 439 times respectively. In total 2679 individuals who viewed the social media content
went on to click through to the budget consultation page on the local authority website.

Across all social media platforms throughout the budget consultation there were 2009
interactions, including 497 poll votes and 1512 comments.

3.1.3 Media and publicity

[B|B|C -0 News Sport Weather iPlayer = Sounds =M =

& B GEM

NEWS

Home UK  World Business Election 2019  Tech Science Health Family & Educatiol

Home News Sport WhatsOn Motors ContactUs Digital Editions @ Our Papers v
Wales Wales Politics Wales Business North West North East Mid South West Sou

Porthcawl Elvis festival could suffer £20k

council budget cut BCBC invites residents to aim axe for potential cuts

Manday. 16 September 2019 - Politics
© 10 September 2019 f © v [ <shae by Contributed Item - Contributed ltem
oww @edltonal lamorgan-gem.co.uk

BRIDGEND County Borough Council
(BCBC) is considering cutbacks to services
including street cleaning, CCTV, pest
control, town centre events, adult learning,
education support services, as well as
closing one of its three recycling centres.

During the last four years, BCBC has saved
£27 million by cutting some services and
reducing council staff numbers by 400, which
has included making cutbacks in senior

Public views wanted on possible cutbacks in Bridgend County

Lisa Baker, Editor, Welsh Business News & News from Wales

Two media releases were issued to coincide with the start and middle of the consultation to
raise awareness and encourage participation. These were issued on 9 September and 9
October.

Prior media work was carried out to prepare residents and the media for the scale of the
budget challenges and encourage their participation. This work ranged from media
statements and features to interviews with the Leader and Deputy Leader.

It resulted in related coverage in publications such as the Glamorgan Gazette and Wales
Online on 11 August.

www.bridgend.gov.uk

H

<@

=
%
B

C)
EA

W
\0" )

RIDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Further coverage took place in the BBC News on 10 September, in the Glamorgan Gazette,
Wales Online and South Wales Echo on 13 September, in the Bridgend Gem and Bridge
FM on 16 September, and in News from Wales on 15 October.

The media releases were included at the media centre of the council’s website where they
were hyperlinked with associated social media publicity.

Information was also included in Cabinet member announcements for meetings of full
Council dated 18 September, and in columns for Seaside News on 1 September and 1
October.

3.1.4 Internal communications
The consultation was promoted internally with a feature at the staff intranet homepage.

It was also promoted via Bridgenders all-staff emails issued on 05 September.

3.1.5 Promotional materials

Posters, business cards and flyers promoting the consultation and engagement events
were circulated to the library service for use in their branches across the county borough, to
town and community councils and schools. Organisations including Bridgend Carers’ cafée,
the Stroke Association, Evergreen Hall and the Bridgend Coalition of Disabled People also
received promotional materials. When attending schools all pupils were given promotional
materials to take home to their parents and carers, including pencils which stated ‘I helped
shape Bridgend’s future’

A BCBC budget explainer video was produced which went live early in the consultation
period. The English video received 1.9k views on social media and 92 views on YouTube.
The Welsh video received 49 views on social media and 11 views on YouTube.

A QR code was added to business cards this year to encourage people to use their smart
phones to scan directly to the budget consultation landing page. The QR code generated
54 hits to the English budget consultation page and 15 hits to the Welsh budget
consultation page.

An awareness campaign was run on Bridge FM for the first week of the consultation to
launch the campaign and the last but one week of the consultation as a reminder/final push
for the consultation. In addition to the radio advert Bridge FM placed a banner advert on
their website which resulted in 28 clicks through to the consultation page and 3766
impressions.

A full page advert on the budget consultation in was placed in the November edition of the
Seaside News which distributes 27,000 copies to various outlets and households in the
Bridgend County Borough.

An email was sent to 1,278 businesses on Bridgend business directory.

W
§

RIDGEND

chﬁ"i‘ ny

J

)

D

)
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

A digital screen within Civic Offices reception displayed messages about the consultation
throughout the live period.

Pop-up banners were used at events and a window display was developed for Civic Offices.
Posters were also displayed in council offices.

3.1.6 Other promotional activities

The council’s website was updated to promote the consultation with a link through to the
survey.

Content was secured in BAVO'’s e-bulletins and membership circulars sent to members
during September October and November.

Targeted letters and emails were sent to school governing bodies, town and community
councils and BCCEF members.

Awen and Halo helped to raise the profile through their own social media channels.
3.2 Engagement methods

This section details the mechanisms available for stakeholders to engage with the council
and share their views.

3.2.1 The budget survey

The survey was made available in a variety of formats to ensure inclusion across community
groups. A standard survey, easy-read, large print and youth version of the survey were all
made available in Welsh and English. All were available in paper format and online. The
same survey was replicated for Citizens’ Panel members and sent to them in the format of
their choice.

3.2.2 Community meetings/events

An email about the consultation proposals and how to share views was sent to local
community, equality and diversity groups. As part of this email, we offered to attend their
meetings to encourage and aid participation.

The consultation and engagement team attended nine community group meetings including
Bridgend Shout, Bridgend Carers Community Café, Bridgend Coalition of Disabled People
and the Stroke Association to inform people about the consultation and assist attendees to
complete paper surveys (where requested) or to share their views via the clicker-pad
version of the survey. The consultation team engaged with a total of 213 residents from
across the County Borough in the community groups.

3.2.3 Community engagement stands
10 public engagement stands were held in libraries throughout the county borough. Event

dates and times were published online at the beginning of the consultation and shared
through promotional activities. Events took place in the following libraries:

W

RIDGEND

chvs"l‘"m

J

)

D
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Sarn Library;

Pencoed Library;

Betws Library;

Pyle Library;

Bridgend Library;
Maesteg Library;
Aberkenfig Library;
Pontycymmer Library;
Porthcawl Library;
Ogmore Vale Life Centre.

The Consultation Team engaged with 152 residents from across the county borough in
these events.

3.2.4 School engagement sessions

In order to gather the views of young people the consultation team attended an all-Bridgend
head-teachers’ event to promote the survey as well to ask individual schools to take part in
interactive sessions in order to gather feedback.

As a result, comprehensive schools across the county borough took part in clicker-pad
sessions. The consultation team engaged with 1218 young people in the following
comprehensive schools:

Pencoed Comprehensive;

Bryntirion Comprehensive;

Porthcawl Comprehensive;

Maesteg School,

Coleg Cymunedol Y Dderwen;

Ysgol Gyfun Gymraeg Llangynwyd,;

Cynffig Comprehensive;

Archbishop McGrath RC Comprehensive School;

3.2.5 Elected Member’s workshop

Two interactive workshops took place for elected members on 18 September 2019. A total
of 20 members attended across the two sessions. Members were given the opportunity to
complete the survey using clicker-pads. The sessions were also attended by the Deputy
Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities to feedback on any questions or comments.
Comments are added to the themes in section 7.2.24.

3.2.6 Town and Community Council meetings

All Town and Community Councils were asked if the Consultation and Engagement Team
could attend their regular meeting during the live period. The purpose was to inform each
TCC of the consultation and enable their local residents to take part. The Consultation and
Engagement team attended 19 Town and Community Council meetings and a total of 225
community councillors and members of the public attended these events. Comments
from attendees were noted and are themed in section 9.

W

RIDGEND

@ws"l‘"m

J

)

D
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

3.2.7 Bridgend Community Cohesion and Equality Forum (BCCEF)

The quarterly meeting of BCCEF took place during the live period of the budget
consultation on 14 October 2019. Members of the meeting (11 attendees) were invited to
take part in an interactive clicker-pad session. The meeting consisted of members
representing community based organisations including the police, Bridgend People First,
BCDP, faith organisations and Mental Health Matters Wales. All organisations were
provided with promotional materials to promote the consultation within their individual
community groups.

3.2.8 Bridgend Association of Voluntary Organisations (BAVO)

BAVO organised an event for their members to share their views on the MTFS proposals.
This was advertised on their website and on social media. The event was held in the St.
Johns’ Centre on Minerva Street on 24 October. The event was attended by the Cabinet
Member for Communities, who answered questions and queries raised by attendees. Eight
people attended the event. Comments made during the event were recorded and are themed
in section 7.2.24.

3.2.9 Citizens’ Panel events

The Consultation Team invited all members of the Citizens’ Panel to community events
during the live period. Events took place in:

Bridgend Civic Offices;
Maesteg Town Hall;

The Pavilion Porthcawl;
Ogmore Vale Life Centre;
Garw Valley Life Centre.

The events enabled Citizens’ Panel members to give their feedback on the consultation, ask
guestions and interact with officers and Cabinet members. The consultation team engaged
with 52 residents from across the county borough in these events. Comments made during
these events were recorded and are themed in section 7.2.24.

4. Response rate

In total, there were 7,437 interactions during the consultation. The response rate has been
segregated into several areas: consultation survey responses, engagement event attendees
and social media interactions.

Interactions Number
Survey completions 3417
Events/meetings/workshops 1987
Emails 9
Letters 0
Telephone calls 7
Webpage feedback 8
Social media comments 1365
Social media Q&A 147 -
9 %

RIDGEND

J

)

D
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Social media polls

497

Total interactions

7437

We received 3417 survey responses in total (1,982 online submissions, 1153 clicker-pad
submissions and 282 paper versions).

Survey type Online | Online | Paper Paper | Clicker- | Total
English | Welsh | English | Welsh pad

Standard 1423 4 50 0 42 1519
Easy read 118 1 65 0 0 184
Large print 12 0 21 0 0 33
Citizens’ Panel 350 1 139 4 0 494
Youth 71 2 3 0 1111 1187
Total 1974 8 278 4 1153 3417

There were 1987 attendees at the various events, meetings and workshops.

During the consultation period, there were 2009 interactions on our social media channels.
This includes the social media Q&A session, where 147 interactions were recorded on
Twitter and Facebook and Twitter polls where 497 votes were received.

Comments that were received by letter, email or telephone call have been themed and are
included in section 7.2.24.

5. How effective was the consultation?

The budget consultation was conducted over an eight week period in which a range of
marketing methods were used to create awareness of the consultation as well as reach and
encourage stakeholders to engage with the council.

The data collection methods, which include the online survey, a paper survey, the Citizens’
Panel and a youth survey (aimed at 11-24 year olds) were all developed using plain English
to maximise understanding.

The four versions of the survey: standard; large print; easy read and youth were developed
to maximise accessibility and to encourage participation with all members of the community.

6. Headline figures

6.1 63% of respondents stated that the council should continue to fully fund street
cleaning, and not move to a reactive service;

6.2 70% of respondents stated that the council should keep all three recycling centres
open but close each of them for one day each per week;

6.3 70% of respondents stated that the council should continue to fund CCTV;

6.4 58% of respondents stated that they did not think that the council was best placed
to deliver pest control services;

6.5 54% of respondents said that the council should remove funding for town centre

events;
\%\\(.
:LL :

RIDGEND

chﬁ"i‘ ny

10

J

)

D

N
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

6.6 40% of respondents stated that funding should be removed from all strategic
events, a further 32% stated remove funding for the Elvis Festival;

6.7 58% of respondents said that funding for the Pop-up Business School should
continue;

6.8 72% of respondents said that funding for the Bridgend Business Forum should be
removed,;

6.9 54% of respondents said that the council should not reconfigure the homelessness
service in order to make savings;

6.10 58% of respondents said that the council should reduce the funding for Adult
Community Learning to save £65k per year;

6.11 57% of respondents felt that telecare services should be available to purchase by
anyone within the county borough;

6.12 69% of respondents supported a model of more localised day services through the
development of Community Hubs;

6.13 When asked if the council should make a saving of £35k by removing escorts from
vehicles where there were eight pupils or less, 56% of respondents agreed with
this proposal;

6.14 57% of respondents supported the council saving money by delegating funding for
pupils with additional learning needs directly to primary schools;

6.15 52% of respondents disagreed with the proposal to save £61k per year by training
staff in school to provide some cognition and learning services;

6.16 70% of respondents stated that they would support the council moving to less face
to face interactions and providing more services online;

6.17 59% of respondents agreed with the proposal to move to an appointment based
system (instead of drop in) in the Customer Services Contact Centre within Civic
Offices;

6.18 When asked about council tax increases 64% of respondents stated that they were
prepared to pay an additional 6.5% council tax (this was the minimum increase that
respondents could choose);

6.19 When respondents were asked if they would be willing to pay an additional 13.6%
council tax in order to protect all services 83% of respondents stated that they
would not be willing to pay this additional amount;

6.20 When asked to prioritise the areas for capital expenditure the most popular

responses were roads (25%) followed by schools (24%) and then regeneration
projects (17%);

W
§

RIDGEND

chﬁ"i‘ ny

11

J

)

D
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

6.21 61% of respondents agreed that the council should consider commercial ventures
to fund and protect front line services;

6.22 47% of respondents stated that the council should consider the possibility of hotel
investments to generate income;

6.23 60% of respondents stated that the council should consider the possibility of
providing energy to its residents to generate income,

6.24 When asked to give their views on prioritisation of long term budgets respondents
stated that the council should make efficiencies in house (20%) followed by
encourage citizens to take more responsibility (18%) and use online facilities where
possible (18%).

7. Question and analysis - consultation survey
The consultation contained 31 questions related to current proposals to make savings
across a range of services as well as opportunities to increase revenue. All questions were

optional, so participants could chose to answer all or some of the questions.

Respondents were also asked to tell us where they would prioritise capital expenditure and
give their opinions on generating income.

In the final two question respondents could tell us anything they thought we had missed or

ideas on what we should focus on for our long term budget make any other comments or
recommendations about the budget for the coming year.

7.1 About you

The questions in this section were not available in the clicker-pad version of the survey. The
easy read survey did not include the question about employment status.

Respondents were asked how they heard about the consultation.

12

) - Pa RIDGEND

' | gerey-bong

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

900 832 2482 respondents provided this

information.

800 -

700 - The most popular responses were:

600 -

500 4 o Council social media (34%));
o Direct email or letter (13%);

400 1 331 . Word of mouth (10%).

300 @232 233

200 - 176 156

100 -

0 -

XXX XXX
Sty dea2gaogdsTe
(AL A - o PO -
c 222 B 2233 65RO 5
5 5§ 8 6 £ 82 L 8 L5 0= <
9 »n >0 9 8% Row ET2es
_gw>53§um8>ggg
S 5 S & T G =2 £ % ® c v O
o 2 v < 2 £ £ 0 X £ O ¥
O'DBTQSD:SHEEQJUOM
2 ¢ =< 3 2 50 0 ® 3 6 - 5§ = 3
= £ + muummgu - O
5 £y ®»O 9P eszzhH -8
S ®© & 2 v 0 = o
s 2 ® = o g o fre)
o 8 w c z £ 32 o c
o 2 < 2 g 2 © Z
— = ey c
= o — 60 S
e 4 £ S 3 o
s 9 8 o ° O
o o ) < S~
Q = S
< O
s =
=2

Respondents were then asked for their age.

2217 respondents provided
their age group:

500
450
400

392 393
338 21% of respondents were

350 aged 35-44;
300 262
250 18% of respondents were
200 aged 25-34:
150 141
00 L2 80 18% of respondents were

o j I 40 aged 45-54.

o8 B o H NN NEBEN

Under 18-2425-3435-4445-5455-6465-74 75+ Prefer

18  (4%) (18%) (21%) (18%) (15%) (12%) (6%) notto
(4%) say
(2%)

’é@b\.t -
H )
<@

%

13 >
B

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Respondents were then asked for their employment status.

1200 2046 respondents provided their
1037 employment status;

1000

51% of respondents informed us that

800 they were in full time employment;

600

22% of respondents informed us that

they were retired;
400

12% of respondents informed us that
they were employed part time.

200

Student / trainee (3%)
Self-employed (5%)
Retired (22%)

Carer (2%)

Prefer not to say (4%)

Employed - Full time (51%)
Employed - Part time (12%)

Unemployed / looking for work (1%)

7.2 Survey questions

7.2.1 Street cleaning

Respondents were informed that street cleaning currently costs £1.3 million per year and
that moving to a reactive service could save £270k per year.

Respondents were asked if the council should make this saving.

A total of 3089 people responded to this question.

"\Q\b\\t -
-
b
14 3
B

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

2500
1943
2000
1500 -
1146
1000 -
500 -
0 -
Continue to fully fund this service Move to a reactive service (37%)
(63%)

63% of respondents stated that the council should continue to fully fund this service. 37% of
respondents stated that the council should move to a reactive service.

7.2.2 Community Recycling Centres

Respondents were asked to select from three options in relation to the three Community
Recycling Centres across the county borough.

A total of 2907 people responded to this question.

2500
2043
2000
1500
1000
502
500 362
0
Close one Recycling Centre Keep all three Recycling Keep all Recycling Centres
(13%) Centres open and close all open (17%)
three sites for one day a
week (70%)

The majority of respondents (70%) selected that the council should keep all Community
Recycling Centres open but close each of them for one days a week this was followed by
keep all Recycling Centres open (17%) and then close one Recycling Centre (13%).

"\Q‘b\“ -
H
2
%
15 >
BF

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.2.3 CCTV

Respondents were asked if the council should continue to fund CCTV across the county
borough or stop providing this service which would save £327k per year.

A total of 3135 people responded to this question.

2500
2194

2000
1500
1000

0 -

Stop providing the CCTV service (30% Continue to fund this service (70%)

70% of respondents stated that the council should continue to fund this service. 30% of
respondents stated that the council should stop providing this service.

7.2.4 Pest control

Respondents were asked if they thought the council were best placed to deliver the pest
control service.

2620 people responded to this question.

1600
1400
1200 1097
1000 -
800 -+
600 -
400 -
200 -+
0 -
Yes the council should provide this No the council is not best placed to
service (42%) provide this service (58%)
&
S
16 >

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

58% of respondents stated that they did not think the council were best placed to deliver
pest control services. However 42% of respondents did think that the council should deliver
pest control services.

Respondents were then asked a supplementary question about generating income.

Respondents were asked which of the current free services the council should consider
charging for if they did continue to provide post control services.

2393 people responded to this question.
Respondents were able to select multiple ‘pests’.

600 560
528
500 -+
400 - 385
300 -+
200 -
100
0 = T T T 1
Rats (19%) Mice (19%) Cockroaches Bedbugs (24%) Should be free
(22%) (16%)

The most popular response was charge for bedbugs (24%) followed by cockroaches (22%)
and the mice and rats equally (19%).

16% of those who responded to this question stated that the service should continue to be
free to residents.

7.2.5 Town Centre events

Respondents were informed of the support provided for Town Centre events as part of the
special regeneration fund. Respondents were asked if the council should continue to fund
these events or save the money (£23k)

A total of 2445 people responded to this question.

13

W
é@b
g

2
%
17 2
BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1400 1324

1200 1121
1000 -
800 -
600 -
400 -
200 -
0

Yes it is very important (46%) No it is not important at all (54%)

54% of respondents stated that these events are not important and should not be funded.
46% of respondents stated that the councils should continue to find these events.

7.2.6 Strategic events

Respondents were informed of the current funding provided to support strategic events
such as the Elvis Festival and Senior Open Golf Championships. Respondents were given
three options to choose from in relation to these events and the potential reduction in
funding of £40k.

2981 people responded to this question.

1400
1178
1200
1000 350
800
600 -
400 -
200 -
0 |
Stop delivering support Stop supporting all other Remove all funding for
services for the Elvis  strategic events and only strategic events (40%)
Festival (32%) support the Elvis Festival
(28%)

The majority of respondents (40%) stated that all funding should be removed for strategic
events. 32% stated that the council should stop delivering support for the Elvis festival and
28% stated that the council should stop providing funding for all other strategic events and
only fund the Elvis Festival.

18 E‘v

) - Pa RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.2.7 Pop-up Business School

Respondents were informed of the current funding provided for the Pop-up Business
School. Respondents were asked if the council should continue to provide this funding
(E12.5K).

A total of 2973 people responded to this question.

2000

1800 1732

1600 -

1400 -

1241

1200 -

1000 -

800 -

600 -

400 -

200 -

0 i

Continue funding Pop-up Business Remove this funding (42%)
School (58%)

58% of respondents stated that the council should continue to fund the Pop-up Business
School. 42% stated that the funding should be removed.

7.2.8 Bridgend Business Forum

Respondents were given information in relation to Bridgend Business Forum and were
asked if the council should continue to provide £35k per year towards BBF.

2788 people provided a response to this question.

Wi
& >

RIDGEND

' | gerey-bong

19

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

2009

779
0 :-

Continue to fund Bridgend Business Remove all funding for Bridgend

Forum (28%)

i

Business Forum (72%)

The majority of respondents (72%) stated that the council should save £35k per year by
removing the funding for Bridgend Business Forum. 28% of respondents stated that this
funding should continue.

7.2.9 Homelessness

Respondents were informed about the current homelessness provision in Bridgend County
Borough, and were asked if, in order to make savings of £100k the service should be

reconfigured.

2851 people provided a response to this question.

1600

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

0

1546

1305

i

No: continue to fund this service and Yes: Review and reconfigure the service

make savings elsewhere (54%)

1

to save £100k (46%)

54% of respondents stated that the council should continue to fund this service. 46% of
respondents a stated that the council should review and reconfigure this service in order to
save £100k per year.

"\Q‘b\“ -
H
2
%
20 >
BF

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.2.10 Adult community learning

Bridgend County Borough Council currently provide £133k per year to Adult Community

Learning.

Respondents were asked to if the council should continue to provide this funding, reduce
the funding to save £65k per year or remove all funding.

A total of 3154 people provided a response to this question.

2000
1800
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200
0

1815

Stop providing Adult  Reduce the service i.e. less Continue to fund Adult
Community Learning (20%) courses (58%) Community Learning (22%)

58% of respondents stated that the council should reduce the service to save £65k per
year, this was followed by 22% of respondents who stated that the council should continue
to fund adult community learning. 20% of respondents stated that the council should
remove all funding to adult community learning.

7.2.11 Telecare and mobile response services

Respondents were given a description of telecare and mobile response services and asked
if this should be available to all residents to purchase. Respondents were informed that the
average monthly cost for the service would be approximately £40.

A total of 2796 people responded to this question.

13

W
é@b
g

2
%
21 >
BRIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1800

1589

1600

1400

1200

1000

800

600
400

200

Yes (57%) No (20%) Unsure (23%)

57% of respondents stated that this service should be available to purchase. 20% said no
and 23% were unsure.

7.2.12 Community hubs

Respondents were provided with information about Community Hubs and the development
of the day services model.

Respondents were asked if they would support the model of more localised day services
through the development of Community Hubs in four areas across the county borough.

A total of 2719 people responded to this question.

1800 -

1600 -

1400 -

1200 -
1000 -

800 -

600 -
400 -
200 -

o -

w
(@}
[y

Yes (69%) No (11%) Unsure (20%)

69% of respondents stated that they supported the model of more localised day services.
11% said that they did not support this and 20% were unsure.

Wi
& :

RIDGEND

' | gerey-bong

22

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.2.13 Escorts on school taxis or minibuses

Respondents were informed that Bridgend County Borough Council provides school and
college transport for more than 6,000 pupils and students across the borough costing
£5.145 million.

Respondents were asked for their views on the provision of pupils who are taken to school
in taxis and minibuses. Currently taxis and minibuses have an escort as well as the driver.

Respondents were asked if they agreed with the proposal to remove the escort on vehicles
where there are less than eight pupils. This would save around £35k per year.

A total of 2849 people provided a response to this question.

1800

1592

1600 -

1400 -

1200

1000 -

800 -

600 -

400 - 338

200 -

Yes (56%) No (32%) Unsure (12%)

56% of respondents stated ‘yes’ the council should make this saving. 32% stated that they
did not agree with the proposal and 12% were unsure.

7.2.14 Pupils with additional learning needs

Respondents were given information how the council provide support to children with
additional learning needs to access the curriculum.

In order to save £144k per year the council could assign the funding directly to primary
schools.

Respondents were asked if the council should reduce the budget and delegate funding to
primary schools to appoint their own support staff.

A total of 2778 people responded to this question.

23

) - Pa RIDGEND

' | gerey-bong

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1800

1600 -

1400 -

1200 -

1000 -

800 -

600 -

400 -

200 -

1598

O
o
B

Yes (57%) No (33%) Unsure (10%)

57% of respondents agrees with this proposal. 33% did not agree with the proposal and
10% stated that they were unsure.

7.2.15 Cognition and learning services

Respondents were given information on the cognition and learning services, and asked if
they agreed with the proposal to review the funding and save £61k per year by training staff
in schools to provide some of these services.

A total of 3121 people responded to this question.

1800
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200
0

1631

1490

Continue funding Cognition and Learning Reduce funding and upskill teachers in
services (52%) schools (48%)

52% of respondents stated that the council should continue to fund the cognition and
learning service. 48% of respondents stated that the council should save £61k per year by
training staff in schools to provide some of these services.

"\Q\b\\t -
-
b
24 3
B

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.2.16 Digital services / contacting the council

Respondents were given information about how the council have already saved money
though digitalising some of its services. Respondents were provided with the current costs
of supporting residents face to face, by telephone and online.

Respondents were asked if they would support a move to less face to face interactions and
more online interactions in order to save approximately £130k per year.

A total of 3095 people responded to this question.

2500
2179
2000 -
1500 -
1000 -
602

500 + 314

0 4

Yes (70%) No (20%) Unsure (10%)

70% of respondents stated that in order to save £130k per year they would support a move
to less face to face interactions. 20% stated that they would not and 10% were unsure.

Respondents were then asked:

To build on the success of the digitalisation of services, what services or information would
you like to see available online.

564 comments were received. All comments were themed and these are detailed in the
table below:

Theme No.
As many services as possible/all services 123
Not everyone can access or understand online services 61
Waste, recycling and street cleaning to include information, contacts and

online reporting for issues and complaints 54
What services are provided by the council and how the council works 41
Live online chat 36
Income/expenditure information including salaries of councillors and staff 33
Improve current online services 32
Events, community groups, community information 29

) ~ M) 25 -E%(IDL.I:\D

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Council tax information/payments/email rather than post 25
More automated payments, online reporting tools and appointment booking 25
Housing options/information/contacts 17
Schools - contacts, admission, school meals 17
Contact details of departments/services 16
Blue badge applications/renewals 10
Better response is needed to emails and messages 9
Pest control service 8
Planning applications information/appointments/payments 8
Roads/highways information and online reporting function 7
Registry services 4
Complaints 4
Social services contacts and referral 3
Licensing information and applications 2

The most common responses were as many services as possible/all services (123)
followed by not everyone can access or understand online services (61) and then waste,
recycling and street cleaning to include information, contacts and online reporting for issues
and complaints (54).

7.2.17 Civic Office appointments

Respondents were asked whether the Customer Services Department in Civic Offices
(which is currently run as a drop in) should move to an appointment based system.

A total of 2537 people responded to this question.

1600 1497

1400 -

1200 -

1000 -

800 -

600 -

400 -

200 -~

O 4
Yes (59%) No (28%) Unsure (13%)

59% of respondents stated that they agreed with this proposal, 28% did not agree with the
proposal and 13% were unsure.

Wi
& :>

RIDGEND

' | gerey-bong

26

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7.2.18 Council tax increases

Respondents were provided with information on the current funding generated through
council tax and were asked to select the amount that they would be prepared to pay in
addition to their current charge.

Respondents were asked to select from the following amounts (based on an average band
D property):

6.5% (£1.84);
7.5% (£2.12);
8.5% (£2.40);
9.5% (£2.69);
10.5% (£2.97);
11.5% (£3.25).

2939 people provided a response to this question.

2000 1899

1800
1600

1400
1200
1000

800
600

400 300

s
0 —

6. 596(6496) 7. 596(1196) 8.5% (9%) 9 5% (4%) 10.5% (2%) 11.5% (10%)

64% of respondents were prepared to pay an additional 6.5% council tax;
11% of respondents were prepared to pay an additional 7.5% council tax;
9% of respondents were prepared to pay an additional 8.5% council tax;
4% of respondents were prepared to pay an additional 9.5% council tax;
2% of respondents were prepared to pay an additional 10.5% council tax;
10% of respondents were prepared to pay an additional 11.5% council tax.

The responses to the question about council tax increases also have been analysed by
demographic information (age and employment status).

Council tax and age

When comparing age with response to the amount of council tax a respondent was
prepared to pay we found:

27

) - Pa RIDGEND

' | gerey-bong

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

All ages groups chose 6.5% as their most popular response;

Under 18 year olds chose 6.5% and then 8.5% and 9.5% equally;

75+ chose 6.5% followed by 7.5% and then 9.5% and 11.5 equally;

All other age groups chose 6.5%, followed by 7.5% and then 8.5%;

There was not a significant difference in the responses to this question by age.

Council tax and employment status

When comparing employment status with response to the amount of council tax a
respondent was prepared to pay we found:

e All respondents chose 6.5% as their most popular response;

e Respondents who identified themselves as full time employed chose 6.5% followed
by 7.5% and then 8.5%;

e Respondents who identified themselves as part time employed chose 6.5% followed
by 7.5% and then £11.5%;

e Respondents who identified themselves as self-employed chose 6.5% followed by
8.5% and then 7.5%;

e Respondents who identified themselves as unemployed/looking for work chose 6.5%
followed by 7.5% and then 8.5%;

e Respondents who identified themselves as full time employed chose 6.5% followed
by £7.5% and then 8.5%;

e Respondents who identified themselves as a carer chose 6.5% followed by 7.5%
and then £8.5%;

e There was not a significant difference in the responses to this question by
employment status.

In addition to the question about council tax increases respondents were also informed that
if council tax went up by an additional 13.6% council tax this would increase the council’s
annual budget by £10.7 million and no savings would need to be made to any council
services for the next financial year.

Respondents were asked if they would be willing to pay an increase in council tax of
13.6% so that no council services would need to be cut in 2020/21.

2955 people provided a response to this question.

W

RIDGEND

@ws"l‘"m

28

J

)

D
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

3000
2448

2500

2000

1500

1000
507

0 - \

Yes | would be willing to pay significantly  No | would not be willing to pay an
more (17%) increase of 13.6% council tax (83%)

17% of respondents stated that they would be willing to pay the additional council tax to
protect all services. 83% of respondents stated that they would not be willing to pay the
additional 13.6% council tax.

The responses to those who stated that they would be willing to pay an additional 13.6%
council tax have been analysed by demographics information (age and employment status).

70 140 129
12
60 0
100
50 80 73
40 60
40 34
30
20 16 11 5 6 11
20
O 4
P NP N N S A N I N A\ S A\ SN
old oo ooy olod oo olod oo oo
10 NIRRT IR
2> NN DT & 6\ ST A
& ((g, @e L &P
0 RO IS AR
NIRRT O 2 X
X (<0 > Q,((\ 5§ & QO
be(\ , ,Q {\/ \(\QO Q§
L L & &
N @ o <
'\c'b e Q\o Q\O\\ \\ ]
<
Qb@ & & \o*e
N N
e
0(\

324 respondents said that they would be willing to pay an additional 13.6% council tax and
gave their age.

The three most popular age groups to have said yes are 35-44, followed by 55-64 and then
25-34.

Wi
& >
H
E
=
%

.V

B

29

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

285 respondents said that they would be willing to pay an additional 13.6% council tax and
gave their employment status.

The most common groups to say that they would be willing to pay an additional 13.6%
council tax were full time employed, followed by retired and then part time employed.

7.2.19 Capital expenditure

Respondents were informed that as part of identifying the council budget, funds are
allocated for capital expenditure.

Respondents were informed that the 2019-20 capital budget is currently £54.5 million,
which is made up of BCBC, Welsh Government and external grant funding.

Respondents were asked where they would choose to prioritise spending. They were able
to select three from the following:

Regeneration projects;
Pavilions;

Roads;

Parks and play areas;
Schools;

Sea defences;

Renewable energy schemes.

1800 1691

1611

1600
1400
1180

1200

1000

800

600

400 320

0w ~

0 ‘

Regeneration Pavilions (5% Roads (25%) Parks and pIay Schools (24%) Sea defences Renewable
projects (17%) areas (13%) (5%) energy
schemes (11%)

The most popular areas for capital expenditure were roads (25%) followed by schools
(24%) and then regeneration projects (17%).

7.2.20 Generating income

Respondents were given details of how the council currently generate income, including
charging for green waste collection, car parking and rental income.

Wi
& >

RIDGEND

' | gerey-bong

30

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Respondents were given details of how other local authorities have found ways to generate
income and were asked if they thought commercial ventures should be considered by
BCBC in order to fund and protect front line services.

2771 people provided a response to this question.

1800

1600 -

1400 -

1200 -

1000 -

800 -

600 - 546

400 -

200 -

Yes (61%) No (20%) Unsure (19%)

61% of respondents stated that the council should look at commercial investments to fund
and protect front line services. 20% of respondents stated no to this question and 19% were
unsure.

Respondents were subsequently asked:

If the council did decide to invest in commercial ventures, where do you think we should
focus our investments? Respondents could choose:

e Within Bridgend County only;
e Within Bridgend County and surrounding areas;
e Prioritise potential financial returns over location.

2471 people provided a response to this question.

H
2
L+
%
A
B

31

www.bridgend.gov.uk

W

RIDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

1200

1014

1000

800 -

534

600 -

400 -

200 -

Within Bridgend County Within Bridgend County Prioritise potential
only (41%) and surrounding financial returns over
counties (22%) location (37%)

41% of respondents stated that investments should be within Bridgend County only, 37%
stated that the councils should prioritise financial returns over location and 22% stated that
investments should be within Bridgend County and surrounding areas.

7.2.21 Commercial investments

Information was provided on how other local authorities have started to make commercial
investments.

Respondents were asked if they though Bridgend County Borough Council should
investigate the possibility of hotel investments to generate income.

2498 people provided a response to this question.

1400

1184
1200

1000 -

800 -

600 -

400 -

200 -

Yes (47%) No (31%) Unsure (22%)

47% of respondents stated that the council should investigate the possibility of hotel
investments. 31% stated no and 22% were unsure.

32

www.bridgend.gov.uk

H
2
L+
%
A
B

W

RIDGEND



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Respondents were also asked if they though Bridgend County Borough Council should
investigate the possibility of generating income by providing energy to its residents.

2514 people provided a response to this question.

1600 1512

1400 -

1200 -

1000 -

800 -

600 -

400 -

200 -

Yes (60%) No (24%) Unsure (16%)

60% of respondents stated that the council should investigate the possibility of generating
income by providing energy to its residents. 24% said no to this question and 16% were
unsure.

7.2.22 Long term priorities

Respondents were informed that the council has experienced year and year reductions in
funding while there is an increased demand on services.

Respondents were asked to give their views on when looking at the longer term at the
delivery of council services and making the best use of resources how would they prioritise
long term budget decisions.

Respondents were asked to select from the following options:

Reduce all levels of service;

Only focus on services that support the most vulnerable in communities;
Focus on services that benefits everyone in the borough;

Charge residents for more services instead of losing them completely;
Wherever we are able, charge for services and move to a full cost recovery
model;

Use online facilities where possible;

e Encourage citizens to take more responsibility i.e. litter, graffiti etc.;

e Make efficiencies in-house i.e. review staffing levels, mileage allowances etc.;

é@%‘“ -
H :>
£
T
33 >
BF

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

They could select all that they felt were relevant.

1
800 1607
1600 1461
1461 1392
1400 1266
1200
1000
800 681
600
400
200 181
o | |
Reduce all Focus on Focus on Charge for Charge for Use online  Encourage Make
levels of  services that services that more servicesand facilities citizensto  efficiencies
service (2%) supportthe  benefits services move to a where take more in-housei.e.
most everyone  instead of full cost possible responsibility  review
vulnerable (16%) losing them  recovery (18%) i.e. litter, staffing
(9%) completely model (6%) graffitietc  levels etc
(11%) (18%) (20%)

The options most commonly selected were make efficiencies in house (20%) followed by
encourage citizens to take more responsibility and use online facilities where possible (both
18%) and then focus on services that benefits everyone (16%).

7.2.23 Please tell us anything we have missed and your ideas on what we

should focus on when thinking about our long-term budgets.

Respondents were asked if they felt that there was anything that had been missed and to
give ideas on what the council should focus on when thinking about long term budgets.

894 comments were received. These comments were themed and are presented in the

table below:
Theme No.
Reduce councillors/staff/expenses 165
Stop increasing council tax 90
Make 'in-house' efficiencies (in services, productivity, contracts etc.) 80
Focus support on vulnerable people 59
Focus on visible services (i.e. street cleaning, grass cutting, roads) 56
Better engagement with TCCs/other authorities/communities 52
Invest in schools/ school transport 42
Invest in town centres/ support businesses 40
Generate income (i.e. sell land, increase fines, tourism) 38
Provide services that benefit everyone 35

34 5’

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Focus on environmental impacts 27
Stop supporting non tax payers/unemployed/homeless/prisoners 24
Charge residents for more services 24
Better communication with residents on budget/services 22
Invest in sports/Pitches/CAT transfers 19
Reduce empty properties/ new build houses 19
Support residents to take more responsibility 17
CCTV/ Community safety is important 16
Stop funding Cardiff city deal 15
Invest in play parks 12
More/better transport for residents 12
Reduce grass cutting/ Develop 'meadows' 10
Do not undertake commercial ventures 9
Ask Welsh Government for more funding 4
Invest in Welsh language services/schools 4
Undertake commercial ventures 3

The majority of the responses related to reduce councillors/staff/expenses (165) followed by
stop increasing council tax (90) and then make 'in-house’ efficiencies (80).

7.2.24 Do you have any further comments that you would like to make on
the budget proposals for 2020/21?

Finally, respondents were asked if they had any further comments that they would like to
make on the budget proposals. These comments as well as comments received in events
such as the BAVO event, Citizens’ Panel events and the elected member’s workshop were
themed. Overall 612 comments were received and are presented in the table below:

Theme No.
Do not increase council tax/keep rates low 126
Reduce councillors/staff/expenses 81
Make 'in-house' efficiencies (in services, productivity, contracts etc) 61
Focus on visible services (i.e. street cleaning, grass cutting, roads) 47
Focus support on vulnerable people 35
Try and work differently/ creatively/ with partners 33
Better communication with residents on budget/services 32
Generate more income 28
Invest in schools 22
Consultation feedback/process (questions about) 20
Stop supporting non tax payers/unemployed/homeless/prisoners 17
Involve residents in decisions 16
Focus on statutory services 14
Ask Welsh Government for more money 12
Invest in town centres/ support businesses 12
Charge for more services 10
35

RIDGEND

J

)

D

®
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

These are difficult decisions to make

Focus on environmental impacts

Stop the Cardiff City Deal funding

CCTV and community safety is important
Invest sports/pitches

Support residents to take more responsibility

O |O) |00 |00 | (O

The majority of the comments related to do not increase council tax/keep rates low (126)
followed by reduce councillors/staff/expenses (81) and then make 'in-house’ efficiencies
(61).

8. Social media responses

During the consultation period there were 1517 interactions on our social media channels,
147 of which were in response to the social media Q&A.

The comments have been themed and are detailed in the table below, some comments
contained multiple themes:

Theme No.
Don’t increase council tax by 13.6% 242
We pay more council tax yet receive less services 203
Cut council staff/wages/expenses/pensions 200
Requests for more information on annual accounts and budget reductions 116
Cut councillors/wages/expenses 99
Council should challenge central government funding cuts 88
Issues with recycling and waste service 73
Unhappy with proposals 65
Don't listen to the public /survey won’t make a difference 61
Question regarding the consultation questions/ process 54
Close down / merge the council 52
Don’t pay into the Cardiff City deal 48
Don't use contractors / consultants 47
Provide more funding for street cleaning 40
Make more internal efficiencies 38
Stop building new houses 36
Comments and questions about Q&A 35
Cuts could cause future problems 29
CCTV shouldn’t be a priority 21
More funding for CCTV 18
Highways issues 16
Don’t increase sports pitch fees 16
Make savings elsewhere / council wasting money 14
Pay homeless or get prisoners to do jobs 14
Sharing consultation with others 26
Ideas for generating money 13
Need for independent review 11
36

RIDGEND

J

)

D

N
)
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Stop maintaining council offices / bridge outside Civic

[ —
[ —

Blaming Brexit for cuts

=
o

Only increase tax of those on higher wages

Town council wasting money (flower watering)

Don’t fund Waterton cycle / foot path

Don’t have a Prize draw

Cost of Welsh Language Standards

School transport issues

Review staff sickness policy

Where does the money from business rates go?

Cuts mean families using Food banks

Praise for recent council projects

Provide more funding for schools

Agree with less funding for street cleaning

Don’t cut grass to save money

Adult learning not a priority

CF31 Bid question

Will vulnerable groups be protected from funding cuts?

|
R RPRFRPNWWWW OO |N|0|O|O|O

The majority of the comments related to do not increase council tax by 13.6% (242)
followed by we pay more council tax yet receive less services (203) and then cut council

staff/wages/expenses/pensions (200).

9. Town and Community Council meetings

The Consultation and Engagement Team attended 19 Town and Community Council
meetings. Comments that were made during the meetings were noted and are detailed in the

table below:

Theme No.
Question regarding the consultation questions/ process 25
Continual rises in council tax and cuts 19
Working differently i.e. reconfiguring services, working with community

volunteers etc. 18
TCC will actively share/promote consultation 18
Cuts have already had negative impact on people/communities 17
TCC face additional pressures from BCBC budget cuts 14
Bridgend town centre needs improvements 11
More information on BCBC fund/spend 10
Education and social services should be protected 8
Communities do/should fund their own events/festivals 8
Focus on quality of service not quantity 8
Community recycling centres and cleanliness of public areas is important 6
Public doesn’t know difference between the role of TCCs and BCBC 5
People would prefer to pay than lose a service 2

37

www.bridgend.gov.uk

W
§

RIDGEND

chﬁ"i‘ ny

(=1



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

The most common comments were about a specific question within the consultation or the
consultation process (25) followed by comments about continual rises in council tax and cuts
(19) and then about working differently (18).

10. Conclusion

10.1 Budget proposals — savings

The proposals to make savings that were supported by respondents were:

Close Community Recycling Centres for one day per week each (70%);

The council is not best placed to provide pest control services (58%);

Remove funding for town centre events (54%);

Remove funding for all strategic events (40%) and removed funding for Elvis Festival
(32%);

Remove funding for Bridgend Business Forum (72%);

Reduce the funding for Adult Community Learning to save £65k (58%);

Support for a model of localised day services through the development of Community
Hubs (69%);

Remove escorts from school transport where there are less than eight pupils (56%);
Delegate funding to primary schools for pupils with additional learning needs (57%);
Move to less face to face interactions within the Customer Services Contact Centre
within Civic Offices (70%));

Move to an appointment based system in the Customer Services Contact Centre
(59%).

The proposals that were not supported by respondents were:

Move to a reactive street cleaning service (63%);

Removal of funding for CCTV (70%);

Removal of funding for Pop-up Business School (58%);

Reconfiguration of the homelessness service (54%);

Delegation of money for cognition and learning services to schools (52%).

10.2 Budget proposals - increasing revenue

When asked about increasing revenue respondents supported:

The purchase of telecare services by residents across the county borough (57%);
The council considering commercial ventures to fund and protect front line services
(61%);

The council should consider the possibility of hotel investments to generate income
(47%);

The council should consider the possibility of providing energy to its residents to
generate income (60%).

10.3 Budget proposals - council tax increases

W

RIDGEND

@ws"l‘"m

38

)
D
N
o |

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

e 64% of respondents stated that they would be prepared to pay an additional 6.5%
council tax (this was the lowest amount that could be chosen);

e 83% of respondents were not willing to pay an additional 13.6% council tax in order
to protect all services for 12 months.

10.4 Summary

A sample of 3,417 survey completions is robust and is subject to a maximum standard error
of +1.66% at the 95% confidence level. Therefore, we can be 95% confident that responses
are representative of those that would be given by the total adult population, to within
+1.66% of the percentages reported.

This means that if the total adult population of Bridgend had taken part in the survey and a
statistic of 50% was observed, we can be 95% confident that the actual figure lies between
48.34% and 51.66%.

The consultation document was available in a variety of formats: standard; easy-read; large
print and youth in Welsh and English. Respondents were able to select online or paper
surveys in all formats.

The response to the consultation demonstrated a significant increase on previous years, with
engagement across a range of community groups, schools and organisations.

A total of 3417 survey responses were received. 1982 online surveys were received, 282
paper surveys and 1153 surveys were completed during interactive sessions. This
demonstrates an 18% increase on last year’s survey completions.

A particular increase can be noted in youth survey completions, where there is a 50%
increase compared to last year.

The number of paper surveys received decreased by 44% (282 paper surveys in 2019
compared to 507 in 2018).

Online survey completions have increased by 32% (1982 online completions in 2019
compared to 1491 in 2018).

The consultation and engagement team attended 58 events, meetings and workshops during
the live period resulting in 1987 face to face interactions with people in events.

After completion of the consultation 972 people told us that they wanted to be kept up to
date with the consultation outcome.

1036 people provided their details to enter the prize draw.

In previous years we have asked respondents to provide their details if they wanted to sign
up to the Citizens’ Panel after completion of the survey. This year respondents were taken to
the Citizens’ Panel landing page on the BCBC website after completion of the survey. During
the live period 94 people signed up to become a Citizens’ Panel member.

An Equality Impact Assessment will be carried out in order to assess the impact of these
proposals.

RIDGEND

chﬁ"i‘ ny

39

J

)

D

N
(=1

www.bridgend.gov.uk



http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

This report is to be shared with Cabinet in order to inform the MTFS for 2020/21 and further
into 2020-2023.

0@.\:.
I~
H
3
40 =
) Lo A /] B

RIDGEND

www.bridgend.gov.uk


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

Agenda Item 7

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
17 DECEMBER 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT
ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS GRANT
1.  Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to seek approval from Cabinet to enter into an agreement
with Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council (“RCT”), the County Council of the City
and County of Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and the Vale of Glamorgan
County Borough Council regarding the Additional Learning Needs Transformation Grant
2019/20.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/other corporate priorities
1.2 The report links to the following improvement priorities in the Corporate Plan:

e Supporting a successful economy - we will take steps to make the county a
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to ensure
that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and ambitions of
all people in the county.

¢ Helping people to be more self-reliant — we will take early steps to reduce or
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and its
services.

¢ Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical,
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible and
support the development of resources throughout the community that can help
deliver the Council’s priorities.

3. Background

1.3  The Additional Learning Needs Transformation Grant 2019/20 (“ALN Grant”) is a Welsh
Government grant funded scheme to support the delivery of the additional learning
needs transformation programme, including the preparation for and management of the
implementation of the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act
2019 (“ALNET Act”).

3.2 RCT, acting as Lead Authority, submitted an application to Welsh Government for the
ALN Grant on behalf of the council, the County Council of the City and County of
Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and the Vale of Glamorgan County
Borough Council and third party providers (who are further education sector and local
health boards in the regions of the councils).

Page 145



3.3

3.4

The purpose of the ALN Grant is to support local authorities to develop and promote
innovative, multi-agency and cross-sector working practices to support learners with
additional learning needs (ALN) in readiness for the implementation of the ALNET Act

The ALN Grant must be used to support partnerships between local authorities and
other agencies involved in supporting learners with ALN such as schools, further
education institutes, early years providers, specialist post-16 providers, local health
boards and the third sector.

4. Current situation/proposal

4.1

4.2

4.3

7.1

The application for ALN Grant was successful and an award of funding for up to
£949,656.00 was made to RCT as Lead Authority which will be allocated to each
Council in accordance with the ALN Transformation Plan.

As Lead Authority, RCT is required to accept the terms and conditions of the ALN Grant
as set out in the offer letter from Welsh Government. In order to deliver the project and
ensure compliance with the terms and conditions set out in the offer letter, RCT requires
the Council, along with the 3 other local authorities listed at paragraph 3.2, to enter into
an agreement in relation to this ALN Grant. This agreement shall set out the roles and
responsibilities of the councils and how the funding shall be allocated.

The Inclusion Service leads from each local authority meet on a monthly basis with the
ALN Transformation Lead at the Transformation Board. During this meeting, the ALN
Implementation Plan and grant spend is monitored.

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules
There is no impact on the Council’s policy framework or procedure rules

Equality Impact Assessment

It is considered that there will be no negative impacts from this report.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

A Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 assessment has been completed.
A summary of the implications from the assessment relating to the five ways of working is
as follows:

Long-term

Supports the development of training needs and preparation for the implementation of
the ALNET Act.

Prevention

The focus of the ALNET Act is meeting needs of learners with ALN at an early stage and
preventing situations escalating resulting in needs not being met.

Integration

Page 146



8.1

8.2

9.1

9.1.1

9.1.2

The integration of all stakeholders is promoted with the introduction of the ALNET Act.
Collaboration

The ALNET Act and the preparation of its introduction promotes places an emphasis on
collaboration in order to achieve a person-centered approach.

Involvement

There is diversity concerning the involvement of stakeholders such as schools,
parents/carers, Central South Consortium, local health, further education institutes,
early years providers and specialist post-16 providers.

Financial implications

The total value of the grant is £949,656 however the amount available to local
authorities is £824,656 as there is a retained element of £125,000 for the employment
of the regional ALN Transformation Lead and associated costs and administration and
finance support. This relates to the period 1 April 2019 to 31March 2020. Bridgend
County Borough Council could expect to receive £70,350.

The funding is awarded to Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council as the
designated lead authority and on behalf of the Central South Region which also
includes Bridgend County Borough Council, Cardiff County Borough Council, Vale of
Glamorgan County Borough Council and Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council.

Recommendation

It is recommended that Cabinet:

Approves the Council entering into the agreement with RCT, the County Council of the
City and County of Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council and the Vale of
Glamorgan County Borough Council;

Delegate authority to the Corporate Director Education and Family Support in

consultation with the Section 151 Officer and Head of Legal and Regulatory Services to
negotiate and agree the terms of the agreement and enter into the agreement.

Lindsay Harvey
Corporate Director Education and Family Support

Contact Officer: Michelle Hatcher

Telephone: (01656) 815258

E-mail: michelle.hatcher@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address  Education and Family Support Directorate

Page 147



Bridgend County Borough Council
Civic Offices

Angel Street

Bridgend

CF31 4WB

Background Documents:

ALN Transformation Plan

Page 148



Agenda Iltem 8

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
17 DECEMBER 2019

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

LICENSING ACT 2003
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY AND CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

1. Purpose of report

1.1 To provide Cabinet with the draft Statement of Licensing Policy, and proposed
Cumulative Impact Assessment (Bridgend Town Centre) for noting. The approval
of the Statement of Licensing Policy and Cumulative Impact Assessment is a
Council function.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities

2.1 There is no direct link to the Corporate Improvement Plan / Other Corporate Priority.
Approval to publish the Statement of Licensing Policy and/or a Cumulative Impact
Assessment is a Council function and required so that the authority may effectively
discharge its functions under the Licensing Act 2003.

3. Background

3.1 At their meeting on 6 November 2019, the Licensing Act 2003 Committee received
a report for noting relating to the publication of the Council’s Statement of Licensing
Policy for the period 2019 to 2024. The policy review also included a request from
the South Wales Police to retain the special Cumulative Impact Policy which applies
to the grant and variation of licences in Bridgend Town Centre. The report outlined
that a statutory and public consultation had been undertaken as part of the review of
the Statement of Licensing Policy.

3.2  The consultation process took the form of an online public consultation between 17
June 2019 and 9 September 2019. In accordance with the statutory provisions, the
consultation included the Responsible Authorities, elected Members, Town and
Community Councils, Town Centre Manager, Public Services Board, and the British
Institute for Innkeeping (BIl). Notification of the consultation was also sent to two
firms of solicitors who represent licensing clients, and who had previously asked to
be kept informed of policy reviews.

4. Current situation/proposal
4.1 Draft Statement of Licensing Policy

The Council, as licensing authority regulates a wide range of licensed premises
including pubs, registered members’s clubs, off-licences and late night takeaways.

Page 149



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The Policy sets out how the Council, as licensing authority intends to exercise its
functions and the general approach to making licensing decisions.

There were no representations made in respect of the overarching draft Statement
of Licensing Policy for 2019-2024 which is attached at Appendix A.

Request to retain a Cumulative Impact Policy for Bridgend Town Centre

Statements of Licensing policy can be tailored to address specific concerns about
the impact of licensed premises. The fundamental concerns for the licensing
authority will be the four licensing objectives set out in the Licensing Act 2003, and
the Council must carry out its functions with a view to promoting these objectives:

The prevention of Crime and Disorder
The prevention of Public Nuisance
Public Safety

The protection of Children from Harm

o O O O

In terms of preventing crime and disorder, Cumulative Impact Assessments (CIA)
are a measure introduced under the Police and Crime Act 2017 to enable licensing
authorities to undertake an assessment of the cumulative effect of a large number
of licensed premises in a particular area. The CIA looks at crime and disorder,
public nuisance, littering and other negative impacts on particular areas in order to
assess whether the licensing authority should adopt a special policy to limit
the number of new premises or variations to existing premises.

A Cumulative Impact Policy has been in place in Bridgend Town Centre since
2005. The current policy is that there is a presumption of refusal for applications
for the grant and major variation of premises licences and club premises
certificates (where relevant representations are received) unless the applicant
can demonstrate that the premises will not add to the negative cumulative impact
on the town centre.

The CIA is now a separate document which should be reviewed by the licensing
authority every three years. There must be an evidential basis for completing
and publishing a Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA). The request from the
South Wales Police to undertake a CIA for Bridgend Town Centre is attached at
Appendix B. A draft CIA is attached at Appendix C and reflects the responses
submitted during the public consultation.

The draft CIA seeks to retain the special policy in respect of future applications
within Derwen Road, Market Street, Wyndham Street, and Nolton Street (from its
junction with Ewenny Road, to its junction with Merthyr Mawr Road, but not the area
between Merthyr Mawr Road and the junction with Court Road Bridgend).

The view of the South Wales Police is that:

“It remains that there is still a saturation of licensed premises in this relatively small
geographical area, within this area there are two premises licensed until 4am and
one premise licensed until 4.30am which provides a high level of footfall at this early
hour.”

Page 150



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

93% of respondents stated that the Council should retain the Cumulative Impact
Policy for Bridgend Town Centre. The responses also highlighted a range of concerns
ranging from Anti-Social Behaviour to Violent Behaviour and the concentration of
drinkers.

The top issues of concern by response in the town centre:

. Anti social behaviour 92%

. Littering 92%

. On street drinking 54%

. Violent behaviour 54%

. Street fouling/lavatory provision 46%
. Concentration of drinkers 46%

. Criminal activities 23%

. Street cleansing 8%

The draft CIA includes information on the number of premises within the streets
named above. No evidence was submitted that Club Premises are causing a
negative impact on the Town Centre.

The CIA includes other tools available to agencies and premises to manage
the night time economy which includes enforcement, the use of CCTV as well as
the Pubwatch Scheme supported by licensees.

In conclusion, the draft CIA has identified that the numbers and density of premises
in streets in Bridgend Town Centre is having a negative effect on the licensing
objective of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder. Responses from consultees
also highlighted littering, street fouling and street cleansing as issues with 69% of
consultees stating that this has an impact on the day and night time economies.
The South Wales Police state within their report that the Cumulative Impact Policy
(CIP) has had a direct bearing on the reduction of recorded crime within the town
centre and reported anti-social behaviour.

Having regard to the consultation responses there is evidence to support the
continuation of a Cumulative Impact Policy in the named streets in Bridgend
Town Centre. The policy aims to reduce incidents of alcohol related problems,
crime and disorder and public nuisance and to discourage an increase in the
number of late opening premises primarily concerned with the sale of alcohol
and late night refreshment. The underlying intention is to ensure that Bridgend
Town Centre is a safe environment to people visiting and working in the area.

The policy, if approved by Council, would apply to applications received for the grant
and maijor variation of premises licences, but not to Club Premises Certificates or
Temporary Event Notices. If approved, the Policy will create a rebuttable
presumption that where relevant representations have been received, the
application will be refused or subject to certain limitations unless the applicant can
successfully demonstrate that the premises will not add to the negative cumulative
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. The key issue is that the
Responsible Authorities must make representations to trigger the policy if there are
concerns that the application does not address the CIP and will add to the negative
cumulative impact being experienced in the town centre.

Page 151



412

Each decision must still be made on a case-by-case basis with a view to promoting
the licensing objectives.

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 None

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 A full Equality Impact Assessment has not been undertaken as there are no
implications in relation to age; disability; gender and transgender; race; religion or
belief and non-belief; sexual orientation on this matter.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

71 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial implications

8.1  There are no financial implications. Publication of the Statement of Licensing policy
is a statutory function and will be met from existing budget.

9. Recommendation

9.1 Cabinet is requested to note the above report which will be presented to Council on
18 December 2019.

Kelly Watson

Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

10 December 20119

Contact officer: Yvonne Witchell

Team Manager Licensing

Telephone: (01656) 643643

Email: Yvonne.Witchell@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Civic Offices, Angel St Bridgend, CF31 4WB

Background documents: Section 182 Guidance issued by the Home Office available

at https://lwww.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandume-revised-

guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

Page 152


mailto:Yvonne.Witchell@bridgend.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

APPENDIX A

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY

LICENSING ACT 2003

Kelly Watson

Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

Bridgend County Borough Council

Licensing and Registration Section, Legal and Regulatory Services
Civic Offices, Angel Street

Bridgend, CF31 4WB

The approved policy document will be available in the Welsh Language, and
in other formats on request, and at www.bridgend.gov.uk

Date of Approval:

Effective for five years from date of approval

t:\license\word reports\full committee reports 2018 2019\proposed la 2003 statement of licensing policy 2019 english.doc

Page 153



CONTENTS

To be reviewed following consultation

SECTION  SUBJECT

Foreword
1 Introduction 3
2 Profile of Bridgend County Borough Council 3
3 Scope and Limitation 5
4 Applications 6
5 Decision Making — General Policy 6
6 Cumulative Impact — Special Policy 9
7 Protection of Children from Harm 11
8 Integrating Strategies 12
9 Steps to promote the licensing objectives 13
10 Compliance 18
11 Administration, exercise and delegation of 18
functions

12 Reviews 18
13 Temporary Event Notices 19
14 Special Notes 19
15 Consultation 19
16 Appeals 20
Appendix Contact Details of Responsible Authorities 21
One

Appendix 22
Two

Page 154



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.2

2.3

INTRODUCTION

Bridgend County Borough Council is the local licensing authority with responsibility
for licensed premises under the Licensing Act 2003. This Statement of Licensing
Policy sets out the policies the licensing authority will apply when making decisions
on licensing applications and reviews. This policy has been prepared in accordance
with the Licensing Act 2003 having regard to the Statutory Guidance issued under
section 182 of the Act. The Statutory Guidance document is available at:
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/alcohol

This Statement of Licensing Policy will be kept under review and published in line
with Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003. Further consideration and review may be
required in response to changes in demographics and operating models they may
develop in response to increasing financial pressures on local government.

To avoid duplication and to ensure that information is up to date, applicants,
residents and other persons, members of the public and responsible authorities will
be directed to www.homeoffice.gov.uk for information on the licensing processes.

PROFILE OF BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH

The Council area contains a mix of urban and rural communities, and has a
population of approximately 139,178. (Source data: ONS website Table KSI01UK
2011 Census).

The main towns are Bridgend, Maesteg and Porthcawl.

The Corporate Plan for 2018-2022 identifies the following priorities:
_ Supporting a successful economy

' Helping people to become more self-reliant

"1 Making smarter use of resources

Source: www.bridgend.gov.uk Council priorities and performance pages.

This policy links to many of the corporate themes and strategies of the Council but
the ultimate duty of the Council, as the licensing authority is to promote the following
licensing objectives.

The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;

The prevention of public nuisance; and,
The protection of children from harm.

To encourage more performances of live music, the Live Music Act 2012 amended
the Licensing Act 2003 by deregulating aspects of the performance of live music so
that in certain circumstances live music is not a licensable activity. However, event
organisers and authorisation holders should visit www.homeoffice.gov.uk for further
information before staging an event.

Page 155


http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

New businesses or businesses contemplating major refurbishments are also
invited to discuss the proposals with the responsible authorities and other Council
departments prior to submitting an application.

Whenever possible, the Council will enter partnership arrangements, working closely
with the South Wales Police, South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, local
businesses, community representatives and local people in developing future
Statements of Licensing of Policy and meeting the licensing objectives. The
authority has adopted a Memorandum of Understanding and enforcement protocol
with partner responsible authorities. The licensing authority also holds responsible
authority meetings to discuss best practice, share information and to promote the
licensing objectives through a risk based and targeted approach to compliance. The
group also supports measures to assist and work with the local licensed trade and
key partner agencies. Copies of protocols can be accessed at www.bridgend.gov.uk

Organisers of local community events must be aware that the licensing authority
must have respect and regard for the concerns of local residents, and organisers
must be aware of their legal responsibilities with regard to health and safety, noise
pollution, temporary structures, pyrotechnics etc., and the sale of alcohol.
Organisers are strongly advised to contact the Council’'s Events Safety Advisory
Group for advice on planning and running an event.

SCOPE AND LIMITATION

Bridgend County Borough Council (hereinafter referred to as “the Council”) is the
licensing authority as defined in the Licensing Act 2003 (hereinafter referred to as
“the Act”).

In discharging its licensing functions, the licensing authority will promote the
licensing objectives which are as follows:

The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;

The prevention of public nuisance; and,
The protection of children from harm.

Each of the above objectives has equal importance.

The scope of the Statement of Licensing Policy covers the following licensable
activities and any that are defined in the Licensing Act 2003.

Retail sale of alcohol (including via the internet or mail order).

The wholesale of alcohol to members of the public.

The supply of alcohol to members of registered clubs.

The provision of regulated entertainment when it is performed in the presence of
an audience and is provided for the purpose, or for purposes which include the
purpose, of entertaining that audience, including performance of a play; film
exhibitions; indoor sporting events; boxing or wrestling events; live music; any
playing of recorded music; a performance of dance; entertainment of a similar

Page 156


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

description; provision of facilities for dancing and provision of facilities for making
music.

This Statement of Licensing Policy applies to all applications in respect of:

Personal licences;

Premises licences;

Club premises certificates; and
Temporary Event Notices.

The Statement of Licensing Policy sets out a general approach to the making of
licensing decisions by the licensing authority but does not seek to undermine the
right of any individual to apply under the terms of the Act for a variety of permissions
and to have any such application considered on its individual merits.

The Statement of Licensing Policy does not seek to override the right of any person
to make representations in relation to an application or seek a review of a licence or
certificate where there is provision in the Act to do so.

Nothing in this policy should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing
law or any other law may be overridden by the terms of this policy.

APPLICATIONS

An application or notice for licensing purposes will be accepted as being lawfully
made only where it contains all of the required details specified by the Act and/or
regulations. The licensing authority will, however, exercise appropriate discretion
and not reject applications where they contain minor or factual errors which can
easily be rectified.

To avoid unnecessary representations being made in respect of an application,
applicants are advised to complete all relevant parts of an application form. Some
parts of the form are mandatory and where matters have been considered, but are
deemed not to be relevant to the application, it is suggested that, for the avoidance
of doubt, the particular section is marked “not applicable”.

The grant of an application does not obviate the need for the applicant to satisfy the
requirements of any other regulatory regime or statutory requirement.

All persons preparing operating schedules, including those for temporary events,
should note that a number of publications are available to assist in the planning of
an event. Applicants are advised to contact the bodies shown at Appendix A for
further information.

DECISION MAKING - GENERAL POLICY

In determining a licensing application, the overriding principle adopted by the
licensing authority will be that any individual has a right to apply under the terms of
the 2003 Act for a variety of permissions and has a right to have any such
application considered on its individual merits. In discharging its functions the

5

Page 157



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6.

5.7

5.8

licensing authority will have regard to this policy and the guidance issued under
Section 182 of the Licensing Act but may depart from it when there are compelling
reasons to do so and following receipt of relevant representations.

If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or
other persons, the licensing authority will grant the application, subject only to
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule and the relevant
mandatory conditions.

This policy does not override the right of any person to make representations on an
application or to seek a review of a licence or certificate where provision has been
made to do so in the 2003 Act. Nothing within this policy will override the right of an
individual to a right of appeal to the Bridgend Magistrates’ Court against the
decisions of the licensing authority.

The licensing authority will not impose any conditions unless its discretion has
been engaged following the making of relevant representations, and it has been
satisfied at a hearing, of the necessity to impose conditions due to the
representations raised. It will then only impose conditions as are necessary to
promote the licensing objectives and will not impose standard conditions or
those which duplicate other regulatory regimes as far as possible. Conditions will
be tailored to individual premises but the authority may draw on pools of conditions
where deemed appropriate to do so.

Wherever practical, officers of the licensing authority will endeavour to forward any
representations to the applicant as soon as they are received and not at the end of
the period given for making representations. The licensing authority would expect
responsible authorities to commence discussions with applicants at an early stage of
the consultation process in order to seek clarification on any points and prior to
submitting representations to the licensing authority. The authority has agreed with
responsible authorities that it will accept electronic submission of representations.

In the interests of transparency and fairness, the licensing authority will normally
make personal details of persons available as part of the hearing process unless the
person withholds permission or there are exceptional and compelling reasons why
this is necessary. Each case will be determined on its merits in consultation with the
party concerned.

Representations must be in written format and may be amplified at the
subsequent hearing or may stand in their own right. Representations may be
submitted electronically to the licensing authority via licensing@bridgend.gov.uk to
include the name and postal address of the person or persons making
representations. In the interests of transparency and fairness, the licensing authority
will normally make personal details of residents and other parties available as part
of the hearing process unless the person withholds permission or there are
exceptional and compelling reasons why this is necessary. Each case will be
determined on its merits in consultation with the person concerned.

The licensing authority maintains a register of applications received at
www.bridgend.gov.uk. The licensing authority and its officers have not adopted any

6

Page 158


mailto:licensing@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

measures for notifying persons of applications received beyond the statutory
requirements.

Prior to the determination of an application, the licensing authority will determine
whether any representation or objection is irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious. The
licensing authority may delegate this function to a Sub-Committee or officer.

The decisions taken by the licensing authority will be focused on matters within the
control of individual licensees and others granted relevant permissions. These
matters will centre on the premises and places being used for licensable activities
and the vicinity of those premises and places. In addressing this matter, the
authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at the
licensed premises on members of the public living, working or engaged in normal
activity in the area concerned. The authority does not seek to define the term
“vicinity” and will examine each case on its merits.

When carrying out its functions as a licensing authority under the 2003 Act the
licensing authority will have regard to its obligations under Section 17 of the Crime
and Disorder Act 1998.

The licensing authority is under a duty to protect the rights of residents to privacy
and family life under Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights in
accordance with the Human Rights Act 1998. At the same time, it respects the
rights of commercial organisations to operate their premises without unnecessary
restraint.

The licensing authority is mindful that, once away from the licensed premises, a
minority of consumers will behave badly and unlawfully. As outlined in the Home
Office Guidance, this policy recognises that there are other mechanisms both within
and outside the licensing regime that are available for addressing such issues.
These are listed within the Home Office guidance. Applicants are advised that
Designated Public Places Orders apply to certain parts of the County Borough and
should contact the Licensing Section for further information.

Policy in respect of determining variations of licences:

The licensing authority may not vary a licence so as to vary substantially the
premises to which it relates. The authority considers that any physical addition to
the footprint of the premises, including outside areas, where additional licensable
activities could take place would constitute a substantial variation of the premises.
Each case, however, must be examined on its merits and applicants are therefore
encouraged to discuss the proposals with the licensing authority and fire authority
prior to commissioning any works. Applicants are invited to consider whether the
application falls within the definition of Minor Variation set out in the Licensing Act
2003. When assessing applications in this category, the licensing authority will
assess each case on its merits having regard to the latest guidance issued by the
Home Office under Section 182 of the Act.

General policy in respect of licensing hours:

In line with Home Office Guidance, shops, stores and supermarkets will normally be
free to provide sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises at any times when

7

Page 159



5.16

5.17

the retail outlet is open for shopping unless there are good reasons. There are no
local policies in place and each case will be determined on its merits.

Policy in respect of assessing applications to prevent public nuisance:

The following criteria will be considered when assessing applications within the
context of preventing public nuisance:

Environmental quality;

Residential amenity;

Character of function of a particular area; and

Nature of the proposed activities to be provided at the premises.

The licensing authority will normally consider favouring applicants wishing premises
in noise sensitive areas to remain open after the regular closing time on a specified
number of occasions (such as on Bank Holidays and weekends preceding Bank
Holidays or special occasions) providing that:

The number of extensions has been included in their operating schedule and
steps to address public nuisance have been considered;

AND
The authority is given prior notice of each proposed later opening.

In the absence of relevant representations, however, the authority will grant the
application.

Applicants may also consider using the Temporary Event Notice procedure for
special occasions or Bank or special Holidays.

Where relevant representations are received, the licensing authority will consider
stricter conditions with regard to noise control in noise sensitive locations such as
residential areas.

Policy in respect of the protection of children from harm:

Decision making will not seek to limit the access of children to any premises unless it
is appropriate for the prevention of physical, moral or psychological harm to them. It
is not possible for this licensing policy to anticipate every issue of concern that could
arise in respect of children in relation to individual premises and therefore each case
will be dealt with on its merits. However, this authority believes that it is completely
unacceptable to sell alcohol to children or by proxy to children. Conditions relating
to the access of children where alcohol is sold, and which are appropriate to protect
them from harm, will be carefully considered on receipt of relevant representations.
More detailed provisions are shown in Section 7.

Page 160



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

SPECIAL POLICY: CUMULATIVE IMPACT

Cumulative impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing
objectives of a number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.

The licensing authority has published a cumulative impact assessment (CIA) to help
limit the number of types of licence applications granted in areas where there is
evidence to show that the number or density of licensed premises in the area is
having a cumulative impact and leading to problems which are undermining the
licensing objectives.

The licensing authority has had regard to the guidance published by the Home
Office before determining whether to publish a CIA and has undertaken a statutory
consultation.

Summary of Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA):

The CIA applies to Bridgend Town Centre in respect of Derwen Road, Market Street,
Wyndham Street, and Nolton Street (from its junction with Ewenny Road, to its
junction with Merthyr Mawr Road, but not the area between Merthyr Mawr Road and
the junction with Court Road Bridgend).

The South Wales Police advised the Licensing Authority that:

‘It remains that there is still a saturation of licensed premises in this relatively
small geographical area, within this area there are two premises licensed until
4am and one premise licensed until 4.30am which provides a high level of
footfall at this early hour.”

Although a small sample size, 93% of public respondents stated that the Council
should retain the Cumulative Impact Policy for Bridgend town centre. The responses
also highlighted a range of concerns from consultees of ranging from Anti-Social
Behaviour to Violent Behaviour and the concentration of drinkers. No evidence was
submitted that Club Premises are causing a negative impact on the Town Centre.

The CIA identified that the numbers and density of premises in streets in Bridgend
Town Centre is having a negative effect on the licensing objective of the
Prevention of Crime and Disorder. Responses from consultees also highlighted
littering, street fouling and street cleansing as issues with 69% of consultees stating
that this an impact on the day and night time economies. The South Wales Police
stated within their report that the Cumulative Impact Policy has had a direct bearing
on the reduction of recorded crime within the town centre and reported anti-social
behaviour.

Having regard to the consultation responses there is evidence to support the
continuation of a Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) in the named streets in Bridgend
Town Centre. The policy aims to reduce incidents of alcohol related problems,
crime and disorder and public nuisance and to discourage an increase in the
number of late opening premises primarily concerned with the sale of alcohol
and late night refreshment. The underlying intention is to ensure that Bridgend
Town Centre is a safe environment to people visiting and working in the area.

9

Page 161



6.4.6 The policy applies to applications received for the grant and major variation

6.4.7

6.4.8

6.4.9

of premises licences, but not to Club Premises Certificates or Temporary Event
Notices. When the Policy applies it creates a rebuttable presumption that where
relevant representations have been received the application will be refused or
subject to certain limitations unless the applicant can successfully demonstrate that
the premises will not add to the negative cumulative impact on one or more of the
licensing objectives.

Where relevant representations are received for a premises adjoining or in close
proximity to the Cumulative Impact Policy area, and where those representations
raise a material impact on the area then the policy will be applied if the Licensing
Authority reasonably judges that to grant the particular application would add to the
cumulative impact being suffered in the defined area.

The publication of a CIP does not relieve responsible authorities or other persons of
the need to make relevant representations where they consider it appropriate to do
so for the promotion of the licensing objectives. In addition the publication of a CIP
does not change the fundamental way that licensing decisions are made. It is
therefore open to the licensing authority to grant an application where it considers it
appropriate and where the applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule that
they would not be adding to the negative cumulative impact.

The licensing authority will expect that applicants in areas covered by a CIP give
consideration to cumulative impact issues within the operating schedule submitted.

6.4.10The licensing authority will proper regard to the different types of premises and the

7.1

7.2

differing impact they will have on the local community. However, if no relevant
representation is received, the licensing authority will grant the application in terms
which are consistent with the operating schedule.

PROVISIONS IN RESPECT OF THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM
HARM

The body designated to advise on the protection of children from harm is The
Children’s Directorate, Bridgend County Borough Council.

Where relevant representations are received, the licensing authority will consider
imposing conditions restricting the access to children to premises in circumstances
where:

Entertainment or services of an adult nature are provided;

A member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing under-age drinking (other than in
the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds
consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table
meal);

It is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;

There is a known association with drug taking or dealing;

Premises where there is a strong element of gambling;

The supply of alcohol is the exclusive or primary purpose of the premises; and

10

Page 162



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Premises where children’s entertainment is provided and there is insufficient
evidence that proper supervision of the access, egress, safety and welfare of
children is provided.

The licensing authority is also mindful that activities, such as adult entertainment,
may take place at certain times on premises but not at other times. For example,
premises may operate as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but
also provide entertainment with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to
give an exhaustive list of what amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or
sexual nature. Applicants and the responsible authorities are expected to consider
this point carefully. The licensing authority considers this issue to broadly include
topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances involving
feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or
entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

The licensing authority expects applicants to be clear in their operating schedules
about the activities and times at which the events would take place to help determine
when it is not appropriate for children to enter the premises. Consideration should
also be given to the proximity of premises to schools and youth clubs so that
applicants take appropriate steps to ensure that advertising relating to their
premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not displayed at a time when
children are likely to be near the premises.

The licensing authority will expect applicants, when preparing an operating schedule
or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be taken to protect children from
harm when on the premises.

Conditions whether offered, or imposed following the receipt of relevant
representations, should reflect the licensable activities taking place on the premises.
In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age verification, the licensing
authority may consider other conditions relating to the protection of children from
harm, for example:

e Restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

e Restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when

particular specified activities are taking place;

Restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;

Age restrictions (below 18);

Restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

Requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination

of;

e Requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and

e Full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable
activities are taking place.

On receipt of relevant representations, the licensing authority will consider whether a
condition should be attached to a premises licence or club premises certificate which
requires the presence of a sufficient number of adult staff on the premises to ensure
the wellbeing of the children during any emergency in a theatre offering
entertainment aimed primarily for children.

11

Page 163



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

9.1

9.2

INTEGRATING STRATEGIES

The Council will, as appropriate, take account of any relevant information in relation
to community safety, substance misuse, disability, equality, transport, tourism,
economic development and cultural issues. The Council will monitor these areas and
where it is shown that licensing activities are impacting adversely on these areas it
will be reported to the committee having responsibility for these areas.

The authority’s planning, building control and licensing regimes will be properly
separated to avoid duplication and inefficiency. Licensing Committees will not be
bound by decisions made by a Planning Committee and vice versa. The granting by
a Licensing Committee of any variation of a licence which involves a material
alteration of a building does not relieve an applicant of the need to apply for planning
permission or building control where appropriate. The licensing authority also
recognises that terminal hours for planning consents may differ from licensing hours
and therefore the operator must observe the earlier closing time.

Applicants are reminded that the Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race
Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, places a legal obligation on public authorities to
have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination; and to promote
equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial groups.
Applicants are referred to the Council's Race Equality Scheme published at
www.bridgend.gov.uk.

Licence conditions will not be imposed where they would duplicate other regulatory
regimes or legislation; this includes health and safety at work, fire safety, disability or
equalities legislation.

The licensing authority will have regard to cultural strategies which relate to the
wider cultural and economic benefits to the community of the promotion of live
music, dance and theatre. In coming to a decision, the potential for disturbance in
neighbourhoods will be carefully balanced with these wider benefits and focus on the
licensing objectives and the individual merits of the application.

Copies of Council policies are available on www.bridgend.gov.uk or from individual
Council Departments. The licensing authority webpages can be found under
Licensing in the A-Z of Services.

STEPS TO PROMOTE THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES

These sections will be of relevance to all sectors within the licensed trade, including
Club Premises, the retail sector and events to which Temporary Event Notices apply.
However, the licensing authority recognises that applicants, existing licensees and
premises users should consider only those matters which are relevant to the
individual style and characteristics of their premises and/or events. The licensing
authority encourages liaison between applicants and responsible authorities when
drafting operating schedules and risk assessments.

When drawing up an operating schedule applicants must comply with the regulations

in respect of completing applications. They may also wish toconsider the following

points but are under no statutory obligation to do so. Applicants and responsible
12

Page 164



9.3

9.4

9.5

f)

9)
h)

)

authorities are reminded that they should not offer conditions which duplicate
offences set out in the Licensing Act 2003 or in existing legislation.

The responsibility for ensuring compliance with non-licensing legislation rests with
the applicant. The authority considers the most up to date information to be
available on the Home Office website.

The following licensing objectives have equal importance.  Applicants should note
that the licensing authority may also develop pools of conditions based on the Home
Office Guidance from which necessary and proportionate conditions may be drawn
should relevant representations be received.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Council and
licensing authority to consider crime and disorder reduction in the exercise of their
duties. When addressing crime and disorder, applicants should initially identify any
particular issues (having regard to their particular type of premises and/or activities)
which are likely to adversely affect the promotion of the crime and disorder objective.
Such steps as are required to deal with these issues should be included within the
operating schedule. Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing
crime and disorder.

The installation and maintenance of CCTV inside and outside the premises, to
include the precise location of cameras on plans to ensure that areas are properly
covered.

A written drugs policy covering searches of patrons, seizures, and storage of
seized drugs at the premises.

The use of SIA registered Door Staff and an agreed per capita rate of door
persons to customers.

A training policy relating to the prevention of crime and disorder at the premises.
Information on and/or the provision of transport for customers.

The adoption of Nitenet or similar direct radio link.

Membership of schemes with other licensees to prevent crime and disorder.
Maintenance of incident books to record crime and disorder.

Adherence to the best practice issued in relation to nightclubs, dance venues,
outdoor dance events and the like.

The use of plastic containers and toughened glass at all times or at specific times, or
for specific events or periods during the year.

A policy with regard to the management of patrons drinking outside the premises in
order to minimise the potential for crime, disorder anti-social behaviour and

13

Page 165



f)

9)

nuisance to the public, which may include measures to prevent glasses and bottles
being taken outside.

A written policy to advise staff on protection of young persons and vulnerable
adults.

The use of clickers or other measures to prevent overcrowding.
A last admission or re-admission policy at the premises including measures to
manage customers who smoke where there is no suitable area within the premises

curtilage for such customers.

Measures to prevent crime and disorder arising if entertainment of an adult or
sexual nature is provided and/or involves strong or offensive language.

Measures to prevent under age sales, for example till prompts and refusals
registers.

Crime prevention/Get Home safely posters.

A prohibition on the admittance of customers carrying open or sealed bottles into
the premises.

A prohibition on customers taking alcoholic and other drinks from the premises in
glasses and open bottles to prevent the use of these containers as offensive
weapons in surrounding streets after individuals have left the premises.

Queue management systems inside and outside the premises.

Internal patrols by management.

Public Safety

Where an applicant identifies an issue with regard to public safety (including fire
safety) which is not covered by existing legislation, he or she should identify in their
operating schedule the steps which will be taken to ensure public safety.

The number of people attending the premises.

Customer profile (age, disability etc).

Fire safety and fire prevention measures not covered by other regulatory regimes.

Measures of management control within the premises.

Design, construction and operation of premises, including toilets, lighting, strobe
lighting etc.

Staff training in disability awareness and evacuation procedures.

The use of special effects such as pyrotechnics, lasers, smoke machines, foam
machines.

14

Page 166



h)

9.7

f)

¢)]

Regular testing of electrical systems and the provision of RCD protection.
Awareness of the effect of alcohol and other substance misuse.
Public Nuisance

Licensed premises have the potential to have an adverse impact on the local
community. The licensing authority recognises that a balance should be struck
between local businesses, cultural diversity and the need to protect the local
residents from nuisance.

The licensing authority understands public nuisance to include the following: noise
and disturbance, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour.

The licensing authority recognises that where there are gardens or tables and chairs
placed outside the premises, users of these can cause nuisance. If residential
premises overlook tables and chairs on the frontage of the licensed premise or in
beer gardens and relevant representations are received, the licensing authority will
be likely to adopt the standards contained in the Institute of Acoustics “Good
Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs” and not permit the use
of these areas before the start of normal trading hours, and after dusk or 9.00 pm
whichever is the earlier.

When addressing public nuisance, the applicant should identify any particular
issues (having regard to the vicinity of the premises, the type of premises and the
type of entertainment or activity) which are likely to adversely affect the promotion of
the objective to prevent public nuisance. The licensing authority will expect the
operating schedule to indicate that, in respect of those premises which are located in
primarily residential areas; steps will be taken to reduce the impact of noise
from patrons congregating outside. Other measures could include:

Measures to control amplified and non amplified sound, music and speech
within and outside the premises.

Sound proofing measures to contain sound and vibration.

Reducing sound levels and installing a sound limiting device to prevent amplified
music exceeding the level agreed by the Council.

Keeping doors and windows closed and providing adequate alternative
mechanical ventilation (and ensuring the mechanical ventilation itself does not
cause a noise problem).

The management of gardens, play and other outside areas to ensure minimal
disruption to the neighbourhood — this may include restricting areas where alcoholic
drinks may be consumed or the times they may be consumed.

Providing quieter areas for patrons.

Where there are beer gardens or similar outdoor areas, ensuring the amplified
music is not relayed to such areas and that these areas are properly screened.

15

Page 167



h)

P)

q)

t)

b)

The operation of plant and machinery so as to minimise disruption to the
neighbourhood.

The impact of car parks at the premises and access roads on the local
community.

The impact of deliveries on the local community.

The location of premises in relation to residential properties, hospitals, places of
worship etc.

The adoption of a “last admission” policy.
Erecting prominent notices at the exists to premises asking customers to leave
quietly and not to slam car doors and at appropriate times making announcements

to the same effect.

Instructing door staff or other staff to ask customers leaving the premises to
leave the area quietly.

Regular assessments by staff or managers to assess whether there are problems
and how best to deal with them.

Reducing the volume of music towards the end of the evening and, where
appropriate, playing quieter more soothing music as the evening winds down.

Considering excluding people from the premises who often leave in a noisy
fashion.

Increasing outside lighting levels (but in such a manner that does not cause a
nuisance to the local residents).

Vacating smoking shelters, patios or any other such areas where customers
smoke, by no later than 2300 hours.

encouraging patrons to return indoors as quickly as possible e.g. preventing
drinks from being taken outdoors, restricting the number of tables and chairs,
refraining from erecting smoking shelters and from using patio heaters.

Provision of door staff or other staff to supervise the smoking areas and to
ensure that doors are kept closed when amplified music is being played.

The Protection of Children from Harm
Such steps as are required to address this licensing objective may include:
Types of entertainment provided, especially if aimed primarily at children.

Applicants should specify whether entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is
involved or involves strong or offensive language to enable the Council to consider

16

Page 168



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3.

10.4

11.

11.1

the risk to the promotion of the licensing objectives, particularly the protection of
children from harm.

Staff training for awareness of offences.

Staff training for the protection of children, young persons and vulnerable adults at
the premises including proof of age measures and awareness of proxy sales of
alcohol.

Active support and enforcement of a Proof of age Scheme (e.g. Validate Scheme).
Age limitations.

Exclusion of children from certain areas.

Requirements for adult supervision.

Risk assessment of hazards.

The location of cigarette machines in areas that can be easily seen by staff.

The Council’s Trading Standards Department can give advice on Proof of Age
Schemes.

COMPLIANCE

Where necessary, enforcement action will be taken in accordance with the principles
of the Enforcement Concordat issued by the Government and the Hampton
Principles.

The Council is developing a strategy with responsible authorities which provides for
the targeting of agreed problem and/or high risk premises which require greater
attention, while employing a “light touch” approach to low risk premises or those
which are well run. The licensing authority and responsible authorities will give
licence holders and businesses early warning of problems, clear explanations of
what needs to be done, action plans, and timescales in order to resolve problems.
Formal action will be taken if this is deemed essential to promote the licensing
objectives.

The licensing authority will carry out inspections to determine if licence conditions
are being complied with. These visits may be carried out as joint inspections with
other statutory bodies or responsible authorities.

Although the review process is a key protection for the local community, local
residents or businesses who have concerns about premises should contact the
relevant agency in the first instance. The Council can also act as the point of
contact for concerns via licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

ADMINISTRATION, EXERCISE AND DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS

In determining applications, the licensing authority will adopt the principle of
delegation as laid down in the Act and Guidance in the interests of speed, efficiency

17

Page 169


mailto:licensing@bridgend.gov.uk

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

and cost effectiveness. The Council’'s Constitution, Scheme of Delegation to
Officers and Member Code of Conduct can be accessed at www.bridgend.gov.uk

REVIEWS OF LICENCE

Reviews of premises licences represent a key protection for the local community in
respect of problems which may arise during the term of a premises licence. Any
person and responsible authority has the right to make representations in respect of
an application or seek a review of a licence or certificate within the provisions of the
Act. Each case will be dealt with on its merits.

The licensing authority considers that it is good practice for responsible authorities
to give licence holder’s early warning of problems and of the need to improve.

Individuals or groups may request a representative to make representations on their
behalf, for example a legal representative, friend, Member of Parliament, Member of
the National Assembly for Wales. Licensing authority Members are bound by the
Member Code of Conduct when participating in the licensing process.

Where the licensing authority makes a decision on an application it will provide
reasons in writing and in other formats on request. .

In the interests of transparency and fairness, the licensing authority will normally
make personal details of residents and other parties available as part of the hearing
process unless the person withholds permission or there are exceptional and
compelling reasons why this is necessary. Each case will be determined on its
merits in consultation with the person concerned.

Any person may submit representations electronically to the licensing authority via
licensing@bridgend.gov.uk to include the name of the person or persons making the
representations and a postal address. Accessibility enquiries should be addressed
to the Licensing Section in the first instance.

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES

There are no special policies applicable to Temporary Event Notices. Full details of
the process can be found at www.homeoffice.gov.uk. Event organisers should take
particular notice of the references and meaning of the term “working days” when
calculating when to serve a Temporary Event Notice.

Whilst not a mandatory requirement, early engagement and discussion with the
South Wales Police and Council Public Protection team around proposed TENS
may reduce the likelihood of an objection notice on the grounds of crime and
disorder or public nuisance. The Council would strongly urge all persons to give the
Council at least 28 days notice of an event (and at least two to three months notice
or longer for larger outdoor events) in order that the organiser can access Events
Safety Information, contact points and advice through the Council.

The South Wales Police request that in order that the crime prevention objectives
are not undermined, Temporary Event Notices are served at South Wales Police, F
Division, Bridgend, Bridgend Police Station, Brackla Street, Bridgend, CF31 1BZ and
that the envelope is marked for the Chief Officer of Police. Although not a

18

Page 170


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
mailto:licensing@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/

14.

14.1

15.

15.1

15.2

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

mandatory requirement, the envelope should also be marked “Temporary Event
Notice”.

SPECIAL NOTES

Where extracts from the Licensing Act 2003 are reproduced, they are provided as
an information guide only. They are not a full and authoritative statement of the new
licensing law. In particular, it must be noted that, although the Council has made
every effort to ensure that the information in these pages is correct, changes to the
law and the implementation of specific regulations for licensing mean that the
supporting information in these pages may be subject to change.

CONSULTATION

The draft policy statement, including the information provided by the South Wales
Police at Appendix Two, was published via the Bridgend County Borough Council
website between**********xxx¥xx — Consultation also took place with the Responsible
Authorities, partner agencies, Members of Bridgend County Borough Council and
Town and Community Councils.

This Statement of Licensing Policy was prepared by the Licensing Section, Bridgend
County Borough Council and approved by the Bridgend County Borough Council at
thelr meetlng held On khkhkkkkkhkhkhkkhkhkhkkkk

APPEALS

In the case of a premises licence, an appeal should be made to the
magistrates’ court for the petty session’s area in which the premises are situated.
(Bridgend Magistrates’ Court).

In the case of a personal licence, an appeal should be made to the magistrates’
court for the petty session’s area where the personal licence was granted.

Entitlements to appeal for parties aggrieved by decisions of the licensing authority
are set out in Schedule 5 to the Licensing Act 2003.

19

Page 171



Appendix One

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

The Chief Officer of Police

The Chief Constable

South Wales Police

Bridgend Police Station, ‘F’ Bridgend
Division

Brackla Street

Bridgend

CF31 1BZ

The Fire Authority

The Chief Fire Officer

South Wales Fire and Rescue Service
Fire Safety Department

Forest View Business Park

Llantrisant

CF72 8LX

The enforcing authority for Section 18 of
the Health and Safety of Work etc Act 1974

Health and Safety Executive
Government Buildings

Ty Glas

Llanishen

Cardiff

CF14 5SH

The Local Planning Authority

Bridgend County Borough Council
Development Control
Communities Directorate

Civic Offices, Angel Street
Bridgend

CF31 4WB

The local authority by which statutory
functions are exercisable in relation to
minimising or preventing the risk of pollution
of the environment or of harm to human
health

Bridgend County Borough Council
Public Protection Department
Legal and Regulatory Services
Address as above

(01656) 643260
publicprotection@bridgend.gov.uk

The body which represents those who are
responsible for, or interested in, matters
relating to the protection of children from
harm

Bridgend County Borough Council
Children’s Directorate
Safeguarding and Family Support
Address as above

The Local Health Board
Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health
Board

Judith Tomlinson (Public Health Consultant)
ABM Public Health Team

Public Health Wales

Floor 1, Oldway Centre

36 Orchard Street

Swansea

SA1 5AW

Home Office’s Al
cohol Licensing Team

Alcohol Licensing Team
Lunar House

40 Wellesley Road
Croydon

CF9 2BY

Page 172

20




These details may change from time to time and applicants are advised to contact the Licensing
Section for up to date contact details.

21
Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

PC 2322 MORRIS
Licensing Department
Central West Division

Police Station
Brackla Street
Bridgend
CF311BZ

Thursday 13" June, 2019

Legal Services Department
Corporate Services

Bridgend County Borough Council
Angel Street

Bridgend

CF31 4WB

Review of the Cumulative impact policy

What is Cumulative Impact?

“Cumulative impact” is not mentioned specifically in the 2003 Act. It means the potential
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed
premises concentrated in one area.

Problems occurring as a result of cumulative impact are described as large numbers being
concentrated in an area, for example when leaving premises at peak times or when queuing
at fast food outlets or for public transport.

Large concentrations of people are of concern in Cumulative Impact Area (CIA) because they
may also increase the incidence of disorder or criminal activities in the street. Local services
such as public transport services, public toilet provision and street cleaning may not be able
to meet the demand posed by such concentrations of people leading to issues such as street
fouling, littering, traffic and public nuisance caused by concentrations of people who cannot
be effectively dispersed quickly.

These are the reasons for implementing Cumulative Impact Policies (CIP’s) and these,
therefore are the types of impacts that should be examined when considering new
applications within CIP areas.
The s182 Guidance also makes it clear that there should be an evidential basis for the
decision to include a ‘special policy’ within the statement of licensing policy.
HEDDLU DE CYMRU SOUTH WALES POLICE
Pencadlys Heddlu De Cymru, Heol y Bont-faen, Penybont CF31 35U South Wales Police Headquarters, Cowbridge Road, Bridgend CF31 35U

Mewn argyfwng ffoniwch 999, fel arall, ffoniwch 101 In an emergency always dial 999, for non-emergencies dial 101
Gwefan: www.heddlu-de-cymru.police.uk  Website: www.south-wales.police.uk

Mae Heddlu De Cymru yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymiraeg a Saesneg.  South Wales Police welcomes receiving correspondence in Welsh and English.
Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraegac nifydd  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at cedi.  in Welsh will hot lead to a delay in responding.

Page 175



APPENDIX B

Key findings

The report has been commissioned to review crime and incident levels within the following
streets which form part of the Cumulative Impact Area within Bridgend Town Centre and
identify whether there has been an increase since the opening of new premises on 31st July
2015 in Market Street.

» Market Street
* Derwen Road
* Wyndham Street
* Nolton Street

The total number of occurrences reported has been in decline in the analysis period, however
we have to factor in that there have been three licensed premises which have now closed
which would impact the analysis.

Although there have been declines in many areas of the findings South Wales Police still
support the (CIA) as the removing of such a policy would have a negative impact upon the
Licensing objectives.

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

It remains that there is still a saturation of licensed premises in this relatively small
geographical area, within this area there are two premises licensed until 4am and one
premise licensed until 4.30am which provides a high level of footfall at this early hour.

Conclusion

South Wales Police supports the continual use of a Cumulative Impact Area (CIA) policy in
Bridgend town centre.

This has in effect created a rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises
licences or variations are likely to impact on the four licensing objectives.

The implications of the CIA policy are essential when South Wales Police has made
representations against new or varied licence applications.

Taking this into account, this has had a direct bearing on the reduction of recorded crime
within the town centre and reported anti-social behaviour.

This report is submitted with the authorisation by the officer submitting, to include within the
document for a public consultation on the review of the Council Licensing Policy.

Yours sincerely

PC 2322 Darren MORRIS

!lcensmg !

Bridgend

Page 176



APPENDIX C

Bridgend Town Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment

Background

The Council area contains a mix of urban and rural communities, and has a population
of approximately 139,178. (Source data: ONS website Table KSI0O1UK 2011 Census).

The main towns are Bridgend, Maesteg and Porthcawl. The population of Bridgend
is approximately 15,000 living within a two mile distance of the town (source: Bridgend
Town Council).

Some town centre streets are pedestrianised. Since the inception of the Licensing Act
2003 in November 2005, Derwen Road, Market Street, Wyndham Street and Nolton
Street have been the subject of a special policy to mitigate the cumulative impact of
licensed premises.

Reasons for the Policy

The cumulative impact of large numbers of licensed premises undermines the
licensing objectives of:

e The prevention of crime and disorder
e Prevention of Public Nuisance
e Public Safety

Evidence

The main factor in formulating the assessment is the evidence submitted by the South
Wales Police. The SWP report identifies that

“It remains that there is still a saturation of licensed premises in this relatively small
geographical area, within this area there are two premises licensed until 4am and one
premise licensed until 4.30am which provides a high level of footfall at this early hour.”

For information only, the following is a list of premises in the four streets mentioned,
showing the latest time for the licensable activity shown (late night refreshment or sale
of alcohol). Itis a summary only and the premises are not all open or able to trade as
indicated in the SWP report. The two premises mentioned in the report are highlighted:

Latest time for licensable activity (source Council Licensing database) in named
town centre streets

Late Night Refreshment Nolton Street 0300
Sale of alcohol (tables Nolton Street 0200
and chairs) small venue

Page 177



Late Night Refreshment Wyndham Street 0100
Late Night Refreshment Market Street 0100
and alcohol (restaurant)

Ni(I;hthub (closed) Windham Street %
Late Night Refreshment Wyndham Street 0400
Night Club Market Street 0300
Takeaway Wyndham Street 0230
Bar Nolton Street 0130
Pub Nolton Street 0200
Late Night Refreshment Wyndham Street 0200
(restaurant)

Music Venue Queen Street 0400
Late Night Refreshment Nolton Street 0100
(Restaurant)

Late Night Refreshment Derwen Road 0300
Late Night Refreshment Nolton Street 0200
and alcohol (restaurant)

Late Night Refreshment Nolton Street 0100
Bar Dunraven Place 0100
Pub Nolton Street 0100
Nightclub Derwen Road 0430
Pub Dunraven Place 0100
Pub Market Street 0100
Nightclub Market Street 0400
Pub Nolton Street 0100
Pub Queen Street 0200

The South Wales Police state within the report that the Cumulative Impact Policy has
had a direct bearing on the reduction of recorded crime within the town centre and
reported anti-social behaviour.

Other evidence considered

The statutory consultation also included a questionnaire to help identify additional
issues which could impact on the retention of the Cumulative Impact Policy.

Regard should be given to the very small sample replies — fifteen but the summary of
responses is as follows:

Who replied
Members of the public — 50%

Other interested parties — 43% (Includes elected representatives at County, town and
community level)

Licence holders — 7%

Issues identified

Page 178



93 % of respondents stated that the Council should retain the Cumulative Impact
Policy for Bridgend town centre.

The top issues of concern by response in the town centre:

Anti social behaviour (12)/92%

Littering (12)/92%

On street drinking (7)/54%

Violent behaviour (7)/54%

Street fouling/lavatory provision (6)/46%
Concentration of drinkers (6)/46%
Criminal activities (3)/23%

Street cleansing (1)/8%

69% said that this affected them in the day and night time economies whilst 31% said
that it applied to the night time economy only.

Takeaways were said to be the most problematic premises followed by pubs and
clubs, whilst off licences and restaurants were said to be causing the least problem.

Narrative responses on the negative impact of licensed premises included the
following:

The licensed hours are too late into the evening which adds risks to public due
to lower police numbers and more time to drink

No physical evidence however it was heard recently that it is safer to go to
Cardiff on a night out than Bridgend. About 2 years ago a friend was attacked
when trying to get into a taxi.

Congregations of drunks and drug takers near the
daytime.

Take always in town have always a problem with revellers late at night buying
food and disposing of empty wrappers and containers after eating contents.
Another problem has been people leaving licensed premises carrying either full
or half full beer glasses. You often see a number of empty glasses left on the
pavement, walls etc. these are a hazard and could be fatal for anyone who may
come into contact them.

littering outside of the pubs and clubs. On street drinking during the day with
cans bought from the off licence.

*kkkkkk

especially during the

Other measures considered

Pubwatch Scheme

Public Space Protection Order under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014 which provides the Police with the power to require a person
in the designated area not to drink alcohol or to surrender any alcohol or alcohol
containers (other than sealed containers) in their possession.

Provision of CCTV in public areas

Enforcement powers available to the Police, Licensing Officers and Trading
Standards Officers under the Licensing Act 2003

Page 179



Conclusion

The Licensing Authhority is satisfied that in the Cumulative Impact Area there is
evidence to support the continuation of the Cumulative Impact Policy and, after taking
into consideration other existing initiatives, that it is proportionate and the most
effective measure to address the problems identified.

Application of the policy

Having regard to the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003, Bridgend Council has consulted upon the issue of cumulative
impact in Bridgend Town Centre. It has taken into account the views of the South
Wales Police and other respondents and has adopted a Cumulative Impact Policy in
respect of Derwen Road, Market Street, Wyndham Street, and Nolton Street (from its
junction with Ewenny Road, to its junction with Merthyr Mawr Road, but not the area
between Merthyr Mawr Road and the junction with Court Road Bridgend).

Regard will also be given that where relevant representations are received for a
premises adjoining or in close proximity to the Cumulative Impact Policy area, and
where those representations raise a material impact on the area then the policy will be
applied if the Licensing Authority reasonably judges that to grant the particular
application would add to the cumulative impact being suffered in the defined area.

This document should be read in conjunction with Bridgend County Borough Council’s
Statement of Licensing Policy 2019-2024.

The Cumulative Impact Policy applies to applications for the grant and full variation of
Premises Licences. It does not apply to Club Premises Certificates or Temporary
Event Notices.

When the policy applies it creates a rebuttable presumption that where relevant
representations have been received the application will be refused or subject to certain
limitations unless the applicant can successfully demonstrate that the premises will
not add to the negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.

Applicants are expected to address the effects of the Cumulative Impact Policy within
the Operating Schedule. They are expected to clearly demonstrate how the operation
of the premises would not add to the negative cumulative impact being experienced in
the area.

The Cumulative Impact Policy is not absolute. The circumstances of each application
will be considered on its merits and the Licensing Authority will grant licences that are
unlikely to add to the negative cumulative impact on the licensing objectives.

Page 180



Agenda Item 9

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
17 DECEMBER 2019
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
1. Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet approval for items to be included on
the Forward Work Programme for the period 1 January to 30 April 2020.

2, Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives

2.1 The active engagement with the public regarding key decisions of the Authority
contributes to all of the following Corporate Priorities.

1. Supporting a successful economy — taking steps to make the county a
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and
ambitions of all people in the county.

2. Helping people to be more self-reliant — taking early steps to reduce or
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and
its services.

3. Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial,

physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as
possible and support the development of resources throughout the
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities.

3. Background

3.1 In accordance with the Council’'s Constitution, the Forward Work Programme will be
prepared by the Monitoring Officer to cover a period of four months except when
ordinary elections of councillors occur, in which case the Forward Work Programme
will cover the period up to the date of the elections.

3.2 The Forward Work Programme will contain matters which the Cabinet, Overview
and Scrutiny Committees and full Council are likely to consider. It will contain
information on:

(a) the timetable for considering the Budget and any plans, policies or strategies

forming part of the Policy Framework and requiring Council approval, and
which body is to consider them;

Page 181



3.3

41

4.2

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

(b)  the timetable for considering any plans, policies or strategies which are the
responsibility of the Cabinet;

(c) any individual matters on which the Cabinet intends to consult in advance of
taking a decision, and the timetable for consultation and decision;

(d)  the work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, to the extent
that it is known.

The Forward Work Programme will be published at least 14 days before the start of
the period covered. The Authority is required to publish once a year a notice in at
least one newspaper circulating in the area, stating that a Forward Work
Programme will be published and giving the publication dates for that year.
Current situation / proposal

The proposed Forward Work Programmes are described below:

e Cabinet 1 January to 30 April 2020 - Appendix 1
e Council 1 January to 30 April 2020 - Appendix 2
e Overview and Scrutiny - Appendix 3

Following consideration by Cabinet, the Forward Work Programme will be
published on the Council’s website.

Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

There are no implications relating to the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules
Equality Impact Assessment

There are no negative equality implications arising from this report.

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts
upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.
Financial Implications

There will be a translation cost of approximately £60 for each quarterly update of
the Forward Work programme when it is published on the Bridgend County Borough
Council Website. These will be met from within existing budgets.

Recommendation

Cabinet is recommended to:

e Approve the Cabinet Forward Work Programme for the period 1 January to 30
April 2020 at Appendix 1;

Page 182



e Note the Council and Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programmes as
shown at Appendix 2 and 3 respectively.

Kelly Watson
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services
6 December 2019

Contact Officer: Andrew Rees

Democratic Services Manager
Telephone: (01656) 643147
Email: Andrew.rees@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Democratic Services
Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend
CF31 4WB

Background documents: None

Page 183


mailto:Andrew.rees@bridgend.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - 1 JANUARY 2020 TO 30 APRIL 2020

Item

Title and Description of Report

Cabinet

Contact Officer

GQ8T abed

(b)

(€)

(d)

Draft Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-21 to 2023-24

14 Jan 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019-20 Quarter 3 Revenue Forecast

21 Jan 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

Treasury Management - Quarter 3 2019-20

21 Jan 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

Capital Programme Update - Quarter 3 2019-20

21 Jan 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

Shopmobility

21 Jan 2020

Mark Shephard, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Climate Change Emergency Declaration

21 Jan 2020

Mark Shephard, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Transport Fund

21 Jan 2020

Mark Shephard, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk




Item

Title and Description of Report

Cabinet

Contact Officer

(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

98T abed

School Modernisation Programme: Band B

21 Jan 2020

Lindsay Harvey, Corporate Director
Education and Family Support

Tel: 01656 642612
lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-21 to 2022-23 and Draft Budget
Consultation Process

11 Feb 2020

Kelly Watson, Head of Legal &
Regulatory Services
Kelly.watson@bridgend.gov.uk

10.

Learner Travel Policy

11 Feb 2020

Lindsay Harvey, Corporate Director
Education and Family Support

Tel: 01656 642612
lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk

11.

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-21 to 2023-24

25 Feb 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

12.

Corporate Plan 2019-2023 Reviewed for 2020-21

25 Feb 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

13.

Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy 2020-21 Onwards

25 Feb 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

14.

Insurance Renewal

10 Mar 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk




Item

Title and Description of Report

Cabinet

Contact Officer

(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

/8T abed

15.

Regional Care Home Contract and Pooled Funding arrangement

10 Mar 2020

Susan Cooper, Corporate Director -
Social Services & Wellbeing

Tel: 01656 642251
susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - 1 JANUARY 2020 TO 30 APRIL 2020

Item

Title of Report

Council

Contact Officer

68T abed

(b)

(€)

(d)

Capital Programme Update - Quarter 3 2019-20

22 Jan 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

Support Teams Support Fund

22 Jan 2020

Mark Shephard, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Review of Polling Stations and Polling Districts

22 Jan 2020

Mark Shephard, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Local Development Plan Preferred Strategy

22 Jan 2020

Mark Shephard, Chief Executive
Tel: 01656 643380
mark.shephard@bridgend.gov.uk

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-21 to 2023-24

26 Feb 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy 2020-21 Onwards

26 Feb 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk

Council Tax 2020-21

26 Feb 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk




Item

Title and Description of Report

Cabinet

Contact Officer

(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

06T 8bed

High Street and Retail Rates Relief Scheme 2020-21

11 Mar 2020

Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance
and Section 151 Officer

gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk




OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - 1 JANUARY 2020 TO 30 APRIL 2020

T6T 9bed

Date Title of Report Scrut!ny Contact Officer
Commiittee
20 Jan Budget Consultation - Chief Executive's Directorate Corporate Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Committee
20 Jan Capital Strategy 2020-21 Onwards Corporate Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Committee
20 Jan Quarter 2 Performance Report 2019-20 Corporate Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Committee
21 Jan Budget Consultation - Education and Family Support Directorate Subject Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Committee 1
22 Jan Budget Consultation - Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate Subject Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Committee 2
23 Jan Budget Consultation - Communities Directorate Subject Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and




26T abed

Date Title and Description of Report Scrut!ny Contact Officer
Committee
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Committee 3
24 Jan Budget Consultation - All Directorates Corporate Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Committee
3 Feb Education Outcomes Subject Lindsay Harvey, Corporate Director
Overview and | Education and Family Support Tel:
Scrutiny 01656 642612
Committee 1 | lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk
4 Feb Medium Term Financial Strategy 2020-21 to 2022-23 and Draft Budget Corporate Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Consultation Process Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk
Committee
5 Feb Home to School Transport Subject Lindsay Harvey, Corporate Director
Overview and | Education and Family Support Tel:
Scrutiny 01656 642612
Committee 2 | lindsay.harvey@bridgend.gov.uk
13 Feb Budget Monitoring 2019-20 - Q3 Forecast Corporate Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk




Committee

Date Title and Description of Report Scrutiny Contact Officer
U Committee
Q
«Q
@ Committee
H
o
13 Feb Commissioning Plan for Social Care in Bridgend Corporate Susan Cooper, Corporate Director -
Overview and | Social Services & Wellbeing Tel: 01656
Scrutiny 642251
Committee susan.cooper@bridgend.gov.uk
13 Feb Corporate Plan 2019-2023 Reviewed for 2020-21 Corporate Gill Lewis, Interim Head of Finance and
Overview and | Section 151 Officer
Scrutiny gill.lewis@bridgend.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO CABINET
17 DECEMBER 2019

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES

INFORMATION REPORT FOR NOTING

1.

1.1

2.1

3.1

41

4.2

5.1

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to inform Cabinet of the Information Report for noting
which has been published since its last scheduled meeting.

Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Corporate Priorities
The report relates to the corporate priority/priorities:

o Smarter use of resources — ensuring that all its resources (financial, physical,
human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as possible
and support the development of resources throughout the community that can
help deliver the Council’s priorities.

Background

At a previous meeting of Cabinet, it was resolved to approve a revised procedure for the
presentation to Cabinet of Information Reports for noting.

Current situation / proposal

Information Reports

The following information report has been published since the last meeting of Cabinet:-

Title Date published

Estyn Inspection Outcomes for 11 December 2019
West Park Primary School, Tynyrheol
Primary School and Cynffig Comprehensive School

Availability of Documents

The document has been circulated to Elected Members electronically via
Email and placed on the BCBC website, and is also available from the date of
publication.

Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

This procedure has been adopted within the procedure rules of the Constitution.

Equality Impact Assessment

Page 195



6.1  There are no negative equality implications arising from this report.

7. Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial Implications.

8.1  There are no financial implications regarding this report.

9. Recommendation.

9.1  That Cabinet acknowledges the publication of the document listed in this report.

K Watson

Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

10 December 2019

Contact Officer: Mark Anthony Galvin

Telephone: (01656) 643148
Email: cabinet committee@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Democratic Services
Legal and Regulatory Services
Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend
CF31 4WB

Background documents: None.

Page 196


mailto:cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
INFORMATION REPORT TO CABINET
17 DECEMBER 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND FAMILY SUPPORT
ESTYN INSPECTION OUTCOMES FOR WEST PARK PRIMARY SCHOOL, TYNYRHEOL
PRIMARY SCHOOL AND CYNFFIG COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
1. Purpose of report
1.1 This report informs Cabinet of the outcomes of the recent Estyn:

o inspection of West Park Primary School;
o revisit of Tynyrheol Primary School; and
o review of progress at Cynffig Comprehensive School.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities

2.1 The information in this report relates to the following corporate priority in the Corporate Plan:
o Supporting a successful economy.

3. Background

3.1 During autumn term 2019, Estyn inspected one primary school, revisited one primary school

and reviewed progress at one secondary school in Bridgend. The full text of these reports is
available on the Estyn website: www.estyn.gov.uk

3.2 In September 2019, Estyn inspected West Park Primary School. The report was published
on 25 November 2019.

3.3 In October 2017, Estyn inspected Cynffig Comprehensive School and placed the school into
a follow-up category. Estyn reviewed progress at the school in November 2019.

3.4 InJune 2018, Estyn inspected Tynyrheol Primary School and judged that special measures
were required. Estyn revisited the school in November 2019.

4. Current situation
West Park Primary School

4.1 At West Park Primary School, inspectors reached the following judgements:

Page 197


http://www.estyn.gov.uk/

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Inspection Area Judgement
Standards Good
Wellbeing and attitudes to learning Excellent
Teaching and learning experiences Good

Care, support and guidance Excellent
Learning and management Good

The West Park Primary School report included the following recommendations:

R1 Improve pupils’ spelling and handwriting in key stage 2
R2 Extend the governing body’s role in gathering first-hand information to support their
decisions concerning standards, provision and finance

West Park Primary School will draw up an action plan to show how it is going to address the
recommendations.

The local authority, with Central South Consortium (CSC) will support the school to address
the recommendations.

Estyn will invite the school to prepare a case study on its work in relation to the contributions
of pupil groups, for dissemination on Estyn’s website.

Tynyrheol Primary School

4.6

4.7

4.8

In November 2019, Estyn revisited Tynyrheol Primary School and judged the school to have
made sufficient progress since the section 28 inspection.

The school has been removed from the list of schools requiring special measures.

There will be no further monitoring visits in relation to this inspection.

Cynffig Comprehensive School

4.9

4.10

4.1

5.1

6.1

In November 2019, Estyn reviewed the progress of Cynffig Comprehensive School and
judged the school to have made sufficient progress in addressing the recommendations from
the section 28 inspection.

The school has been removed from the list of schools requiring Estyn review.

There will be no further monitoring activity in relation to this inspection.

Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

There is no impact on the Council’s policy framework or procedure rules.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment provides a
comprehensive summary of the outcomes expected from the implementation of the service.

Long-term Supports the improvement of standards and outcomes in schools.

Page 198



Prevention

Integration

Collaboration

Involvement

Development of post-inspection action plans or refinement of school
improvement plans helps to ensure that recommendations identified
are addressed and acted upon to secure school improvement,
preventing standards from slipping.

Monitoring and acting upon school inspection reports is key to
ensuring that outcomes for schools are achieved thus helping to
support a successful economy.

The local authority works closely with schools, Estyn and with CSC to
deliver the well-being objectives related to school improvement. The
local authority receives the school inspection reports from Estyn and
this informs the work conducted by CSC to deliver the support for
school improvement services.

This area of work involves all stakeholders in school improvement.
Schools work closely with challenge advisers from CSC to refine their
improvement plans or post-inspection action plans and to identify
strategic support from the local authority, CSC and elsewhere (as
required) reflecting the diversity of stakeholders involved in aspects of
school improvement.

7. Financial implications

7.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this information report.

8. Recommendation

8.1  Itis recommended that Cabinet notes the content of this report.

Lindsay Harvey

Corporate Director — Education and Family Support

Telephone: (01656) 642612
Email: Lindsay Harvey@bridgend.gov.uk

Background documents :

Estyn inspection report - West Park Primary School
Estyn outcome letter - Tynyrheol Primary School
Estyn outcome letter - Cynffig Comprehensive School

Page 199


mailto:Lindsay%20Harvey@bridgend.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	Minutes , 19/11/2019 Cabinet

	4 Strategaeth Eiddo Gwag
	191217 Empty Property Strategy Final Appendix 1
	191217 Empty Property Strategy Appendix 2 Consultation Report

	5 Cronfa Her Economi Sylfaenol Llywodraeth Cymru
	6 Canlyniad Ymgynghoriad 'Llunio Dyfodol Pen-y-Bont ar Ogwr'
	191217 Outcome of Consultation Shaping Bridgends Future Appendix

	7 Grant Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol
	8 Deddf Trwyddedu 2003, Datganiad Polisi Trwyddedu ac Asesiad o'r Effaith Gronnol
	191217 App A Proposed LA 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 English
	191217 App B Cumulative impact area supporting letter
	191217 App C Draft CIA Bridgend Town Centre

	9 Blaen raglen Waith
	191217 Cabinet Forward Work Programme Appendix 1
	191217 Cabinet Forward Work Programme Appendix 2
	191217 Cabinet Forward Work Programme Appendix 3

	10 Adroddiadad Gwybodaeth i'w Nodi
	191217  Cabinet Estyn School Inspection Outcomes 171219 v1.0




